
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
DECEMBER 20, 2004 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

December 20, 2004 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Dennis Wegner – Troy Church of 
the Nazarene 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  None Scheduled 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6903 John R 1 

C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1263 Wrenwood 3 

C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2875 Bywater 4 

C-4 Rezoning Application – South Side of South Boulevard, West Side of Rochester 
Road, Section 3 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 698) 6 

C-5 Street Vacation Application (SV 179) – A Portion of Alger Street Right-Of-Way, 
Located Between Birchwood and Vermont, Located West of John R Road, North 
of Maple Road – Section 26 6 



POSTPONED ITEMS: 7 

D-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1855 Boulan 7 

CONSENT AGENDA: 8 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 8 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 8 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 8 

a) December 6, 2004 ................................................................................................ 8 
b) December 10, 2004 .............................................................................................. 8 
c) December 11, 2004 .............................................................................................. 8 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): No Proclamations Submitted 9 

E-4  Troy Golf, LLC – Final Contract Reconciliation and Payment 9 

E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Brick Paver Project 9 

E-6  Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License – Brinker Michigan, 
Inc. (Chili’s Restaurant) 9 

E-7  Request for Approval for a Price Differential Payment and Moving Costs, Emad 
and Niran Youno, 2955 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-005, Big Beaver 
Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre Road – Project #01.105.5 10 

E-8  Request for Approval A Price Differential Payment and Moving Costs, Saoud 
Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, 2907 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-001, Big Beaver, 
Rochester to Dequindre Road Project #01.105.5 10 

E-9  Allocation of 2005 Tri-Party Program Funds, Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre 10 

E-10  Request for Acceptance of Covenant Deed with Attached Conservation Easement 
& Approval of Hold Harmless Agreement, Elgin Corners, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-04-
226-015 & 016 11 

E-11  Resolution to Permit Use of Shell Crackers to Disperse Migratory Waterfowl – 
Emerald Lakes Subdivision 11 



E-12  RWT Building, LLC v. City of Troy – Partial Plat Vacation Action 11 

E-13  Change Order to Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Sole Bidder – Duct 
Cleaning, and Testing, Adjusting and Balancing Services on the Lead 
Contaminated Gun Range Ventilation System 12 

E-14  Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel, Sidwell # 20-22-426-057, Section 22, 
Part of Lots 42, 43, and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 12 

E-15  State of Michigan Election Equipment Grant Application Authorization 12 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 13 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 13 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: 14 

a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority ................................ 14 
b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 

Animal Control Appeal Board; Historic District Commission; Liquor 
Committee; Troy Daze Committee ..................................................................... 14 

F-2 Proposed Minor League Baseball Multi-Use Facility 17 

F-3 Application for New Class C (Quota) License for Red Robin Restaurant 20 

F-4 Application for New Class C (Quota) License for Brio Tuscan Grille Restaurant 20 

F-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 17, 2004 21 

F-6 Administrative Consent Order for Evergreen Farmington SDS 21 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 22 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 22 

a)  Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington 
Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-B) – January 10, 2005............................ 22 

G-2 Green Memorandums: No Green Memorandums Submitted 22 



COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 22 

H-1  Moratorium on Expenditures for the I-75/Long Lake Road Exit Project – Proposed 
by Council Member Lambert 22 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 22 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 22 

REPORTS: 23 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 23 

a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – October 21, 2004........................ 23 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – November 3, 2004..... 23 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – November 3, 2004..... 23 
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 4, 2004 ................... 23 
e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – November 8, 2004 ...................................... 23 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – November 10, 

2004 ................................................................................................................... 23 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 16, 2004 ........................................ 23 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 1, 2004............................... 23 
i) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 2, 2004 ................... 23 
j) Special Meeting Minor League Baseball Stadium Proposal – Minutes from 

Civic Center Priority Task Force (CCPTF) – December 7, 2004 ........................ 23 
k) Special Meeting on Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium/Draft – 

December 7, 2004 .............................................................................................. 23 
l) Special Meeting Minor League Baseball Stadium Proposal – Minutes from 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board – December 7, 2004 .............................. 23 
m) Special Meeting on Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium/Draft – 

Minutes from Planning Commission – December 7, 2004.................................. 23 
n) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – December 7, 2004...................... 23 
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 7, 2004 ........................ 23 

J-2 Department Reports: 23 

a) SOCRRA Quarterly Report – October 2004 ....................................................... 23 
b) Notification of Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Change .............................. 23 
c) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Audited Financial Statement for Year 

Ended June 30, 2004 ......................................................................................... 23 
d) Downtown Development Authority Audited Financial Statement for Year 

Ended June 30, 2004 ......................................................................................... 23 
e) Report – Auction – Vehicle Sale on October 30, 2004 in Rochester Hills........... 23 
f) Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2004................................................. 23 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 23 



a) Thank You Note from Ann and Gary Renard Thanking the Troy Police 
Department and Officers Kocenda and Langbeen for Responding Quickly to 
Their Home Alarm .............................................................................................. 23 

b) Thank You Note from Mrs. Angela Schroeder on Behalf of the Troy Estates 
Neighborhood Playgroup to Chief Craft, Thanking Officer Kaptur for the 
Stranger Safety Presentation.............................................................................. 23 

c) Thank You Note from Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. to Sergeant Don 
Ostrowski, Thanking Him for Participating in the Oakland County Vulnerability 
Assessment ........................................................................................................ 23 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 23 

a) Report from General Government Committee Regarding: MR #04316 – 
County Executive – Emergency Response and Preparedness – 
Representation Concerns on the Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) 
Funding Formulas and Geographic Urban Area Determination.......................... 23 

J-5  Calendar 23 

J-6  Cat Leash Ordinance 23 

STUDY ITEMS: 23 

K-1  No Study Items submitted. 23 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 23 

CLOSED SESSION: 24 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 24 

RECESSED 24 

RECONVENED 24 

ADJOURNMENT 24 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 24 

Monday, January 10, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 24 
Monday, January 24, 2005 Regular City Council .................................................. 24 
Monday, February 7, 2005 Regular City Council................................................... 24 
Monday, February 21, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 24 
Monday, February 28, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 24 
Monday, March 7, 2005 Regular City Council ....................................................... 24 



Monday, March 21, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 24 
Monday, March 28, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 24 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Dennis Wegner – Troy Church of 
the Nazarene 

ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  None Scheduled 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6903 John R 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLUTION A FOR APPROVAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian and 
vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Elena Minetos, 6903 John R, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Peterbuilt semi tractor in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for   
   (not to exceed two years). 
 
RESOLUTION B FOR DENIAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian and 
vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Elena Minetos, 6903 John R, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Peterbuilt semi tractor in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
 
Yes: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

No: 
 
C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1263 Wrenwood 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLUTION A FOR APPROVAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian and 
vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Jane Bulak-Ramsden, 1263 
Wrenwood, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to 
permit outdoor parking of a Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED 
for      (not to exceed two years). 
 
RESOLUTION B FOR DENIAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian and 
vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Jane Bulak-Ramsden, 1263 
Wrenwood, for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to 
permit outdoor parking of a Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2875 Bywater 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLUTION A FOR APPROVAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial vehicle. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian and 
vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance:   
              
         
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Raad Makisi, 2875 Bywater, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford box truck in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for    
  (not to exceed two years). 
 
RESOLUTION B FOR DENIAL 
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 
alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact pedestrian and 
vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Raad Makisi, 2875 Bywater, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford box truck in a residential district is hereby DENIED. 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

C-4 Rezoning Application – South Side of South Boulevard, West Side of Rochester 
Road, Section 3 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 698) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the south side of South 
Boulevard, west side of Rochester Road, Section 3, being 2.31 acres in size, is hereby 
GRANTED, as recommended by Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-5 Street Vacation Application (SV 179) – A Portion of Alger Street Right-Of-Way, 

Located Between Birchwood and Vermont, Located West of John R Road, North of 
Maple Road – Section 26 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a portion of the 50-foot-wide 
platted public Alger Street, extending north approximately 260 feet from Birchwood Street to 
Vermont Street, and within the John R Garden Subdivision, Section 26 (Liber 44, page 27 of 
Oakland County Plats); and  
 
WHEREAS, The properties which shall benefit from this requested vacation include abutting 
lots 409, 410, 433 and 434 of John R Garden Subdivision; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Management and the Planning Commission have recommended that this 
street vacation be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The house at 1767 Alger Street shall be demolished prior to final vacation. 
2. The City shall retain the southern 5 feet of the Alger Street right-of-way for the purpose 

of establishing a 60-foot right-of-way on Birchwood. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council CONCURS in the 
recommendations of City Management and the Planning Commission; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That final action on this street vacation request shall be TAKEN 
by the City Council, after the petitioner has met the two conditions. 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1855 Boulan 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Sergiu Botezan, 1855 Boulan, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for one-year. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “and that the vehicle be 
parked in an area directly behind the house” AFTER “one-year”. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

a) December 6, 2004  
b) December 10, 2004  
c) December 11, 2004 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 6, 2004 and the Special 
Meetings of December 10, 2004 and December 11, 2004, be APPROVED as submitted. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): No Proclamations Submitted 
 
E-4  Troy Golf, LLC – Final Contract Reconciliation and Payment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That final contract reconciliation and payment to Troy Golf, LLC is APPROVED in 
the estimated amount $220,000. 
 
E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Brick Paver Project 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to complete the brick paver project at the Troy Museum and 
Historic Village is hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Mueller’s 
Sunrise Nursery, Inc. of Shelby Township, MI at an estimated total cost of $50,290.00, for 
completion in the Spring of 2005. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon the vendor submission of 
proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and all other 
specified requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost or 
$5,029.00. 
 
E-6  Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License – Brinker Michigan, 

Inc. (Chili’s Restaurant) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
(a) License Transfer 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Brinker Michigan, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation) to transfer 
ownership of a 2004 Class C licensed business, located at 402 W. Fourteen Mile, Troy, 
Michigan 48083, in Oakland County, from Brinker Restaurant Corporation; be CONSIDERED 
FOR APPROVAL. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application be RECOMMENDED “above all 
others” for issuance. 
 
Yes:  
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with Brinker Michigan, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation) to transfer 
ownership of a 2004 Class C licensed business, located at 402 W. Fourteen Mile, Troy, 
Michigan 48083, in Oakland County, from Brinker Restaurant Corporation; and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7  Request for Approval for a Price Differential Payment and Moving Costs, Emad 

and Niran Youno, 2955 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-005, Big Beaver 
Improvements, Rochester to Dequindre Road – Project #01.105.5 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, a price differential 
payment, not to exceed $19,500.00, and a moving payment of $3,997.15 is hereby 
APPROVED to be paid to Emad and Niran Youno as part of the relocation payments for 
relocating from 2955 Thames, having Sidwell # 88-20-25-229-005, which was acquired by the 
City of Troy for the Big Beaver to Dequindre Road Improvement Project. 
 
E-8  Request for Approval A Price Differential Payment and Moving Costs, Saoud Jamo 

and Nidhal Jamo, 2907 Thames, Sidwell #88-20-25-229-001, Big Beaver, Rochester 
to Dequindre Road Project #01.105.5 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, a price differential 
payment, not to exceed $18,900.00, and a fixed moving payment not to exceed $1,800.00, or 
not to exceed the lowest of 3 estimates for a commercial move is hereby APPROVED to be 
paid to Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo as part of the relocation payments for relocating from 
2907 Thames, having Sidwell # 88-20-25-229-001, which is being acquired by the City of Troy 
for the Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre Road Improvement Project. 
 
E-9  Allocation of 2005 Tri-Party Program Funds, Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

RESOLVED, That the City of Troy allotment for the 2005 Tri-Party Program is $406,638 and 
that the City’s share is $135,546 and that these funds be USED, as required, for the Big Beaver 
Improvement Project, Rochester to Dequindre construction phase. 
 
E-10  Request for Acceptance of Covenant Deed with Attached Conservation Easement 

& Approval of Hold Harmless Agreement, Elgin Corners, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-04-
226-015 & 016 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Covenant Deed with Conservation Easement received from Elgin 
Corners, LLC, having Sidwells #88-20-04-226-015 & 016, is hereby ACCEPTED, and that the 
City Clerk is hereby directed to RECORD said deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds 
Office, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Hold Harmless Agreement between the City of Troy 
and Eglin Corners, LLC is hereby APPROVED, the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to 
EXECUTE the document, and a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-11  Resolution to Permit Use of Shell Crackers to Disperse Migratory Waterfowl – 

Emerald Lakes Subdivision 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby waives the provisions of Chapter 
98, Section 98.07.02 of the Code of the City of Troy relative to the use of shell crackers to 
frighten and disperse waterfowl away from Emerald Lakes Village, provided that authorized 
persons of the Homeowners Association shall adhere to the following procedures: 
 

1. Shell crackers shall not be discharged before 7:00 AM and not after dusk. 
2. The permitee(s) shall notify the Police Communications Section prior to discharging the 

shell crackers and shall provide the police with his/her name(s) and phone number(s). 
3. A violation of either of the above limitations shall be cause for immediate revocation of 

the City authorization. 
4. Authorization shall expire December 31, 2009. 

 
 
E-12  RWT Building, LLC v. City of Troy – Partial Plat Vacation Action 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of the RWT Building, L.L.C. v City 
of Troy, et al and to pay all expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 12 - 

 
E-13  Change Order to Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Sole Bidder – Duct 

Cleaning, and Testing, Adjusting and Balancing Services on the Lead 
Contaminated Gun Range Ventilation System 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council CONFIRMS the emergency authorization granted to 
the Police Department by the City Manager for Asbestos Control Environmental, Inc. of Taylor, 
MI to remove damaged insulation from the gun range ductwork at a cost not to exceed 
$2,000.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council CONFIRMS the emergency 
authorization granted by the City Manager for any additional unforeseen work related to the 
duct cleaning, and testing, adjusting and balancing services on the lead contaminated gun 
range ventilation system in an amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost or 
$10,566.00. 
 
E-14  Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel, Sidwell # 20-22-426-057, Section 22, Part 

of Lots 42, 43, and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the sale of the City 
remnant parcel which is described as:  
 
Lots 42, 43 and 45 of ”Supervisors Plat #17, of part of the southeast ¼ of section 22, T.2.N. 
R.11.E. City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. As recorded in Liber 28, page 36, of plats, 
Oakland County Records. Except the east 42 feet of lots 43 and 45, also reserving an 
easement for sidewalk, drainage and public utilities over the west 10 feet of the east 52 feet of 
lots 43 and 45, including a 25 foot triangle at the northeast corner of the described parcel.  
Sidwell# 88-20-22-426-057 
 
For $200,000.00, the appraised value, to Cueter Investment Company, as outlined in the Offer 
to Purchase, with conditions, plus closing costs and; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That closing will take place when all conditions have been met;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City, a copy of which and a copy of the Offer to Purchase shall 
be ATTACHED to and made a part of the original minutes of this meeting.   
 
E-15  State of Michigan Election Equipment Grant Application Authorization 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 13 - 

WHEREAS, The Troy City Council wishes to apply to the Secretary of State for a grant to 
purchase an optical scan voting system and related Election Management System (EMS) 
software to comply with the Help America Vote Act (HAVA); 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has chosen to submit a grant application for a new optical 
scan voting system in 2005; and 
 
WHEREAS, That the County Clerk must have this resolution as Proof of Authority for entering 
into upcoming Grant Agreements with the State by the end of January 2005 in order to meet the 
wishes of the majority of the local clerks in this county that Oakland County qualify for ordering 
the new voting system in the 05-1 order period in early February 2005. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED to 
submit this grant application on behalf of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, on this 
20th day of December, 2004. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair during the Public Comment section under item 12.“F” of the agenda. Other 
than asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall 
not interrupt or debate with members of the public during their comments. For those 
addressing City Council, petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time 
that may be extended with the majority consent of Council and all other interested 
people, their time may be limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes 
on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 14 - 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  

a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority 
b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 

Animal Control Appeal Board; Historic District Commission; Liquor Committee; 
Troy Daze Committee 

 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 

 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Culpepper, Michael W 09/30/08 
Frankel, Stuart 09/30/07 
Hay, David R 09/30/07 
Hodges, Michele 09/30/05 
Kennis, William 09/30/06 
Kiriluk, Alan M 09/30/08 
MacLeish, Daniel 09/30/05 
Price, Carol A 09/30/07 
Reschke, Ernest C 09/30/06 
Schilling, Louise E 09/30/08 
Schroeder, Douglas J 09/30/06 
Weiss, Harvey 09/30/05 
Wong, Fred (Student) 07/01/04 
York, G Thomas 09/30/08 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
None on File 
 
   
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 11/01/2007 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bertin, Leonard G. 11/01/05 
Buchanan, Cynthia 11/01/07 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 15 - 

Robosan-Burt, Susan 11/01/06 
Done, Angela 11/01/05 
Fuhrman, Adam (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Gauri, Kul B 11/01/05 
House, Theodora 11/01/06 
Johnson, Nancy (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Kuschinsky, Dick (Resigned) 11/01/04 
Manetta, Pauline 11/01/06 
Pietron, Dorothy Ann 11/01/07 
Pritzloff, Mark (Alternate) 11/01/06 
Wiqar, Anbereen (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Connor, Kathleen Ann 02/25/04-02/2006 03/01/04 
Laudicina, M.K. 07/20/04-07/2006 08/09/04 
Uitto, Renee 12/03/04-12/2006 12/06/04 
Werpetinski, Susan 11/14/04-11/2006 12/06/04 
 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 09/30/2007 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Ms Harriet Barnard  (Resigned) 09/30/2004 
Ms Kathleen Melchert 09/30/2007 
Mr Al Petrulis 09/30/2005 
Ms Jayne Saeger 09/30/2006 
Mr Vincent James Viola 09/30/2006 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Larue, Patricia M 08/12/02- 08/2004 08/19/02 
Pritzlaff, Mark 04/17/03- 04/2005 04/28/03 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04- 03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Unexpired term expires 05/15/2006 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Ms Marjorie A Biglin 03/01/07 
Mr Wilson Deane Blythe 03/01/05 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 16 - 

Ms Barbara Chambers 03/01/05 
Mr Paul C Lin 05/15/06 
Ms. Ann Partian 03/01/05 
Ms Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Ms Dorothy  Scott (Resigned) 05/15/06 
Ms Vilin Zhang ( Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Krivoshein, Kerry S 08/12/99-06/14/01-

05/2003 
11/08/04 

Petrulis, Al 02/11/03-07/31/03-
07/2005 

07/09/01-11/08/04 

Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04-11/08/04 
 
Liquor Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Unexpired term expires 1/31/06 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Mr Henry Allemon 01/31/06 
Mr Alex Bennett 01/31/06 
Mr Max K Ehlert 01/31/05 
Mr W S Godlewski 01/31/05 
Mr Patrick C Hall 01/31/06 
Mr James R Peard 01/31/06 
Ms Anita Elenbaum (Resigned) 01/31/06 
Ms Emily Polet  (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Bloom, Jerry E 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
Howe, Peter Thomas 03/12/03-03/2005 03/17/03 
Hyun, Yul Woong (Jeff) 09/26/03-09/2005 10/06/03 
Ogg, David S. 03/06/02-06/09/03- 

05/2005 
03/18/02- 
06/16/03 

Petrulis, Al 02/11/03-07/31/03- 
07/2005 

02/17/03- 
08/18/03 

Powers, Brian M 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzlaff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shah, Jayshree 01/12/04-01/2006 02/02/04 
Sobota, Christopher A 02/14/02-02/2004 02/18/02 
Ukrainec, Bohdan L 
 

01/30/01-04/16/03- 
11/01/04-11/2006 

02/05/01 
11/08/04 

Victor, Robert 06/03/03-05/2005 06/16/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 17 - 

Ziegenfelder, Peter F 12/07/00-06/11/01- 
06/11/03-05/2005 

12/18/00-07/09/01-6/16/03 

 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 11/30/07 
 

 Term expires 11/30/07 
 

 Term expires 11/30/07 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Berk, Robert A 11/30/06 
Cyrulewski, Jim D. 11/30/04 
Dilley, Cecile 11/30/04 
Gonda, Michael S 11/30/06 
Kaltsounis, Kessie 11/30/05 
Hall, William F 11/30/05 
Mehta, Dhwani (Student) 07/01/05 
Musick, Marilyn K. 11/30/04 
Stewart, Jeffrey (Repr to Parks/Rec Board) 09/30/06 
Preston, Robert S 11/30/05 
Whitton-Kaszubski, Cheryl A 11/30/06 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Asjad, Zarina J 05/01/0-05/2005 05/05/03 
Freliga, Mary E 11/25/02-11/2004 12/02/02 
Hashmi, Amin 08/22/02-08/2004  

Huber, Laurie G 09/22/00-06/18/01-05/2003 09/22/00-07/09/01 
Lenivov, Victor 04/08/04-04/2006 04/12/04 
Pietron, Dorothy Ann 07/10/01-07/2003 07/23/01 
Pritzlaff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Solarte, Remedios A. 09/15/04-09/2006 09/20/04 
Wells, Alexandra 08/22/02-08/2004 09/09/02 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Proposed Minor League Baseball Multi-Use Facility 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 18 - 

Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLUTION A 
 
WHEREAS, General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. approached the City of Troy for reason 
of locating a multi-use minor league baseball stadium on Civic Center property, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council gave direction to the City Manager at the Study Session of 
November 15, 2004 to identify and address elements that have salience relative to the 
proposed stadium in terms of benefit to the community, site plan issues, environmental issues, 
and financing, and 
 
WHEREAS, On November 29, 2004, the Troy City Council directed City staff to continue 
discussions with General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. regarding the placement of a minor 
league baseball stadium at the southeast portion of the Civic Center site with additional 
consideration being given to financial arrangements, alcohol use, and additional public input 
from the City of Troy boards and committees,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to negotiate 
a contract with General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. for placement of a multi-use minor 
league baseball stadium in the southeast area of the Civic Center site, and this contract will 
contain the following elements: 
 
1. Financing: 
 

• All construction, maintenance, and construction costs for the facility will be the 
responsibility of General Sports 

• All infrastructure costs are to be the responsibility of General Sports, unless the 
Downtown Development Authority, City, and General Sports agree upon some cost-
sharing of various components 

• The stadium will not be collateral for loans 
• If General Sports fails in their operations of the minor league baseball team and stadium, 

the City will be left without debt and will own the facility 
• General Sports will pay property taxes on the privately owned real property and all 

personal property 
 
2. Stadium: 
 

• The property will continue to be owned by the City of Troy 
• The stadium will be a gift to the City of Troy from General Sports with the understanding 

that General Sports will operate a minor league baseball team on the site 
• Management of the facility for all events will be provided by General Sports at no cost to 

the City of Troy 
• User costs (clean-up, electricity, etc.) for the City of Troy and community groups will be 

paid by the event organizer 
• General Sports will provide all necessary insurance for the facility and operations as 

determined by the City of Troy 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 19 - 

• The City of Troy reserves the right to approve any transfer of management or ownership 
of operations of the facility 

• In the event General Sports fails in their operations of the facility and minor league 
baseball team, the City of Troy can order demolition of the stadium with the cost to be 
borne by General Sports 

• Clean-up for all events will be the responsibility of General Sports, including all off-site 
locations used for parking 

 
3. Parking: 
 

• At least 2,000 parking spaces will be provided for all games and events without a 
variance, with long-term agreements established from nearby property owners for a 
minimum of 25 years; the City of Troy will consider a zoning ordinance text amendment 
to permit off-site parking if required 

• Parking attendants will be located at the Community Center, Aquatic Center, Library, and 
City Hall parking lots to preclude minor league baseball patrons from parking in these 
lots 

• Maximum facility capacity is limited to 5,000 patrons per game or event without adding 
additional off-site parking arranged at the expense of General Sports 

 
4. Environmental Impacts: 
 

• Spill light from the stadium will be nonexistent at 1,200 feet from the stadium 
• A fully distributed sound system configuration will be used in lieu of an outfield or 

centralized speaker system, and the emission of measurable noises from the facility shall 
not exceed 65 dBA at the southern limits of the residential neighborhood to the north of 
the stadium 

• Traffic control services provided by the City of Troy will be paid for by General Sports 
• Various Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification elements 

will be considered and incorporated into the design of any storm water and drainage 
improvements 

 
5. Community Benefit: 
 

• The stadium will be available for at least 260 days per year for City of Troy and resident 
organization use 

• General Sports will not charge the City of Troy or resident groups a rental or users fee, 
but will pay for any direct costs incurred as part of their event 

 
6. Alcohol Sales: 
 

• All sales and advertising of alcoholic beverages will be per the memorandum between 
the Troy Community Coalition and General Sports, dated November 2004 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to secure the services 
of outside professionals that have experience in stadium development. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 20 - 

OR 
 
 
RESOLUTION B 
 
WHEREAS, General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. approached the City of Troy for reason 
of locating a multi-use minor league baseball stadium on Civic Center property, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council gave direction to the City Manager at the Study Session of 
November 15, 2004 to identify and address elements that have salience relative to the 
proposed stadium in terms of benefit to the community, site plan issues, environmental issues, 
and financing, and 
 
WHEREAS, On November 29, 2004, the Troy City Council directed City staff to continue 
discussions with General Sports and Entertainment, L.L.C. regarding the placement of a minor 
league baseball stadium at the southeast portion of the Civic Center site with additional 
consideration being given to financial arrangements, alcohol use, and additional public input 
from the City of Troy boards and committees,  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy is not interested in locating a multi-use minor league 
baseball stadium on Troy Civic Center property. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Application for New Class C (Quota) License for Red Robin Restaurant 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with Troy Robin, Inc., for a new full year (quota) Class C license 
with Official Permit (Food), Entertainment Permit, and new SDM, to be located at 5460 
Corporate Dr., Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County, “above all others”; and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Application for New Class C (Quota) License for Brio Tuscan Grille Restaurant 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 21 - 

Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with Bravo Development, Inc., d/b/a Cucina Development, Inc. for a 
new QUOTA Class C license, a Sunday Sales permit, an SDM license, and an Official Permit 
for the Sale of Food on Sundays, to be located at Somerset Collection South, Suite E 150, 2800 
W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, “above all others”; and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 17, 2004 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
a) No Changes Be Made at Donaldson and Square Lake 
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made at Donaldson and Square Lake. 
 
b) Installation of All-Way STOP Signs at the Intersection of Larchwood and 

Bellingham 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order 2004-______________ be ISSUED for installation of 
all-way STOP signs at the intersection of Larchwood and Bellingham, and that the intersection 
be striped to designate the separate lanes, if deemed necessary by the Traffic Engineer. 
 
c) Request for a Flashing Red Phase to be Added to the Traffic Signal on Westbound 

Maple at Chicago Road 
 
RESOLVED, That the City REQUEST the Road Commission for Oakland County to change 
operation of the traffic signal on westbound Maple at Chicago Road to add a flashing red 
phase. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Administrative Consent Order for Evergreen Farmington SDS 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 22 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2004-12- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council APPROVED the Administrative Consent Order, and 
authorizes the City Manager to EXECUTE the document on behalf of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a)  Rezoning Application – Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Road, 

Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-B) – January 10, 2005 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums: No Green Memorandums Submitted 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  Moratorium on Expenditures for the I-75/Long Lake Road Exit Project – Proposed 

by Council Member Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy will halt expenditures for the I-75/Long Lake Road Exit 
project except for any work required by the Federally-mandated Environmental Assessment. 
This moratorium will continue until the Environmental Assessment is completed. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 23 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – October 21, 2004 
b) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – November 3, 2004 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – November 3, 2004 
d) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 4, 2004  
e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – November 8, 2004 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – November 10, 2004 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 16, 2004  
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 1, 2004 
i) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 2, 2004  
j) Special Meeting Minor League Baseball Stadium Proposal – Minutes from Civic Center 

Priority Task Force (CCPTF) – December 7, 2004  
k) Special Meeting on Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium/Draft – December 7, 2004  
l) Special Meeting Minor League Baseball Stadium Proposal – Minutes from Parks and 

Recreation Advisory Board – December 7, 2004  
m) Special Meeting on Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium/Draft – Minutes from 

Planning Commission – December 7, 2004 
n) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – December 7, 2004  
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 7, 2004 

 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) SOCRRA Quarterly Report – October 2004  
b) Notification of Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Change  
c) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Audited Financial Statement for Year Ended June 

30, 2004 
d) Downtown Development Authority Audited Financial Statement for Year Ended June 30, 

2004  
e) Report – Auction – Vehicle Sale on October 30, 2004 in Rochester Hills  
f) Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2004 

 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Thank You Note from Ann and Gary Renard Thanking the Troy Police Department and 

Officers Kocenda and Langbeen for Responding Quickly to Their Home Alarm  
b) Thank You Note from Mrs. Angela Schroeder on Behalf of the Troy Estates 

Neighborhood Playgroup to Chief Craft, Thanking Officer Kaptur for the Stranger Safety 
Presentation  

c) Thank You Note from Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. to Sergeant Don Ostrowski, 
Thanking Him for Participating in the Oakland County Vulnerability Assessment 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Report from General Government Committee Regarding: MR #04316 – County 

Executive – Emergency Response and Preparedness – Representation Concerns on the 
Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) Funding Formulas and Geographic Urban Area 
Determination 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 24 - 

J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Cat Leash Ordinance 
  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items submitted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA December 20, 2004 
 

- 25 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, January 10, 2005........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, January 24, 2005........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 7, 2005 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, February 21, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 28, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 7, 2005............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 21, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 28, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 
 
DATE:   December 8, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   6903 John R 
 
 
 
 
On November 16, 2004, information was sent to Elena Minetos that identified 
restrictions related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of 
that information, she was advised that the Peterbuilt semi tractor parked on the property 
did not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  She was 
given the option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the 
Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, She has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a public 
hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of December 20, 2004. 
 
The property in question is basically an acreage parcel that is 123’ wide and 240’ deep.  
It contains an existing home that has a ground floor footprint of 3,237 square feet.  Of 
this 1,423 square feet are contained in an attached 4 car garage.  Based upon the 
required setbacks and lot coverage limitations, a building up to 8,856 square feet or an 
additional 5,619 square feet could be constructed.  Under the current provisions of 
Section 40.57.04, an accessory building of 1,618 could be constructed. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bittnera
Text Box
C-01



 



 





 



 



 













 
 
DATE:   December 8, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1263 Wrenwood 
 
 
 
 
On November 3, 2004, information was sent to Jane Bulak-Ramsden that identified 
restrictions related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of 
that information, she was advised that the Chevrolet cube van parked on the property 
did not comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  She was 
given the option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the 
Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, she has filed an appeal.  The appeal requests that a public 
hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of December 20, 2004. 
 
The property in question is a single family home site in the R-1C Zoning District.  The 
property is 60 feet wide and approximately 143 feet deep.  The existing home has a 
ground floor area of 1,158 square feet and a 528 square foot detached garage already 
exists.  Section 40.57.04 of the Zoning Ordinance would only allow 72 additional square 
feet of detached accessory building.  The maximum lot coverage would allow a total of 
2,592 square feet of building on this site.  This is 906 square feet more than what 
currently exists. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bittnera
Text Box
C-02



 



 





 



 



 





















 
 
DATE:   December 8, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 
   Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   2875 Bywater 
 
 
 
 
On August 4, 2003, information was sent to Raad Makisi that identified restrictions 
related to a commercial vehicle located on residential property.  As part of that 
information, he was advised that the Ford box truck parked on the property did not 
comply with the exceptions found in Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00.  He was given the 
option to remove the vehicle or appeal to City Council for relief of the Ordinance. 
 
In response to our letters, Mr. Makisi arranged for off-site storage of the vehicle.  In 
November of 2004, our office began receiving complaints that the vehicle was once 
again being parked on that property.  On November 9, 2004, inspection of the site 
confirmed that the truck was there in violation of the ordinance and a court summons 
was issued. 
 
In response to our most recent enforcement activities, Mr. Makis has filed an appeal.  
The appeal requests that a public hearing date be held in accordance with the 
ordinance.  A public hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of December 20, 
2004. 
 
The property in question is a lot within the Wattles Pointe Subdivision.  The property is 
80 feet wide and 270 feet deep although the northern 135 feet of the property is either 
flood plain or county drain easement.  The existing home has a ground floor area of 
2,234 square feet, of which, 457 square feet is an attached garage.  Section 40.57.04 of 
the ordinance would currently permit up to 1,117 square feet of accessory buildings to 
be constructed on the site.  Setback and lot coverage limitations would restrict the site 
to 6,480 total square feet of buildings.  This is 4,246 square feet more than currently 
exists. 
 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, kindly advise. 
 
   
Attachments 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

bittnera
Text Box
C-03



 



 



 



 





 

 



 



 













 1

 
December 13, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM –PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION  – 

South side of South Boulevard, West side of Rochester Road, Section 3 – 
R-1C to R-1T (Z 698) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and the R-1T Location 
Standards.  Further, the proposed R-1T Zoning District is compatible with the adjacent 
land uses and zoning districts.  On November 9, 2004 the Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the rezoning request.  City Management concurs with the 
Planning Department recommendation. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Frank Ayar.  The applicant is Ted Berlinghof. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of South Boulevard, west of Rochester Road, 
in Section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is 2.31 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A single family home presently sits on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1T One Family Attached Residential. 

bittnera
Text Box
C-04



 2

Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The application indicates that a 12-unit condominium development is proposed for the 
property. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential.  
 
South: Sandalwood Condominiums, a 54-unit R-1T development.    
 
East: Sandalwood Condominiums, a 54-unit R-1T development.  
 
West: Single family residential.   
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-3 One Family Residential (City of Rochester Hills). 
 
South: R-1T One Family Attached Residential. 
 
East: R-1T One Family Attached Residential. 
 
West: R-1C One Family Residential 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in R-1T:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted and as regulated in the nearest R-1A through R-1E One 

Family Residential Districts. 
 
 Two family dwellings developed in accordance with the provisions of the 

Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 

  One family attached dwellings as defined in sub-Section 04.20.44 developed in 
accordance with the provisions of the Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 

 
 Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above principal uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 

Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
 
 Schools. 



 3

 Child care centers. 
 

Utility and public service buildings and uses. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The property fronts on South Boulevard.  
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site detention. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are some woodlands on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the property as Medium Density Residential.  
Medium Density Residential correlates with the R-1T Zoning District in the Future Land 
Use Plan.  The application is therefore consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
Section 12.40.01 Location Standards provides the following: 
 

The R-1T (One-family Attached Residential) District may be applied to property 
when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 

 
 (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of 

the Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as 
medium density or high density residential. 

 
The application meets the Location Standards for the R-1T One Family Attached 
Residential District. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Letter from petitioner dated September 14, 2004. 
3. Minutes from November 9, 2004 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 698) 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-698 Ayar Townhouse Sec 3\CC Public Hearing Ayar Townhouse 12 20 04.doc 





Z 698 AYAR CONDOS.dgn  11/9/2004 1:52:52 PM



Z 698 AYAR CONDOS.dgn  11/9/2004 1:48:45 PM



Z 698 AYAR CONDOS.dgn  11/9/2004 1:45:49 PM







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 698) – Proposed 
Condominium Development, South side of South Blvd., West of Rochester Road, 
Section 3 – From R-1C (One Family Residential) to R-1T (One Family Attached) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to approve the rezoning request. 
 
The petitioner, Ted Berlinghof of Architects International, 40 Hague, Detroit, was 
present.   
 
The property owner, Frank Ayar of 6924 Cottonwood Knoll, West Bloomfield, was 
also present. 
 
Mr. Berlinghof provided a brief description of the proposed condominium project.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-130 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the south side of 
South Boulevard, west of Rochester Road, within Section 3, being 2.31 acres in 
size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 



 1

December 13, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 Nino A. Licari, City Assessor 

Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION 

APPLICATION (SV 179) – A portion of the Alger Street right-of-way, 
located between Birchwood and Vermont, located west of John R Road, 
north of Maple Road, Section 26 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the November 9, 2004 Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission recommended 
that the Alger Street vacation request be approved, with the following conditions: 
 

1. The house at 1767 Alger Street shall be demolished prior to final vacation. 
2. The City shall retain the southern 5 feet of the Alger Street right-of-way for the 

purpose of establishing a 60-foot right-of-way on Birchwood. 
 
City Management concurs with the Planning Commission recommendation and 
recommends an authorizing resolution.  Once the conditions are met City Council may 
consider a Final Vacation of the right-of-way. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of applicant(s): 
Thomas M. Moss and Sam and Shirley Coleman. 
 
Location of property owned by applicant(s): 
The street is located in the John R Garden Subdivision, which was platted in 1926.  Mr. 
Moss owns the property abutting Alger Street to the east, comprised of lots 410, 411, 
432 and 433 of John R Garden Subdivision.  On the west side of the street, Mr. and 
Mrs. Coleman own the house on lot 408 and 409.  Coleman’s Wrecker Service is on lots 
402 through 407 and 434 through 441.  The street abuts lots 409, 410, 433 and 434. 

bittnera
Text Box
C-05



 2

Length and width of right-of-way. 
The Alger Street right-of-way is 50 feet wide.  The applicant is proposing to vacate the 
entire portion (50 feet wide) of Alger Street, between Birchwood Street and Vermont 
Street (vacated), a distance of 260 feet. 
 
History of Right-of-Way: 
A significant portion of the Alger Street right-of-way has been vacated, including the 
entire right-of-way between Woodslee and Brinston.  City and county aerial photographs 
indicate that the western half of the Alger Street right-of-way between Vermont Street 
and Birchwood Street has been vacated.  However, City staff has determined that no 
portion of the Alger Street right-of-way between Birchwood and Vermont has ever been 
vacated. 
 
Mr. Moss applied to vacate this portion of Alger Street in January 2003.  The application 
was considered at the February 11, 2003 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  At 
this meeting, it was discussed that Alger Street serves the existing non-conforming 
residence on the west side of the street.  Section 40.10.02 requires that any parcel of 
land zoned in a classification other than One-Family or Two-Family Residential has 
access to an approved public street that has been accepted for maintenance by the 
City.  A representative of the Department of Public Works indicated that the City would 
not accept maintenance of a sub-standard street.  Approving this street vacation would 
have the effect of increasing the non-conformity of the abutting residential parcel to the 
west.   
 
For these reasons, this item was tabled to the February 25, 2003 Special/Study Meeting 
and was tabled again.  Following this meeting, the applicant withdrew the application 
until such time that the home at 1767 Alger was removed.    
 
The applicant resubmitted the application, together with the owners of the non-
conforming house at 1767 Alger Street.  A residential wrecking permit (PB2004-1136) 
for 1767 Alger was issued on October 5, 2004.  As of the date of this report, the 
wrecking permit had not been finalized.  Upon finalization, the street vacation request 
will comply with the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Industrial uses. 
 
South: A single family home and a vacant lot. 
 
East: Vacant. 
 
West: A single family home and a wrecking yard.  The single family home is a non-

conforming use in the M-1 Light Industrial district. 



 3

Zoning classification of adjacent parcels:  
All parcels abutting Alger Street between Birchwood and Vermont are zoned M-1 Light 
Industrial.  
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Reason for street vacation (as stated on the Street/Alley Vacation Application): 
Both applicants have provided a letter requesting the street vacation application (see 
attached).   
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use plan as Light Industrial/Research. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Letters from applicants. 
3. Minutes from February 11, 2003 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
4. Minutes from February 25, 2003 Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting. 
5. Minutes from November 9, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/SV 179 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\STREET VACATION\SV 179 Alger St N of Birchwood Sec 26\CC Public Hearing Alger St Vacation 12 20 04.doc 



















PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2003 
 

STREET VACATION REQUEST 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV-179) – East ½ of Alger 

Street, abutting Lots 410 and 433 of John R Garden Subdivision, North of 
Birchwood, West of John R, Section 26 – M-1. 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed street vacation.  The applicant is proposing to vacate the east half (25 
feet wide) of Alger Street between Birchwood Street and Vermont Street 
(vacated), which is a distance of 260 feet.  Mr. Savidant said that a significant 
portion of the Alger Street right-of-way has been vacated, including the entire 
right-of-way between Woodslee and Brinston.  In reviewing the current use of 
adjacent parcels, Mr. Savidant reported that the parcel to the west contains a 
single family home and a wrecking yard and noted the single family home is a 
non-conforming use in the M-1 Light Industrial district.  All parcels abutting Alger 
Street between Birchwood and Vermont are zoned M-1 Light Industrial.  Mr. 
Savidant stated that the applicant wishes to vacate the eastern half of the street 
to enable the construction of an industrial shop and office building on the site, 
noting that presently it would be difficult, if not impossible, to meet setback 
requirements.   
 
In summary, Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning 
Department to deny the Alger street vacation request as submitted.  Mr. Savidant 
explained that approving the street vacation would have the effect of increasing 
the non-conformity of the abutting residential parcel to the west, which neither the 
Planning Commission nor City Council has the authority to do. 
 
Mr. Savidant stated the attorney representing the applicant has contacted the 
Planning Department with a willingness to work with the City to come to some 
kind of an agreement.   
 
Ms. Pennington asked for confirmation that the property located east of Alger 
Street is unbuildable as it is currently zoned. 
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the site is unbuildable because of the required 
setbacks.   
 
Mr. Waller questioned the width of the street and right-of-way. 
 
Mr. Savidant explained that the right-of-way is currently 50 feet wide and the 
gravel street is 22 feet wide.  He explained that if the 25 feet were to be vacated, 
one half of the gravel street would be lost as well, resulting in roughly an 11-foot 
wide gravel street on a 25-foot wide right-of-way.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2003 
 

Mr. Waller stated that somebody potentially could shift the gravel over to the west 
to turn the 22 feet into 25 feet. 
 
Mr. Savidant responded yes, potentially. 
 
Ms. Pennington questioned if a utility easement exists on the property.   
 
Mr. Savidant confirmed that the Engineering Department did not designate any 
utility easement in the right-of-way.   
 
Arthur Shannon, 43252 Woodward, Bloomfield Hills, was present to represent 
the petitioner.  He explained that Mr. Moss was called out of town and could not 
attend the meeting.  Mr. Shannon commented that the information provided to 
the Commission has been presented accurately.  Mr. Shannon stated that Mr. 
Moss was involved in developing land in the area of Brinston and Bellingham, 
which is located in the same subdivision a little to the north.  He further stated 
that Mr. Moss wishes to relocate his business and office to this site, noting that 
Mr. Moss currently works out of an office on Big Beaver, east of Rochester.   
 
Mr. Shannon recognizes that the main problem to this street vacation is the 
house on Alger, and stated that Mr. Moss is willing to do one of two things.  Mr. 
Moss is willing to grant an easement over the entire road, so that the road as it 
now exists could continue to be used, unless or until some day it could be 
vacated.  Mr. Moss is also willing to grant a permanent easement over the 
roadway so that the roadway would remain unaffected.  Mr. Shannon noted that 
Mr. Moss does not need the roadway; he needs the setbacks in order to build 
within his lots.  Mr. Shannon further noted that the house would probably be 
removed within one year. 
 
Chairman Littman asked if the petitioner would like the matter to be tabled.   
 
Mr. Shannon said that due to time constraints, he is asking the Commission to 
grant approval to the street vacation subject to granting a permanent easement 
over the roadway so the roadway remains unaffected. 
 
Chairman Littman asked for legal advice from the Assistant City Attorney. 
 
Ms. Lancaster said that she and Mr. Shannon had discussed the matter earlier in 
the day.  She reported that the granting of an easement may or may not resolve 
the matter.  She cited the ordinance with respect to site access requirements in 
that a permanent and unobstructed private easement can suffice if it is at least 
40 feet in width, noting this would not be the case in this matter.  Ms. Lancaster 
stated that with less than 40 feet, any easement would be subject to the review of 
the City Engineer who is required to receive approval from both the Fire Chief 
and Police Chief.  Ms. Lancaster summarized that preliminary work must be 
conducted to find out if an easement is feasible, and suggested that no action be 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2003 
 

taken to this regard because an easement may not be a viable solution.  Ms. 
Lancaster reminded the Commission that granting a vacation at this time would 
increase the non-conformity of the abutting residential parcel.   
 
A short discussion followed.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain said that regardless if there is a residence or not, there is a 
viable piece of land that is separately owned, and whoever owns that land has a 
street going to it.  He said there could someday be an industrial building on that 
property with a need for a street, noting then there would be truck traffic as 
opposed to car traffic.  Mr. Chamberlain said then a matter could arise with not 
wanting truck traffic over this easement.  Mr. Chamberlain expressed his 
opposition to vacating the street because it would result in landlocking the 
residence and further commented that he would not vote for any 
recommendation to vacate this street.  
 
Mr. Shannon responded that the house is owned by the same gentleman who 
owns the vacant corner lot to the south of it, and again noted that the house 
would probably not remain a year from now.  Mr. Shannon stated that if there 
were a permanent easement, the same road would be there whether the owner 
wanted to develop the back piece of land separately from the front piece. 
 
Mr. Kramer responded there are two parcels; today it could be one owner, 
tomorrow it could be two owners. 
 
Chairman Littman stated that the Planning Department has on file a letter from 
the Coleman’s voicing their objection to this proposed street vacation.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
Mr. Shannon announced that Mr. Moss met with the Coleman’s since that letter 
was written and explained his proposal.  Mr. Shannon stated that the Coleman’s 
do not have an objection to the vacation now.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 11, 2003 
 

Resolution 
 
Moved by Pennington  Seconded by Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, that this item be tabled to the Special/Study Meeting scheduled on 
February 25, 2003. 
 
Yeas Nays 
Kramer Chamberlain 
Littman 
Pennington 
Schultz 
Storrs 
Vleck 
Waller 
Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Chamberlain stated:  “My negative vote is due to the fact that we are wasting 
everybody’s time here.  You got that sidwell sitting up there that you cannot have 
a legal street to.  It might be all one ownership but right now it’s a different 
sidwell.  The only way you can change that is to change the sidwell to combine it 
with the rest of the properties and that ain’t gonna probably happen and that’s the 
reason for my no vote.” 
 
Ms. Lancaster recommended that the public hearing remain open to avoid re-
sending public hearing notifications to affected residents. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING RE-OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
Chairman Littman announced that the public hearing will remain open until the 
February 25 Special/Study Meeting.   

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 25, 2003 

 
8. ALGER STREET VACATION REQUEST – Tabled from February 11, 2003 Regular 

Meeting 
 
Chairman Littman announced that the Public Hearing remains open on this item. 
 
Mr. Miller reported that he and Mr. Savidant met with the petitioner and explained to 
the petitioner that the zoning ordinance requires that the existing home on Alger 
Street be provided access on a road or, as an alternative because it is zoned M-1, 
provided a 40 foot wide easement which includes a 28 foot wide road built to City 
road standards.  Mr. Miller said that all options were discussed with the petitioner 
and the petitioner is considering potential solutions; i.e., changing the complete 
building plan and/or seeking a variance.   
 
A short discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Miller recommended that the petitioner be provided enough time to assess his 
alternatives and that the vacation request be tabled to a regular meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution 
 
Moved by Waller Seconded by Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, that Street Vacation Request (SV-179) be tabled to the April 8, 2003 
Regular Meeting.   
 
Yeas Absent 
All present (8) Chamberlain 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
 

STREET VACATION REQUEST 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV-179) – Alger Street 
between Birchwood and Vermont, approximately 260 feet, abutting Lots 409, 
410, 433 and 434, John R Garden Subdivision, North of Birchwood, West of John 
R, Section 26 – M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed Alger Street vacation.  Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation 
of the Planning Department to approve the request with the conditions that (1) 
the house at 1767 Alger Street be demolished prior to final vacation; and (2) that 
the City retain the southern 5 feet of the Alger street right-of-way for the purpose 
of establishing a 60-foot right of way on Birchwood.   
 
The petitioners, Tom Moss of 1893 Birchwood, Troy, and Shirley Coleman of 
2089 Burdic, Troy, were present.   
 
Mr. Moss said he is the owner of the property located immediately to the east of 
the subject vacation and the Coleman’s are owners of the property immediately 
to the west.  Mr. Moss said the house at 1767 Alger Street is scheduled to be 
demolished next Monday.  He explained the home was recently used by the Troy 
Police Department for SWAT team drills.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-132 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for the Alger Street right-
of-way, located within the John R Gardens Subdivision, abutting lots 409, 410, 
433 and 434, being approximately 260 feet in length and 50 feet in width, in 
Section 26, be approved subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the structure at 1767 Alger shall be demolished prior to final vacation. 
 

2. That the City shall retain the southern 5 feet of Alger Street right-of-way 
for purposes of establishing a 60 foot right-of -way on Birchwood. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



 
 
DATE:   November 17, 2004 

  
 

 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
    
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Public Hearing 

Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal 
   1855 Boulan 
 

 
 

 
On October 20, 2004, a violation was issued for the outdoor parking of a commercial 
vehicle located on the residential property at 1855 Boulan.  In particular, a violation was 
issued for the parking of a Chevrolet cube van east of the garage.  In response to our 
violation Mr. Sregiu Botezan, a resident of the home and son of the property owner, has 
filed an appeal application for your consideration.  The appeal requests that a public 
hearing date be held in accordance with the ordinance.  A public hearing has been 
scheduled for your meeting of November 29, 2004. 
 
The main building on the property is 1,586 square feet in size.  Section 40.57.04 would 
allow a detached accessory building of 793 square feet.  There is also considerable 
room and setback available to build attached accessory buildings.  The 30% lot 
coverage rule would dictate the maximum building size and limit the size to 7,830 
square feet or an addition of 6,244 square feet. 
 
A request for a similar, but different, vehicle was heard and denied by City Council at 
their meeting of May 7, 2001.  A copy of those minutes are attached. 
 
Copies of the application, site plan, photos and map showing the 300’ notice area are 
attached for your reference.  Should you have any questions or require additional 
information, kindly advise. 
 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
D-01









 



 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES May 7, 2001 
 

- 3 - 

C-1 Appeal of Dangerous Building Determination – 612 Trombley, Parcel #22-401-006 – 
Continued 

 
RESOLVED, That the resolution be amended subject to the following conditions: (1) Amend 
habitable or demolished date from May 28, 2001 to May 28, 2002; (2) Petitioner to install fence; 
(3) City Administration to provide a listing as to what work must be performed by the petitioner 
to remove the dangerous building status; (4) Petitioner to provide feedback to City 
Administration regarding completed work within 45 days; and (5) The 45 day requirement will 
be extended accordingly if a delay in work is caused due to restrictions set by a governmental 
agency. 
 
Yes: Pryor, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kaszubski, Lambert, Pallotta 
No: Schilling  
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2001-05-229 
Moved by Pallotta  
Seconded by Kaszubski  
 
RESOLVED, That if the structure at 612 Trombley is not made habitable or demolished on or 
before “May 28, 2002”, then the City of Troy is authorized to cause the structure to be razed 
and removed either through an available public agency or by contract or arrangement with 
private persons, and the cost of such razing and removal shall be charged as a lien upon the 
property at 612 Trombley, Troy, MI subject to the following provisions “(1) Petitioner to install 
fence; (2) City Administration to provide a listing as to what work must be performed by the 
petitioner to remove the dangerous building status; (3) Petitioner to provide feedback to City 
Administration regarding completed work within 45 days; and (4) The 45 day requirement will 
be extended accordingly if a delay in work is caused due to restrictions set by a governmental 
agency.” 
 
Yes: Pryor, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kaszubski, Lambert, Pallotta 
No: Schilling  

POSTPONED ITEMS 

D-1 Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1855 Boulan 
 
Resolution #2001-05-230 
Moved by Pallotta  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES May 7, 2001 
 

- 4 - 

D-1 Request for Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1855 Boulan – Continued 
 

A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 
compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 

C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 
cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has not found that the petitioner has 
demonstrated the presence of condition(s), justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Cipitan Botezan, 1855 Boulan, 
for waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Ford cube van in a residential district is hereby denied. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Kaszubski, Lambert, Pallotta, Schilling  
No: Pryor, Howrylak  
 
RECESS 9:03 PM – 9:23 PM 
 

D-2 Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:   Award to Low Bidder – Remote Camera 
System 

 
Resolution #2001-05-231 
Moved by Pallotta  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install one (1) remote camera system for Council 
Chambers is hereby awarded to the low bidder, Thalner Electronic Lab at an estimated total 
cost of $66,430.88. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all  











CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, December 6, 2004, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 

Mrs. Anne McCauslin, Central Woodward Christian Church, gave the Invocation and the Pledge 
of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield (Left at 9:40 PM) 
David Eisenbacher 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

ABSENT: Martin F. Howrylak 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak  
 
Resolution #2004-12-610 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak’s absence at the Regular City Council of 
December 6, 2004 be EXCUSED due to his absence from the city. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak  
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  b) Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation on behalf of the City of 
Troy to the individual students graduating from Citizens Academy VIII; a) An auditor’s 
presentation was given by Larry Simon of Doeren Mayhew; John M. Lamerato, Assistant 
City Manager/Finance and Administration, presented the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2004 to City Council 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:24 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:40 
 
Council Member Broomfield left due to illness at 9:40 PM. 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
C-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 

40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions  
 
Resolution #2004-12-611 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215A) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Articles 40.55.00-40-59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be 
REFERRED to the Planning Commission for further discussions, with specific consideration 
given to the garage door height, foot print ratios, further rational of the number of detached 
buildings, and that staff make the changes as requested in regard to greenhouses. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield, Howrylak  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2004-12-612 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield, Howrylak  
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
 
E-2  Minutes:  Special and Regular Meetings of November 29, 2004 
 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 6:00 PM Special Meeting and the Minutes of the 7:30 PM 
Regular Meeting of November 29, 2004 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 3 - 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  No City of Troy Proclamations proposed 
 
E-4   Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements, Sidwell #88-20-12-100-004 & 005, 

Section 12, 2216 & 2238 E. Square Lake Rd. 
 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-4 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council ACCEPTS the sanitary sewer easements from William L. 
Fletcher & Hester May Quarrella, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-12-100-004, and 
from Akram Kthar & Moaeed Khedher, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-12-100-005, 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-5  Approval of Relocation Claim, Paul & Helen A. Kaleto, 2839 Thames, Sidwell #88-

20-25-226-005, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, Rochester 
to Dequindre 

 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Paul and Helen A. Kaleto 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2839 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-226-005, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $19,781.50. 
 
E-6  Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit & Authorization for 

Payment, South Boulevard and Rochester Intersection Improvements – CMAQ 
Project No. 01.103.5, Sidwells #88-20-02-101-001 & -003 

 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit from Joseph and 
Josephine Petruzzello, owners of the property having Sidwells #88-20-02-101-001 and -003, is 
hereby ACCEPTED for the Rochester and South Boulevard Intersection Improvement Project 
and payment is AUTHORIZED in the amount of $8,150.00. 
 
E-7  Acceptance of a Permanent Easement from Troy Commons, LLC – Sidwells #88-

20-22-477-047, 039, 038 & 043 
 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the three attached easements for watermain, sidewalk and sanitary sewer 
from Troy Commons, LLC, owner of property having Sidwells #88-20-22-477-047, 039, 038 & 
043 are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Low Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Traffic Control Signs 
 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That one-year contracts to provide Traffic Control Signs with an option to renew 
for one (1) additional year are hereby AWARDED to the lowest bidders meeting specifications, 
Vulcan Signs, Rocal, Inc., and Hall Signs at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
November 16, 2004, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, and the contracts shall expire December 16, 2005. 
 
E-9  Approval of Relocation Claim, Mahmoud and Nahla Abdallah, 2851 Thames, 

Sidwell #88-20-25-226-006, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre 

 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Mahmoud and Nahla Abdallah 
pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2851 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-226-006, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $15,476.94. 
 
E-10  Acceptance of Sanitary Sewer Easements, Sidwells #88-20-24-451-058 & 059, 

Section 24, 2583 E. Big Beaver & Adjacent Lot 
 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council ACCEPTS the sanitary sewer easements from Umberto and 
Venerina Basilisco owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-24-451-058, and from Stephan 
and Carole Gueccia, and Julius Ceasar and Michelle Spognardi, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-24-451-059, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11  Approval of Relocation Claim, Thien Van Le and Yen Lu, 2919 Thames, Sidwell 

#88-20-25-229-002, Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver Road Improvements, 
Rochester to Dequindre  

 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Thien Van Le and Yen Lu 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 5 - 

pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 2919 Thames, having Sidwell #88-
20-25-229-002, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $1,170.00. 
 
E-12  2004-05 Budget Amendment No. 1 
 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-12 
 
RESOLVED, That Budget Amendment No. 1 of the 2004-05 budget be APPROVED to provide 
funds for outstanding purchase orders at June 30, 2004, reconcile capital projects in various 
stages of completion at June 30, 2004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of the Budget Amendment No. 1 be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
E-13  Private Agreement for Jonna Retail, Project No. 03.920.3 
 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-13 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Jonna Management Group, is hereby APPROVED 
for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, deceleration lane, approaches, sidewalks and 
soil erosion controls on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-14  Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain – Leonard Family Limited 

Partnership – 1095 Naughton, Sidwell #88-20-26-152-012 
 
Resolution #2004-12-612-E-14 
 
RESOLVED, That the watermain easement from Leonard Family Limited Partnership, owner of 
property at 1095 Naughton, having Sidwell #88-20-26-152-012 is hereby ACCEPTED for the 
operation, maintenance and repair or replacement of watermain; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with the Oakland County Register of Deeds Office, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 

Development Authority; Planning Commission and (b) City Council Appointments: 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Animal Control Appeal Board; Historic 
District Commission; Troy Daze Committee 

 
Resolution #2004-12-613 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 6 - 

Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Planning Commission 
Mayor, Council Approval (9) – 3 years 
 
Larry Littman Term expires 12-31-07 
 
Mark J. Vleck Term expires 12-31-07 
 
Wayne C. Wright  Term expires 12-31-07 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
Appointments Carried-Over as Item F-1 on the Next Regular City Council Meeting 
Agenda Scheduled for Monday, December 20, 2004: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 

 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 11/01/2007 
 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 09/30/2007 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 

 Unexpired term expires 05/15/2006 
Troy Daze Committee 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 7 - 

Appointed by Council (9) – 3 years 
 

 Term expires 11/30/07 
 

 Term expires 11/30/07 
 

 Term expires 11/30/07 
 
 
F-2 Appointment of Master of Ceremonies and Official Host  - Annual Banquets 
 
Resolution #2004-12-614 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member David Eisenbacher WILL ACT as Master of Ceremonies 
and Official Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for the Annual 
2005 Boards & Committees Appreciation Banquet (February 12, 2005); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Council Member Broomfield WILL ACT as Master of 
Ceremonies and Official Host that evening and work with the Community Affairs Department for 
the Annual 2005 Fire Fighters Appreciation Banquet (May 21, 2005). 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
F-3 Approval of Subdivision Entrance Signs/Agreements, Sylvan Glen Subdivision 
 
Resolution #2004-12-615 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the sign applications submitted by the Sylvan Glen Homeowners Association 
for the placement of a sign in the median of Falmouth at the intersection of Long Lake Road, as 
well as the median of Hampshire at the intersection of Livernois, are hereby APPROVED as to 
the design and materials proposed; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the agreements regarding the maintenance and liability 
coverage for the signs are also APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
to sign the attached agreements on behalf of the City. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield, Howrylak 
 
F-4 Troy v. Switlicki et. al 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 8 - 

Resolution #2004-12-616 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the Consent Judgment in the matter of City of Troy v Michael Switlicki, et al 
is hereby APPROVED by the City of Troy, the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to execute the 
document on behalf of the City of Troy, and a copy is to be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent:  Broomfield, Howrylak 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1263 Wrenwood – Scheduled for December 20, 2004  
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2875 Bywater – Scheduled for December 20, 2004  
c) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6903 John R – Scheduled for December 20, 2004  
d) Rezoning Application – South Side of South Boulevard, West Side of Rochester Road, 

Section 3 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 698) – Scheduled for December 20, 2004  
e) Street Vacation Application (SV 179) – The Eastern Half of Alger Street, Between 

Birchwood and Vermont, Located West of John R Road, North of Maple Road, Section 
26 – Scheduled for December 20, 2004 

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Agenda Items for Future Consideration 
a) Update on Proposed Minor League Baseball Facility 

Noted and Filed 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 9 - 

REPORTS:  
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 13, 2004  
b) Library Board/Final – October 14, 2004  
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – October 19, 2004  
d) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 25, 2004  
e) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – October 25, 2004 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 26, 2004   
g) Youth Council/Final – October 27, 2004  
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – November 2, 2004 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 3, 2004   
j) Planning Commission/Draft – November 9, 2004 
k) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – November 10, 2004  
l) Library Board/Draft – November 11, 2004 
m) Youth Council/Draft – November 17, 2004  
n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – November 23, 2004 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Concession Stand Operations Report 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter from Larson Middle School PTO to Detective Jim Mork, Thanking Him for Speaking 

to the Organization About Internet Safety 
b) Letter from Alliance Mobile Health to Lt. Tom Houghton, Thanking Officers Harrison, 

Coombs, Novak, and Villerot for Their Assistance During an Ambulance Request   
c) Letter from Troy Families for Safe Homes to Chief Craft, Thanking Him for Speaking at 

Their November 3, 2004 Luncheon 
d) Letter from Troy Community Coalition to Chief Craft, Thanking Sergeant Robert Redmond 

for His Presentation at Their November 4, 2004 Meeting 
e) Letter from COTHA to Sergeant Ostrowski, Thanking Him for His Presentation at Their 

November Meeting and Thanking Lieutenant Scherlinck for His Continued Support of 
COTHA 

f) Letter from Clackamas County to Chief Craft, Thanking His Participation in the 2nd Annual 
National Family Violence Appreciation Detail 

g) Letter from Schroeder Elementary Cub Scout Den 2, Pack 1010 to Alliance Mobil Health, 
Thanking Them for Their Presentation on November 8, 2004 

h) Letter from Paul DeGregorio, Commissioner – U.S. Election Assistance Commission to 
Tonni Bartholomew Thanking Her for Meeting with Him During His Visit to Michigan and 
for Serving on the Board of Advisors of the U.S. Election Assistance Commission 

i) Letter from Jeffrey D. Werner, Bloomfield Township Chief of Police in Appreciation for the 
Troy Police Department’s Assistance During the 35th Ryder Cup Matches 

j) Letter from Ken Aud, Area Manager for the Department of Corrections for Oakland County 
Circuit Court Probation to Lt. David Livingston in Appreciation of His Participation with 
Their Operation Nighthawk Training 

k) Thank You Note from Vivian Brokenshire to MaryAnn Hays in Appreciation of Her 
Assistance in Locating Deceased Members of Her Family in City of Troy Cemeteries 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 10 - 

l) Letter from Richard G. Patterson, Chief of Police for the Birmingham Police Department to 
Chief Craft Thanking Officer Meinzinger for His Assistance in Apprehending a Suspect 
Involved in an Unarmed Robbery  

m) Letter from JoJo Cosman, Manager of Corporate Training Services for Kelly Services to 
Chief Craft in Thanking Officer N. Kaptur for Her Presentation Regarding General Safety  

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None proposed 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2004 - Copy 

of Report Available for Public Viewing at the Troy City Clerk’s Office 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7 Correspondence: Michael W. Reaves, President – Michigan Association of Public 

Employee Retirement Systems (MAPERS), Re: MAPERS Achievement Program – 
John M. Lamerato’s Successful Completion of the Intermediate Fiduciary 
Examination 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-8 Memorandum, Re: Class C “Quota” Licenses 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-9 Correspondence: Tom Krent – 3184 Alpine, Re: Suggested Zoning Ordinance 
Revisions to Prevent Another Industrial Warehouse from Being Built in Residential 
Districts (This pertains to Item C-1 – Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment [ZOTA 
215A]) 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft December 6, 2004 
 

- 11 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:47 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 

 
 
 

 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Special Meeting - DRAFT December 10, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Friday, December 10, 2004, in The Board 
Room of Doeren Mayhew on Floor 22 of the Top of Troy Building 775 West Big Beaver Road. 
Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise Schilling  
  Mayor Pro Tem Robin E. Beltramini 
  Cristina Broomfield 

David Eisenbacher 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

ABSENT: Martin F. Howrylak 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
Lewis G. Bender, Ph.D. Consultant 
 

 
 
Dr. Lew Bender facilitated a session re:  City Council/Staff Discussion Re: the Role of City 
Council/City Manager Partnership 
 
Discussion Questions: 
 

1) What should City Council expect of the City Manager and City Attorney? 
2) What should the City Manager and City Attorney expect of City Council? 
3) What should City Council Members expect of each other? 
4) What are the ground rules for being a member of this City Council? 
5) What can be done differently to be more effective? 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:57 P.M. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 

John Szerlag, City Manager 

bittnera
Text Box
E-02b



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Special Meeting - DRAFT December 11, 2004 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Saturday, December 11, 2004, in The Board 
Room of Doeren Mayhew on Floor 22 of the Top of Troy Building 775 West Big Beaver Road. 
Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 8:04 A.M. 

 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise Schilling  
  Mayor Pro Tem Robin E. Beltramini 
  Cristina Broomfield 

David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & 
Administration 
Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
Charlie Craft, Police Chief 
Bill Nelson, Fire Chief 
Doug Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
Cindy Stewart, Director of Community Affairs 
Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Lewis G. Bender, Ph.D. Consultant 
 

 
Dr. Lew Bender facilitated a session re:  City Council/Staff Discussion Re: the Role of City 
Council/City Manager Partnership 
 
Discussion Questions: 
 

1) What should City Council expect of the City Manager and City Attorney? 
2) What should the City Manager and City Attorney expect of City Council? 
3) What should City Council Members expect of each other? 
4) What are the ground rules for being a member of this City Council? 
5) What can be done differently to be more effective? 

 
Recess 9:20 to 9:45 A.M. 
 
Recess 10:45 to 11:00 A.M. 
 
Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak   
 
Resolution #2004-12-617 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Eisenbacher   
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-02c



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Special Meeting - DRAFT December 11, 2004 
 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak’s absence at the Special City Council meeting of 
Friday, December 10, 2004 BE EXCUSED due to being out of the City. 
 
Yes: All - 6 
No: None 
Abstain: Howrylak 
Absent:  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:21 P.M. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 

Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



 
December 3, 2004 
  
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Troy Golf – Final Contract Reconciliation and Payment 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends City Council approve final contract reconciliation and 
payment to Troy Golf, LLC at an estimated cost of $220,000.   
 
BACKGROUND 
On June 18, 2001 Troy City Council approved a contract for construction of an 18-hole golf 
course (resolution #2001-06-317).   
The resolution approving the golf course construction includes authorization for 
construction, contract execution and unforeseen additional services. When the contract 
was executed, insurance and bond costs were undetermined, however, were to be paid as 
part of the contract.  
The insurance and bond costs are final and the balance required to reconcile the contract 
is estimated to be $220,000. 
Total bonds/insurance costs are estimated at $602,000. 
 
BUDGET 
Bond revenues include funds for this expense. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-04



December 3, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – 

Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications - Brick Paver Project  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On November 10, 2004, bids were opened to install brick pavers at the Museum 
to connect the current walkway to the relocated Historic Church, Parsonage and 
Troy Hall; as well as connections to the new accessibility ramps at the Caswell 
House and Poppleton School.  City management recommends that an award be 
made to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Mueller’s Sunrise Nursery, Inc. 
of Shelby Township, Michigan at an estimated cost of $50,290.00.  This is 
contingent upon vendor submission of proper contract and bid documents, 
including insurance certificates, bonds, and all specified requirements. 
 
In addition, we are requesting authorization to add work if needed due to 
unforeseen circumstances, not to exceed 10% of the original project cost. 
 
EXPLANATION OF BID NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS 
 
Michigan Brickscape submitted an alternate bid that did not meet specifications.  
In lieu of the requested 6”x12” reinforced concrete curbing, to sit on a 12” base of 
crushed gravel, Michigan Brickscape proposed using an L-shaped piece of steel, 
sitting on an 8” crushed gravel base, pinned down with nails.  While $10,000.00 
cheaper, City management does not feel this would provide the same long-term 
stability as the City’s specifications. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
When the Historic Village Green was expanded to accommodate the Church and 
Parsonage, the Troy Hall needed to be relocated.  The brick paver walkway 
needs to be extended to the steps and accessibility ramps of these structures.  In 
addition, we have installed new accessibility ramps at the Caswell House and 
Poppleton School and new walkways need to be installed to them.  A brick paver 
walkway did not exist to the original ramps.  Excess brick pavers from the Big 
Beaver Road Projects will be used.  The method for installing them is the same 
as that used on the Big Beaver Projects and by the Architects that designed 
Troy’s new Community Center. 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-05



Agenda Item 
Museum Brick Pavers 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
BUDGET  
 
Funds are available to complete this project in the Museum’s General Repairs 
Account 401804.7975.900. 
 
113 Vendors Notified on the MITN System 
    7 Bid Proposals Rec’d 
    1 Bid did not meet specifications 
 
BS/bs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 12.20.04 – Award - BrickPavers 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-22
Opening Date -- 11-10-04 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 12/3/04 BRICK PAVER PROJECT - MUSEUM

VENDOR NAME: * Mueller's Sunrise Michigan Brickscape Rolar Property
Nursery Inc Company Inc Services Inc

Amount (10%) 5,028.93$                  5,165.10$                    5,470.00$                   
Check # 389095990 800383424 201114539

PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE
Complete the Brick Paver Project
at the Troy Museum & Historic Village
in accordance with the specifications:
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: * 50,289.38$               50,846.75$                 54,700.00$                

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Marked Unit Prices Addendum A N/A

COMPLETION DATE:
# of Working Days 14 14 Spring of 2005

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N Yes Yes Yes
Date 11/5/04 10/26/04 11/4/04

1/3 Base
PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Net 30 Days 2/3 Balance Net 30

1/3 Base
TERMS: Net 30 Days 2/3 Balance Net 30

1-Yr Concrete
WARRANTY: 2Yrs- Wall 2 Years Labor Blank

COMPLETION DATE: Spring 2005 2 Weeks 90 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Yes or No Yes Yes Yes
AMENDMENT #1 Yes or No Yes No Yes

ATTEST:
 Loraine Campbell * Denotes Lowest Acceptable Bidder
 Brian Stoutenburg
 Ron Hynd
 Cheryl Morrell Jeanette Bennett
 Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

DMS:
  Michigan Brickscape Company - Alternate Proposal - ($41,077.00)

Reason:  Metal edging vs. Concrete curb as specified

G:\ITB-COT 04-22 Brick Paver Project - Museum



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-22
Opening Date -- 11-10-04 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 12/3/04 BRICK PAVER PROJECT - MUSEUM

VENDOR NAME: Soulliere WCI Excell
Decorative Stone Contractors Inc Landscaping LLC

Amount (10%) 5,668.14$                  7,000.00$                    7,692.80$                 
Check # 4434453734 419945509 84000212

PROPOSAL DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE
Complete the Brick Paver Project
at the Troy Museum & Historic Village
in accordance with the specifications:
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 56,681.40$               64,200.00$                 76,928.00$              

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Marked Estimate SV-1 Attachment #1

COMPLETION DATE:
# of Working Days 14 10 4

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N Yes Yes Yes
Date 10/26/04 11/4/04 11/9/04

1/3 Deposit
PROGRESS PAYMENTS: 2/3 Completion 30 Days 1/3 Wall    1/3 Curb   1/3 Base

TERMS: Blank 30 Days Blank

WARRANTY: One Year One Year Blank

COMPLETION DATE: Spring 2005 Spring 2005 Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Listed in Bid Blank
+$1100.00 Option

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  Yes or No Yes Yes Yes
AMENDMENT 1: Yes or No Yes Yes Yes

G:\ITB-COT 04-22 Brick Paver Project - Museum











 
 

November 30, 2004 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor License - 
 Brinker Michigan, Inc. (Chili’s Restaurant) 
  
 
 
Brinker Michigan (a Delaware corporation) requests to transfer ownership of a 2004 Class C 
licensed business located at 402 W. Fourteen Mile, Troy, Michigan 48083, in Oakland County, 
from Brinker Restaurant Corporation (Chili’s Restaurant). 
 
Brinker Restaurant Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of Brinker International, Inc., a 
publicly held corporation, has created state-by-state operating subsidiaries to own and operate 
the Brinker restaurants in each state.  In Michigan, Brinker Michigan, Inc., a Delaware 
corporation, was created as a wholly owned subsidiary of Brinker Restaurant Corporation, the 
current licensee.  As a result of this, the official licensee information on each Brinker held liquor 
license in Michigan must be changed.   
 
The Michigan Liquor Control Commission has waived the police investigation, as there is no real 
change in ownership (the new licensee is a wholly owned subsidiary of the current licensee).  
However, a resolution is still required from Council, as this is required by statute in any license 
“transfer”. 
 
The attorney for Brinker, John Carlin, attended the November meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee and explained the process to the committee members.  The Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission has confirmed that they do not want a local police department investigation, but 
that they do require a resolution from Council. 
 
The police department has no objection to this request.  
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

bittnera
Text Box
E-06











LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                NOVEMBER 8, 2004 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, November 8, 
2004 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman 
Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick F. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Anita Elenbaum 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Elenbaum 
 
Resolution #LC2004-11-128 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Elenbaum at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of November 8, 2004 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of October 11, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2004-11-129 
Moved by Peard 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the October 11, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                NOVEMBER 8, 2004 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     TROY ROBIN, INC., requests a new full year (quota) Class C license with 

Official Permit (Food), Sunday Sales, Entertainment Permit, and new SDM, to 
be located at 5460 Corporate Dr., Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County.   Proposed 
Red Robin restaurant at old Cooker’s site. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were John Carlin and Lew Ansara. 
 
Red Robin is a full-service, family restaurant with approximate seating capacity of 230 
patrons.  The entertainment permit is required because of holiday events that will be 
geared to children.  This will be the 13th Red Robin restaurant in Michigan.  The 
management is planning a major renovation to the existing building that should begin in 
approximately one month.  They hope to open in March 2005.   
 
Resolution #LC2004-11-130 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that TROY ROBIN, INC., be granted a new full year (quota) Class C 
license with Official Permit (Food), Sunday Sales, Entertainment Permit, and new SDM, 
to be located at 5460 Corporate Dr., Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County.    
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2.   BRAVO DEVELOPMENT INC., d/b/a CUCINA DEVELOPMENT INC., requests 

a new full year (quota) Class C license with Official Permit (Food), Sunday 
Sales, and new SDM, to be located at 2800 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County.   Proposed new restaurant at Somerset South.    

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                NOVEMBER 8, 2004 
 

Page 3 of 3 

After renovations to an existing 6,800 square foot retail store, Brio Tuscan Grille will 
open at Somerset Collection South.  An outside entrance will be added.  This is a high-
end, upscale Italian restaurant with capacity for approximately 250 patrons.  The parent 
company currently has family-type restaurants located in Lansing, Rochester Hills, and 
Livonia, as well as nationwide.  They have never received a liquor violation.   
 
Resolution #LC2004-11-131 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that BRAVO DEVELOPMENT INC., d/b/a CUCINA DEVELOPMENT INC., 
be granted a new full year (quota) Class C license with Official Permit (Food), Sunday 
Sales, and new SDM, to be located at 2800 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Informational Items: 
 
4. Discussion of new Michigan subsidiary of Brinker Restaurant Corporation, 

specifically the MLCC requirement for a local government resolution approving 
“paper” transfers. 

 
There was a presentation by John Carlin followed by a brief discussion regarding this 
Informational Item.  There was no objection by the Committee, so the paperwork 
relating to this name change will proceed.   
  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 



 
 
December 13, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL A PRICE 

DIFFERENTIAL PAYMENT AND MOVING COST,  EMAD AND 
NIRAN YOUNO, 2955 THAMES, SIDWELL #88-20-25-229-005, 
BIG BEAVER, ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE ROAD PROJECT 
#01.105.5 

 
 

As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, the Real Estate & Development Department has reached an 
agreement with Emad and Niran Youno, to purchase property at 2955 Thames, 
having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-005.    

 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the property owners 
are eligible for a Price Differential Payment.  This amount has been calculated and 
is not to exceed $19,500.00, the amount necessary to acquire a comparable 
replacement dwelling. 
 
The Younos have submitted 3 estimates to move, with the overall lower estimate 
being $3,997.15.   
 
The property owners are eligible for additional relocation costs, including such 
expenses as mortgage differential payments, storage, and closing costs connected 
to the replacement dwelling.  Submission of these claims will be made at a later 
date. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this parcel, staff requests that 
City Council, approve a replacement housing payment not to exceed $19,500.00 
and a moving payment of $3,997.15. Funds will come from the Big Beaver Road– 
Rochester to Dequindre project. 

 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 
 
 

 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-07





 
December 14, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
  
RE: AGENDA ITEM - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL A PRICE 

DIFFERENTIAL PAYMENT AND MOVING COSTS,  SAOUD 
JAMO AND NIDHAL JAMO, 2907 THAMES, SIDWELL #88-20-
25-229-001, BIG BEAVER, ROCHESTER TO DEQUINDRE ROAD 
PROJECT #01.105.5 

 
 

As part of the proposed Big Beaver Road Widening Project – Rochester to 
Dequindre, the Real Estate & Development Department has reached an 
agreement with Saoud Jamo and Nidhal Jamo, to purchase property at 2907 
Thames, having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-001. Unfortunately, due to some mortgage 
complications, the property owners were not in a position to provide clear title to 
the City and City Council authorized us to initiate a condemnation action to resolve 
the title problems. A lawsuit has been filed and we anticipate that we will be 
awarded possession in early January of 2005. In order to avoid moving delays we 
are requesting authorization of part of the relocation costs.   

 
In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the property owners 
are eligible for a Price Differential Payment.  This amount has been calculated and 
is not to exceed $18,900.00, the amount necessary to acquire a comparable 
replacement dwelling. 
 
The Jamos are eligible to claim up to $1,800.00 as a fixed moving cost, or the 
lower of three estimates for a commercial move. 
 
The property owners are eligible for additional relocation costs, including such 
expenses as mortgage differential payments, storage, and closing costs connected 
to the replacement dwelling.  Submission of these claims will be made at a later 
date. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this parcel, staff requests that 
City Council, approve a replacement housing payment not to exceed $18,900.00 
and a fixed moving payment not to exceed $1,800.00, or not to exceed the lowest 
of 3 estimates for a commercial move 
 
Funds will come from the Big Beaver Road– Rochester to Dequindre project. 

 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-08





 
December 10, 2004 

 
 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
    
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Allocation of 2005 Tri-Party Program Funds 
                   Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends allocating the FY 2005 Tri-Party program funds to the Big Beaver, 
Rochester to Dequindre construction phase.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Troy allotment for the 2005 Tri-Party Program is $406,638 with one-third 
(1/3) or $135,546 of the allotment being the City’s share.  The Board of Road 
Commissioners for the County of Oakland and the Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners accounts for the remaining two-thirds (2/3) or $271,092 equally. 
 
The Big Beaver, Rochester to Dequindre widening project is anticipated to start 
construction in the summer of 2005.  The project will widen the existing boulevard to 
provide three (3) lanes in each direction between Rochester and Dequindre.  Right turn 
lanes will be constructed for eastbound Big Beaver to southbound Dequindre and 
westbound Big Beaver to northbound Rochester.  Concrete pavement, street 
approaches and concrete curb and gutter in poor condition will be removed and 
replaced.  A new wall and landscaping will be constructed in the area of the homes to 
be demolished along Thames and Sparta.  The estimated cost for the construction 
phase of the project is $3,200,000.  The City’s share, or local cost, is estimated at 
$1,000,000.   
 
A cost participation agreement with the Road Commission for Oakland County will be 
presented for consideration at a later date for the purposes of fixing the rights and 
obligations of each party relative to the 2005 Tri-Party program.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: William J. Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 
G:\Funding Issues\TRIPARTY\2005\FY 2005 Tri-Party Program_R1.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
E-09















December 14, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM - REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF COVENANT 

DEED WITH ATTACHED CONSERVATION EASEMENT & 
APPROVAL OF HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT, ELGIN 
CORNERS, LLC – SIDWELL #88-20-04-226-015 & 016 

 
 
As part of the development of Elgin Corners Subdivision located in the Northeast 
quarter of Section 4, the Real Estate & Development department has received a 
Covenant Deed for a detention basin with a Conservation Easement for this 
development. All engineering and construction conditions have now been met.  
The consideration amount for this document is $1.00.   
 
In addition to acceptance of the above document, Management requests that 
City Council approve the attached Hold Harmless Agreement in accordance with 
the subdivision agreement.  This agreement holds harmless the City of Troy 
against any liability in connection with the entire property. 
 
Management recommends that City Council accept the attached Covenant Deed 
with Conservation Easement and approve the Hold Harmless Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-10































bittnera
Text Box
E-11





TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: December 13, 2004 

  
  

SUBJECT: RWT Building LLC v. City of Troy- Partial Plat Vacation Action    
 

 
 

 
Enclosed please find a new lawsuit that was filed on behalf of RWT 

Building LLC.  RWT Building is the developer of the Crestwood Site 
Condominiums, which is located off Wattles Road, east of Livernois Road.  
The City of Troy has already approved this proposed development.   

 
The original plat for the property was the Crestfield Subdivision, 

which was recorded in 1924.  RWT alleges that the property could not be 
developed in accordance with this original plat, since it would not meet 
current City standards.  Under state statute, any modification to an 
originally recorded plat requires the initiation of a new lawsuit against the 
City, State Treasurer, utility companies, easement holders, and all 
property owners within 300 feet of the property.   

 
The lawsuit seeks to amend this original plat to allow the 

Crestwood Site Condominium development, as recently approved by City 
Council.  Our office will represent the City of Troy’s interests in this matter, 
absent objections from the City Council.     

   
As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please 

let me know.          
     
  
 
    

  
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-12































bittnera
Text Box
E-13



December 13, 2004 
 
 
TO:                John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:           Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
             Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
    
   
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - SALE OF ROCHESTER ROAD REMNANT 

PARCEL, PIN# 20-22-426-057, SECTION 22, PART OF LOTS 42, 
43, AND 45 OF SUPERVISORS PLAT # 17 

 
The City of Troy presently owns a parcel of land located on the southwest corner 
of Vanderpool Street and Rochester Road, which is a remnant left from the 
Rochester Road re-construction project. This Parcel contains 20,063 square feet 
and is a unbuildable remnant parcel as presently zoned. The parcel is described 
as:  
 
Lots 42, 43 and 45 of ”Supervisors Plat# 17, of part of the southeast ¼ of section 
22, T.2.N. R.11.E. City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded on Liber 
28, page 36, of plats, Oakland County Records. Except the east 42 feet of lots 43 
and 45, also reserving an easement for sidewalk, drainage and public utilities 
over the west 10 feet of the east 52 feet of lots 43 and 45, including a 25 foot 
triangle at the northeast corner of the described parcel.                           
Sidwell# 88-20-22-426-057 
   
Cueter Investment Company would like to purchase this parcel, combine it with 
the abutting parcel on the west and develop a commercial project. This would 
require the rezoning of the abutting parcel to B-1, which is now zoned R-1E.  
 
The City owned parcel has been appraised to have a value of $200,000.00, by a 
state licensed appraiser, and reviewed by another state licensed appraiser. 
Cueter Investment Company has submitted an Offer to Purchase this parcel, at 
the appraised value with the conditions that the abutting parcel on the west is 
rezoned to B-1 and that the city will furnish the environmental report that was 
done at the time the City acquired the property for the Rochester Road project.   
 
Cueter Investment Company would need to go through the normal rezoning 
process for the abutting parcel as well as going through the same site plan 
review process as any other development. 
 
The City parcel cannot be developed as a stand-alone parcel as zoned, and a re-
zoning could make it a buildable parcel but would result in a small undesirable 
commercial building site. It is in combination with a rezoned adjacent parcel that 
a much more desirable building site is achieved. It is recommended by City 

bittnera
Text Box
E-14



management that City Council approve the sale to Cueter Investment Company 
for the appraised value according to the attached Offer to Purchase. 
 
City Council Res. #85-254, which is attached, authorizes remnant parcel sales to 
abutting property owners, or to persons with a controlling interest in the abutting 
property, at appraised value. 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Prepared by:  Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 



 

PARCEL THAT IS 
PROPOSED TO BE 
COMBINED WITH 
THE CITY PARCEL

CITY 
PARCEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



OFFER TO PURCHASE 
CITY OF TROY 
REAL ESTATE 

1. THE UNDERSIGNED, Cueter Investment Company hereby offers and agrees to 
purchase from the City of Troy the following land situated in the City of Troy, Oakland 
County, Michigan, described as follows:  

 
See Exhibit “A” Attached Hereto And By Reference Made A Part Hereof 

                    
             Sidwell # 88-20-22-426-057 

 
and to pay therefore the sum of   ($200,000.00) Two Hundred ThousandDollars subject 
to the existing building and use restrictions, easements, zoning ordinances, and other 
deed restrictions and conditions as specified herein. 

THE SALE TO BE CONSUMMATED BY: 
            The delivery of a Warranty Deed conveying a marketable title. Payment of purchase 

money is to be made in cash or certified check made payable to the City of Troy  
 
2. As evidence of title, Seller agrees to furnish Purchaser as soon as possible a 

Commitment for Title Insurance for information purposes.  Purchase of Title Insurance 
shall be the option of the Purchaser at Purchaser’s expense. 

 
3.         When this offer is accepted by the Seller and if title can be conveyed in the condition 

required hereunder, the Purchaser agrees to complete the sale within 30 days after 
delivery of the commitment of title insurance. 

 
4. If objection to the title is made in the Commitment for Title Insurance or based upon a 

written opinion of Purchaser’s attorney after examination of the Abstract that the title is 
not in the condition required for performance hereunder, the Seller shall have 30 days 
from the date he is notified in writing of the particular defects claimed either (1) to fulfill 
the requirements in said commitment or to remedy the title defects set forth in said 
attorney’s opinion or (2) to refund the deposit in full termination of this agreement or if 
unable to furnish satisfactory title.  If the Seller is able to comply with such requirements 
or remedy such defects within the time specified as evidenced by written notification, 
revised commitment or endorsement to commitment, the Purchaser agrees to complete 
the sale within 10 days of receipt thereof.  If the Seller is unable to furnish satisfactory 
title within the time specified, the deposit shall be refunded forthwith in full termination of 
this agreement.   

5. Purchaser understands and agrees that although the property being conveyed may at the 
time of conveyance be tax exempt, and that upon acceptance of this offer to purchase 
the property will be placed on the tax assessor’s roll.   

 
6. The covenants herein shall bind and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns of the respective parties. 
7. By the execution of this instrument the Purchaser acknowledges THAT HE HAS 

EXAMINED THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PREMISES and is satisfied with the physical 
condition of structures and/or land thereon. 

8. The closing of this sale shall take place at the offices of the City of Troy unless otherwise 
agreed. 

 
9. Purchaser agrees to comply with Troy City Council Resolution #85-254, a copy of which 

is attached, and understands that this sale is contingent upon City Council approval.   
 
10. Deed Restrictions and Subsequent Conditions:  The sale of this property is conditioned 

upon the following deed restrictions which shall be recorded at the time of sale and shall 
be binding upon the Purchaser, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns: See Attachment  “A” 

11       Additional Conditions: 
             1.Sale is contingent upon the rezoning of the adjacent property owned or controlled by    

purchaser to B-2, Parcel I.D. # 88-20-22-426-045, before closing. 
             2. City of Troy shall furnish purchaser with the Phase 1 environmental report dated 
                  8/28/1993 prepared prior to the City’s purchase of the property. 







 

 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 

CITY OF TROY PROPERTY SALE 

DEED RESTRICTION 

 

A. Construction shall take place only as indicated on the site plan including the number of Units, 
as submitted to and approved by the Building Department and Planning Department of the 
City of Troy and all construction shall conform to all codes of the City of Troy. Purchaser shall 
complete the fee purchase of other parcels, which comprise the full site, if any. 
 

B. The purchaser shall construct or pay for the construction of any and all improvements to 
public facilities or private improvements as required by ordinances or design standards of the 
City of Troy 
 

C. All buildings shall be constructed as indicated on the architectural rendering as submitted to 
and approved by the Troy Planning Department and Building Department; no other alteration, 
addition or deletion shall occur. 
 

D. The Purchaser shall combine this parcel description with adjacent properties owned or 
controlled by Purchaser on City tax records. 
 

E. These deed restrictions and the full purchase agreement shall be recorded with and as part 
of the deed at the Oakland County Register of Deeds. 
 

F. The Purchaser agrees upon closing this transaction that all restrictions and conditions shall 
bind and inure to Purchaser, heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, and 
that they will reimburse to the City all costs incurred by the City in the future, including court 
and attorney fees, in order for the City to gain compliance with this agreement and the stated 
restrictions. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

 

Lot 42, 43,and 45 of “Supervisor’s Plat No. 17”, of part of the Southeast ¼ of Section 22, 
Township 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, as Recorded in Liber 
28, Page 36, of Plats, Oakland County Records. Except the East 42 feet of lots 43 and 45; also 
reserving an Easement for Sidewalk, Drainage, and Public Utilities over the West 10 feet of the 
East 52 feet of Lots 43 and 45, including a 25-foot tri-angle at the Northeast corner of the 
described parcel.  

 

 
 







3/11/85 
 

TABLED ITEMS 
 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH POLICY GOVERNING DISPOSAL (SALE) OF EXCESS 
RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 
Resolution #85-254 
Moved by Liebrecht 
Supported by Stine 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Troy endeavors to attain the highest and best land use, effective 
growth control measures and to enhance the health, safety and welfare of the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 12 of the Troy City Charter requires that . . . "in all sales or purchases in excess of $3,000 
(1) the sales or purchases shall be approved by the City Council, (b) sealed bids shall be obtained, except 
where the City Council shall determine that an emergency exists or that the public interest will be best served 
without obtaining sealed bids. . .";  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council may from time to time determine that the sale 
of certain parcels of land will best serve the public interest; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy may determine that the public interest 
will best be served without obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant parcels which remain after required 
right-of-way is taken when a purchase agreement is offered to the City of Troy by a prospective buyer which: 
 

1. Has submitted evidence of ownership or control of an assembly of adjoining land of sufficient size so as 
to achieve what is believed to be the best possible development as determined by the City Council after 
review and recommendation from the City Manager 

 
2. Has submitted a site plan which has been drawn to sufficient detail to indicate any and all features 

which are governed by codes of the City of Troy, said site plan shall not include variances from any 
code of the City of Troy. 

 
3. Is accompanied by a petition for rezoning, if necessary, in compliance with the Master Land Use Plan of 

the City of Troy or as may be determined by the City Council of the City of Troy as being the most 
appropriate land use; and 

 
4. Commits the buyer to construct or pay for the construction of any and all improvements to public 

facilities or private improvements as required by ordinances or design standards of the City of Troy; and 
 

5. Commits the buyer to construct or pay for the construction of any and all improvements to public 
facilities or private improvements as required by ordinances or design standards of the City of Troy; and 

 
6. Is accompanied by architectural renderings of all building indicated on the site plan along with a 

description of building materials and methods to permit evaluation of building quality; 
 

7. Is accompanied by a draft of proposed deed restrictions which will be imposed upon the owner of the 
purchaser of the City-owned property, the adjoining land included in the site plan and their assigns and 
successors which embodies all of the aforementioned requirements and conditions; and 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Council retains discretionary authority to determine the applicability 
of this policy. 
 
Yeas:  All-7 
 



G:\   City Council\Memos\Election Equipment Grant Application Authorization Memo.doc 

   Memorandum 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: December 15, 2004 
Subject: State of Michigan Election Equipment Grant Application Authorization 
 
 
The City of Troy is slated to receive new Optical Scan voting equipment and 
Election Management equipment in 2005. As part of the implementation process, 
the City is required to submit a grant application to Oakland County for 
forwarding to the State of Michigan, prior to the end of January 2005. 
 
The attached resolution has been forwarded by Oakland County for adoption. 
 
The M100, Election Systems and Software, Inc., Election Voting Equipment and 
Election Management System was selected by a majority of the Clerks of 
Oakland County and was formally declared by the Oakland County Clerk as the 
countywide system. I had the opportunity to be involved with the State of 
Michigan JEC committee for voting equipment selection for the State of Michigan 
as the local clerk representative. As a member of that committee I was able to 
participate in the very detailed equipment presentations and had hands on 
contact with each of the three voting systems. It is my belief that the ES&S M100 
Optical Scan Voting Equipment and Election Management System would best 
service the City of Troy. Based on my experience, I recommended the M100 and 
selected it as my first choice for election equipment for the City of Troy and 
Oakland County. 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-15



CITY OF TROY 
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
ELECTION EQUIPMENT GRANT APPLICATION AUTHORIZATION 

 
At a Regular meeting of the Troy City Council held on Monday, December 20, 2004, the 
following Resolution was passed: 
 
Resolution #2004-12-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council wishes to apply to the Secretary of State for a grant 
to purchase an optical scan voting system and related Election Management System 
(EMS) software to comply with the Help America Vote Act (HAVA); 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has chosen to submit a grant application for a new 
optical scan voting system in 2005; and 
 
WHEREAS, That the County Clerk must have this resolution as Proof of Authority for 
entering into upcoming Grant Agreements with the State by the end of January 2005 in 
order to meet the wishes of the majority of the local clerks in this county that Oakland 
County qualify for ordering the new voting system in the 05-1 order period in early 
February 2005. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Clerk is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to submit this grant application on behalf of the City of Troy, Oakland 
County, Michigan, on this 20th day of December, 2004. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Absent:       
 
 
I, Tonni L. Bartholomew, duly appointed Clerk of the City of Troy, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Troy 
City Council at a Regular Meeting duly called and held on Monday, the Twentieth day of 
December, 2004. 
 
 
 
  
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 
 



bittnera
Text Box
F-02







































































bittnera
Text Box
F-03































TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Carolyn F. Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: November 22, 2004 

  
  

SUBJECT: Class C “quota” licenses 
 

 
 
 

On November 8, 2004, two applicants for Class C “quota” liquor licenses 
appeared before the Liquor Advisory Committee.  One applicant, Troy Robin, Inc. 
(“Troy Robin”) seeks to open a Red Robin restaurant at 5460 Corporate Drive, the 
former site of the now-defunct Cooker’s restaurant.  A second applicant, Bravo 
Development, Inc., d/b/a Cucina Development, Inc. (“Bravo/Cucina”) also requests a 
license in association with opening a new restaurant in the South Mall, Somerset, 
2800 W. Big Beaver Road.  The Committee recommended approval of both of these 
requests.  In the past, some members of City Council have expressed concern about 
a complete elimination of the allocated quota licenses, and have inquired about the 
potential impacts and available alternatives for liquor license applicants once the 
quota licenses are depleted.       
 

“Quota” Licenses 
 

 Approval of the Troy Robin and Bravo/Cucina requests would exhaust the 
City’s current allotment of Class C licenses.  As you may know, state law allows 
issuance of one on-premises consumption liquor license for each 1,500 of population 
or major fraction thereof; these are commonly known as “quota” licenses.  A 
governmental unit’s population is usually determined by the federal census occurring 
every ten years.  If Troy’s population grows at historically documented rates during the 
next six years, it is anticipated that under the next census (2010), the City will probably 
be granted some additional quota licenses by the state Liquor Control Commission 
(“Commission”).   
  

Escrowed Licenses 
 

 In the interim, there are other avenues by which subsequent applicants may 
secure licenses.  An applicant may purchase an escrowed license from another 
licensee located in Oakland County.  An escrowed license becomes available when a 
licensee goes out of business or otherwise ceases operations.  The license remains 
the property of the original licensee, but is not in active use.   For example, the Class 
C liquor license for Cookers is now in escrow, and has become an asset of Cooker’s 
bankruptcy estate, which will likely be acquired by one of its creditors.   As of this 
writing, the Commission advises that there are 67 escrowed licenses available in 
Oakland County.  Potential future liquor license applicants in Troy could purchase an 
escrowed license from any Oakland County community.  The acquisition of an 



escrowed liquor license would require the payment of “market rate” to the original 
licensee.   

 
Resort Licenses 

 
In the event there are no escrowed licenses available for purchase, an 

applicant in Troy may seek a resort license.  In order to qualify for a resort liquor 
license, the Commission must determine that the proposed licensee’s business and 
operation is geared towards the attraction and accommodation of tourists and visitors 
to the resort area.   Neither the statute nor the administrative rules geographically 
define what the Commission may consider to be a “resort area”.  However, it is clear 
that the resort licensee must have a primary purpose other than the sale of alcohol.   
In addition, a resort license applicant must make a capital investment of at least 
$75,000 in the associated real property, leasehold improvements, and fixtures.  If the 
resort licensee goes out of business, the license then reverts to the Commission.  No 
resort license will be granted if there are escrowed licenses readily available1 for 
purchase by the applicant.  There are currently 67 escrowed licenses in Oakland 
County that could likely be purchased at market rate.   

   
 

Resort Economic Development Licenses 
 
This license requires a finding by the Commission that the applicant’s business 

and operation, in addition to being geared toward attraction of tourists, reflects a 
capital investment of at least $1,500,000, and forbids on-premises casino gambling.  It 
is not transferable and must be returned to the Commission if the applicant ceases 
operations. This license will not be granted if escrow licenses are readily available to 
the applicant.  There are currently 67 escrowed licenses in Oakland County that could 
likely be purchased at market rate. The original law allowed the Commission to grant 
20 such licenses for the years 2001 and 2002, and the statute was amended to 
extend the period through 2003 and 2004.  It is anticipated that continued revisions 
will ensue in similar two-year intervals.  

 
 Development District Licenses 

 
Additionally, the Commission may issue a Development District Class C 

license for a full-service restaurant located in a development district with a population 
of 50,000 or less.  Troy’s Downtown Development Authority (DDA) may qualify as an 
eligible development district.  The eligible licensee must be a restaurant, located within 
the district, that is open to the public at least ten hours daily, five days per week, seats 
at least 25 people, and has a minimum of 50% of its gross sales from food on 
premises.  In order to be considered for this license, the DDA must hold a public 

                                                 
1 The Liquor Control Act defines “readily available” to mean “available upon a standard of economic 
feasibility” applicable to the applicant’s specific circumstances.  Issues to consider include the fair market 
value of the license, the size and scope of the proposed operation, and the impact of mandatory 
contractual terms governing the sale of the license.  MCLA 436.1531(18)(b). 



hearing to establish that the issuance of the development district liquor license would 
prevent further deterioration with the district, and promote economic growth therein.  
City Council would also need to agree with the DDA determination.  This license 
would only be transferable within the development district, and only one such license 
could be issued per applicant.  If sales of food for on-premises consumption fell below 
50% of the gross receipts in any licensing year, the license would be revocable by the 
Commission after due notice and proper hearing.  As with the resort and resort 
economic development licenses, the development district license is not available 
unless there are no quota or escrowed licenses readily available.  As previously 
stated, there are currently 67 escrowed licenses that could likely be purchased at 
market rate.  The Commission would approve a maximum of two such licenses in a 
city with a population over 50,000 persons, such as Troy. 

 
 

Other Licenses  
 
State law also authorizes the Commission to grant on-premises licenses for 

use by, or upon the campuses of, public universities with enrollment of at least 10,000 
students.   It is unclear whether these provisions would have any application within the 
City of Troy.  There are also licenses available for applicants meeting criteria 
inapplicable to the City, such as location in a rural area with poverty or unemployment 
rates exceeding the statewide average. 

 
 

Conclusion 
 
If Troy’s supply of quota liquor licenses is depleted, then all future license 

applicants will need to purchase one of the escrowed Oakland County licenses at 
market rate.  Given the vicissitudes of the current economic climate, it is unlikely that 
there will be a complete lack of readily available escrow licenses between now and 
the year 2010.  We would be pleased to answer any questions you may have.      

 
 

  
   



bittnera
Text Box
F-04































TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Carolyn F. Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: November 22, 2004 

  
  

SUBJECT: Class C “quota” licenses 
 

 
 
 

On November 8, 2004, two applicants for Class C “quota” liquor licenses 
appeared before the Liquor Advisory Committee.  One applicant, Troy Robin, Inc. 
(“Troy Robin”) seeks to open a Red Robin restaurant at 5460 Corporate Drive, the 
former site of the now-defunct Cooker’s restaurant.  A second applicant, Bravo 
Development, Inc., d/b/a Cucina Development, Inc. (“Bravo/Cucina”) also requests a 
license in association with opening a new restaurant in the South Mall, Somerset, 
2800 W. Big Beaver Road.  The Committee recommended approval of both of these 
requests.  In the past, some members of City Council have expressed concern about 
a complete elimination of the allocated quota licenses, and have inquired about the 
potential impacts and available alternatives for liquor license applicants once the 
quota licenses are depleted.       
 

“Quota” Licenses 
 

 Approval of the Troy Robin and Bravo/Cucina requests would exhaust the 
City’s current allotment of Class C licenses.  As you may know, state law allows 
issuance of one on-premises consumption liquor license for each 1,500 of population 
or major fraction thereof; these are commonly known as “quota” licenses.  A 
governmental unit’s population is usually determined by the federal census occurring 
every ten years.  If Troy’s population grows at historically documented rates during the 
next six years, it is anticipated that under the next census (2010), the City will probably 
be granted some additional quota licenses by the state Liquor Control Commission 
(“Commission”).   
  

Escrowed Licenses 
 

 In the interim, there are other avenues by which subsequent applicants may 
secure licenses.  An applicant may purchase an escrowed license from another 
licensee located in Oakland County.  An escrowed license becomes available when a 
licensee goes out of business or otherwise ceases operations.  The license remains 
the property of the original licensee, but is not in active use.   For example, the Class 
C liquor license for Cookers is now in escrow, and has become an asset of Cooker’s 
bankruptcy estate, which will likely be acquired by one of its creditors.   As of this 
writing, the Commission advises that there are 67 escrowed licenses available in 
Oakland County.  Potential future liquor license applicants in Troy could purchase an 
escrowed license from any Oakland County community.  The acquisition of an 



escrowed liquor license would require the payment of “market rate” to the original 
licensee.   

 
Resort Licenses 

 
In the event there are no escrowed licenses available for purchase, an 

applicant in Troy may seek a resort license.  In order to qualify for a resort liquor 
license, the Commission must determine that the proposed licensee’s business and 
operation is geared towards the attraction and accommodation of tourists and visitors 
to the resort area.   Neither the statute nor the administrative rules geographically 
define what the Commission may consider to be a “resort area”.  However, it is clear 
that the resort licensee must have a primary purpose other than the sale of alcohol.   
In addition, a resort license applicant must make a capital investment of at least 
$75,000 in the associated real property, leasehold improvements, and fixtures.  If the 
resort licensee goes out of business, the license then reverts to the Commission.  No 
resort license will be granted if there are escrowed licenses readily available1 for 
purchase by the applicant.  There are currently 67 escrowed licenses in Oakland 
County that could likely be purchased at market rate.   

   
 

Resort Economic Development Licenses 
 
This license requires a finding by the Commission that the applicant’s business 

and operation, in addition to being geared toward attraction of tourists, reflects a 
capital investment of at least $1,500,000, and forbids on-premises casino gambling.  It 
is not transferable and must be returned to the Commission if the applicant ceases 
operations. This license will not be granted if escrow licenses are readily available to 
the applicant.  There are currently 67 escrowed licenses in Oakland County that could 
likely be purchased at market rate. The original law allowed the Commission to grant 
20 such licenses for the years 2001 and 2002, and the statute was amended to 
extend the period through 2003 and 2004.  It is anticipated that continued revisions 
will ensue in similar two-year intervals.  

 
 Development District Licenses 

 
Additionally, the Commission may issue a Development District Class C 

license for a full-service restaurant located in a development district with a population 
of 50,000 or less.  Troy’s Downtown Development Authority (DDA) may qualify as an 
eligible development district.  The eligible licensee must be a restaurant, located within 
the district, that is open to the public at least ten hours daily, five days per week, seats 
at least 25 people, and has a minimum of 50% of its gross sales from food on 
premises.  In order to be considered for this license, the DDA must hold a public 

                                                 
1 The Liquor Control Act defines “readily available” to mean “available upon a standard of economic 
feasibility” applicable to the applicant’s specific circumstances.  Issues to consider include the fair market 
value of the license, the size and scope of the proposed operation, and the impact of mandatory 
contractual terms governing the sale of the license.  MCLA 436.1531(18)(b). 



hearing to establish that the issuance of the development district liquor license would 
prevent further deterioration with the district, and promote economic growth therein.  
City Council would also need to agree with the DDA determination.  This license 
would only be transferable within the development district, and only one such license 
could be issued per applicant.  If sales of food for on-premises consumption fell below 
50% of the gross receipts in any licensing year, the license would be revocable by the 
Commission after due notice and proper hearing.  As with the resort and resort 
economic development licenses, the development district license is not available 
unless there are no quota or escrowed licenses readily available.  As previously 
stated, there are currently 67 escrowed licenses that could likely be purchased at 
market rate.  The Commission would approve a maximum of two such licenses in a 
city with a population over 50,000 persons, such as Troy. 

 
 

Other Licenses  
 
State law also authorizes the Commission to grant on-premises licenses for 

use by, or upon the campuses of, public universities with enrollment of at least 10,000 
students.   It is unclear whether these provisions would have any application within the 
City of Troy.  There are also licenses available for applicants meeting criteria 
inapplicable to the City, such as location in a rural area with poverty or unemployment 
rates exceeding the statewide average. 

 
 

Conclusion 
 
If Troy’s supply of quota liquor licenses is depleted, then all future license 

applicants will need to purchase one of the escrowed Oakland County licenses at 
market rate.  Given the vicissitudes of the current economic climate, it is unlikely that 
there will be a complete lack of readily available escrow licenses between now and 
the year 2010.  We would be pleased to answer any questions you may have.      

 
 

  
   



 
 
 
 
November 29, 2004 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Asst. City Manager/Services 
  Steve Vandette, City Engineer 

John K. Abraham, Traffic Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – Traffic Committee Recommendations - November 17, 2004 
 
 
 
At the Traffic Committee meeting of November 17, 2004, the following recommendations were 
made for City Council approval: 
 
1. Recommend no changes at Donaldson and Square Lake (Item 3). 
  
2. Recommend installing all-way STOP signs at the intersection of Larchwood and 

Bellingham, and striping the intersection to designate the separate lanes, if deemed 
necessary by the Traffic Engineer (Item 4). 

 
3. Recommend that the City request the Road Commission for Oakland County to change 

operation of the traffic signal on westbound Maple at Chicago Road to make add a 
flashing red phase (Item 6, Visitors’ Time). 

 
JKA/ln 
 
 
 
 
 
2004 Minutes and Agendas\October 20\TC Recommendations.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
F-05



DRAFT 
 
The Traffic Committee meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. in the Lower Level 
Conference Room at Troy City Hall on November 17, 2004 by Charles Solis, 
Chairperson. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
PRESENT: John Diefenbaker 
 Jan Hubbell 
 Richard Minnick 

Charles Solis 
Peter Ziegenfelder 
Grace Yau, Student Representative 
 

ABSENT: Ted Halsey 
 Richard Kilmer 
 
Also present: John Abraham, Traffic Engineer 
 Lt. Scott McWilliams, Police Department 
 Lt. Bob Matlick, Fire Department 
   
And  Item 3 Barbara Fowler, Troy Schools, 4400 Livernois 
    Gerald Behl, 67 Hart 
 
  Item 4 Richard Kandarian, Metro Drill Corp., 1863 Larchwood 
 
Motion to Excuse 
 
RESOLUTION #TC-2004-11-74 
Motion by Hubbell 
Seconded by Minnick 
 
To excuse Mr. Kilmer and Mr. Halsey. 
 
YEAS:  All-5 
 
NAYS:  None 
 
ABSENT: 2 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
2. Minutes – October 20, 2004
 
RESOLUTION #TC-2004-11-75 
Motion by Diefenbaker 
Seconded by Hubbell 
 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES—November 17, 2004  PAGE 2 

To approve the October 20, 2004 minutes as printed. 
 
YEAS:  All-5 
 
NAYS:  None 
 
ABSENT: 2 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
3. Install Traffic Signal at Square Lake and Donaldson 
 

(This item was tabled at the October meeting to obtain input from the Troy School 
District) 

  
Mrs. Bela Shah, 123 Millstone Street, indicated that it is very difficult to make turns 
onto Square Lake from Donaldson.  She also mentioned that this is a dangerous 
intersection and that she has seen near crashes many times.  The morning peak 
hour between 7:00 am and 8:00 am is particularly busy due to the traffic from 
Smith Middle School at the south end of Donaldson, and she feels that a traffic 
signal will help make the intersection safer. 
 
This is a 3-way intersection with Donaldson terminating into Square Lake road.  
The intersection is also around 1,350 feet from the signalized intersection of 
Square Lake and Livernois.  Traffic signals are installed at locations that satisfy 
some thresholds of traffic volumes, traffic crashes traffic delays as stated in the 
Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MMUTCD).  Traffic volume 
and traffic crash studies were performed for this intersection to see if the 
“thresholds,” also called “warrants,” are met for the intersection. 
 
The intersection is controlled by a STOP sign on Donaldson at Square Lake, and 
sight distance studies show that there are no major sight obstructions at this 
intersection.  Donaldson is a residential street and the approaches to Donaldson 
on Square Lake provide for a passing lane and a right turn lane to make left and 
right turns onto Donaldson safely. 
 
Traffic volume studies show that around 7,600 vehicles enter the intersection from 
and east and west while around 1500 vehicles enter the intersection northbound 
from Donaldson in a day.  There is heavy use of the intersection between 7:00 am 
and 8:00 am.  During this one hour there were around 340 vehicles going east and 
west on Square Lake and around 250 vehicles going northbound onto Square 
Lake.  However, none of the traffic volume warrants stated in the MMUTCD are 
met for this intersection.  Adding traffic signals normally increases congestion on 
the major road; in this case on Square Lake Road. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES—November 17, 2004  PAGE 3 

 
A crash analysis revealed the following reported crashes in the vicinity of the 
intersection (200 feet radius): 
 

Type of crash 2003 2002 2001 
Angle (broad side) 1 1 1 
Sideswipe 1 1 1 
Rear end  1  

 
The MMUTCD traffic crash warrant states that a traffic signal is warranted if the 
installation of the signal will prevent at least 5 “correctible” crashes in a year.  
Traffic signals normally correct the angle-type crash concerns and as seen, the 
average crash experience at this intersection has been one per year.  Therefore, 
the traffic crash warrant also is not met for the intersection. National studies also 
show that installation of traffic signals that are not “warranted” as per the MMUTCD 
can result in higher traffic crash experience.  Unwarranted signals have been 
documented to increase number of crashes, particularly of the rear-end type.   
 
Traffic signals are located preferably at half-mile points for effective traffic flow.  
When the distance between signals is less than a half mile, progressive traffic flow 
may be adversely affected and may result in higher congestion, and backing up of 
traffic from one intersection to the other, creating gridlock.  A signal at Donaldson 
would be around 1400 feet from the one at Livernois and Square Lake, which is 
around a quarter of a mile.   
 
Traffic volumes and traffic crash history indicate that a traffic signal installation is 
not warranted for this intersection.  However, Mr. Kilmer thinks that there should be 
a signal at this location that would be operational only during school times for the 
safety of the children walking the way to school. 
 
This item was first considered at the October meeting.  No one, including the 
petitioner, attended the meeting to address the committee.  However, Mr. Kilmer 
suggested that there could be a signal at this location that would be operational 
only during school times for the safety of the children walking to school.  At that 
time, the committee tabled the item to give the Traffic Engineer an opportunity to 
consult with the Troy School District and Smith Middle School staff.   
 
Dr. Abraham stated that if a traffic signal were installed solely for the purpose of 
enhancing safety of school traffic, cost participation from the school board would 
be required.  Traffic signals cost around $100,000 to $120,000 installed, and it 
may be hard to justify public funds to pay for the signal when the major benefit is 
only to school traffic. 
 
Barbara Fowler addressed the committee as a representative of Troy Schools.  
She said that she, Dr. Jopke, Superintendent of Schools, and Stu Redpath, 
principal of Smith Middle School, see no need for a traffic signal at this location.  
There are no students who have to cross Square Lake Road, as all students are 
bussed to school. 

 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES—November 17, 2004  PAGE 4 

RESOLUTION #TC-2004-11-76 
Motion by Hubbell 
Seconded by Minnick 
 
To recommend no changes. 
 
YEAS:  All-5 
 
NAYS:  None 
 
ABSENT: 2 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
4. Install All-Way STOP Signs at Larchwood and Bellingham 

 
John Marion of 1863 Larchwood and Carol Marshall of Executone 
Telecommunications have requested all-way STOP signs at the intersection of 
Larchwood and Bellingham.  Mr. Marion contacted Lt. McWilliams regarding 
speeding concerns on Larchwood and in response the radar trailer was deployed 
on the street in addition to selective enforcement.  Mr. Marion reported that he was 
in a near miss traffic crash at the intersection.  The intersection has a small jog and 
since Bellingham has opened up to both Big Beaver and Maple, there is a marked 
increase in Bellingham traffic.  Ms. Marshall wrote a letter to the Michigan 
Department of Transportation regarding this intersection, but since MDOT does 
not have jurisdiction over this intersection the matter was referred back to us. 
 
The intersection of Larchwood and Bellingham is in the predominantly industrial 
area of Troy.  Larchwood runs west off John R road and intersects Bellingham 
around quarter of a mile from John R.  Bellingham today runs from Maple to Big 
Beaver.  Previously Bellingham ended north of Larchwood, but with the 
development of the Big Beaver Airport into an industrial/office area, the road was 
extended all the way to Big Beaver. The intersection is controlled by 2 STOP signs 
on Bellingham at Larchwood, installed many years ago.   The north and south legs 
of the intersection are offset by a few feet and the west leg of the intersection has 
a curve just west of the intersection.  Field observations show that there were 
many STOP sign violations at the intersections and some confusion at the 
intersection due t the geometrics.   
 
All-way STOP signs are meant to assign right-of-way at high volume intersections, 
and have been demonstrated not to be an effective speed control device. These 
are installed in accordance with the Michigan Manual of Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices (MMUTCD) that stipulates thresholds for traffic volumes and traffic 
crashes that have to be met.  The MMUTCD states that installation of a multi-way 
STOP would be warranted under one of the following conditions: 

 
��Where traffic signals are warranted and urgently needed, the multi-way STOP 

is an interim measure that can be installed quickly to control traffic while 
arrangements are being made for traffic signal installation. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES—November 17, 2004  PAGE 5 

��An accident problem as indicated by five or more reported accidents of the type 
susceptible to correction by a multi-way STOP during a 12-month period. Such 
accidents include right and left turn collisions. 

 
��Minimum Traffic Volume – The total vehicular volume entering the intersection 

from all approaches must average at least 500 vehicles per hour for any eight 
hours of an average day. 

 
Traffic studies indicate that Bellingham carries around 4800 vehicles in a day while 
Larchwood carries around 3100 vehicles in a day.  The minimum traffic volume 
warrant is met for 5 hours of the day when 500 vehicles or more enter the 
intersection.  For another five hours of the day the intersection had 400 or more 
entering vehicles.   
 
Traffic crash records show that there were 4 broadside-type reported crashes at 
this intersection during the last 3 years. 
 
Considering the high volume of traffic and intersection geometrics, four way STOP 
signs may help decrease confusion and increase safety at the intersection. 
 
Richard Kandarian, owner of Michigan Drill Corp, addressed the committee on his 
own behalf and at the request of John Marion, the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Kandarian said at times oncoming traffic is facing each other because there is 
a jog in the road and he has seen many close calls at this intersection. There is a 
high traffic volume throughout the day, mostly heavy trucks, which can cause a 
sight obstruction.  Motorists unfamiliar with the area cannot see the dogleg in the 
road until it is too late. 
 
James D. Burg, President of James Burg Trucking  Company, 1743 Larchwood, 
sent a letter (attached) to the committee supporting the proposal for four-way 
STOP signs at this intersection. 
 
Mr. Marion has been in touch with Lt. McWilliams about speeding in the area, the 
Traffic Safety Unit had been very helpful in putting out the speed trailer stepping up 
enforcement. The Lieutenant agrees that all-way STOP signs would increase 
safety in the area. 
 

RESOLUTION #TC-2004-11-77 
Motion by Hubbell 
Seconded by Ziegenfelder 
 
To recommend installing all-way STOP signs at the intersection of Larchwood and 
Bellingham, and to recommend striping the intersection to guide motorists through the 
dogleg, if deemed necessary by the Traffic Engineer. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES—November 17, 2004  PAGE 6 

 
YEAS:  All-5 
 
NAYS:  None 
 
ABSENT: 2 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
5. Visitors’ Time 
 

Gerald Behl, 67 Hart, appeared to address the committee on items not on the 
agenda.  He identified a possible hazard at Long Lake Road just west of Livernois, 
near Trevarrow Hardware.  There are three small trees in the median which 
obscure vision.  The Traffic Engineer will look at the area. 
 
Mr. Behl also feels the crisscrossing traffic at the turnaround and Trevarrow’s 
driveway is confusing and dangerous.  He suggested having the westernmost 
driveway be “in” only and the one closer to Livernois be “out” only.  This is 
something over which the City has no jurisdiction.  The private property owner 
would have to do this. 
 
The Committee members feel that the left turn traffic signal on westbound Maple 
at Chicago stays red much too long.  Lt. McWilliams agreed that it needs a flashing 
red phase. 
 

RESOLUTION #TC-2004-11-78 
Motion by Hubbell 
Seconded by Ziegenfelder 

 
To request the Oakland County Road Commission to change the configuration of the 
traffic signal on westbound Maple at Chicago to add a flashing red phase. 

 
YEAS:  All-5 
 
NAYS:  None 
 
ABSENT: 2 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
6. Other Business
 
Dr. Abraham asked Ms. Yau how the traffic situation has been at Troy High School.  She 
said it is always congested, due in large part to the parents who drive their students to 
school.  Dr. Abraham said the school is constructing a new parking lot to help ease 
congestion. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES—November 17, 2004  PAGE 7 

 
John Diefenbaker informed the committee that he would be out of the state for the 
January and February meetings. 
 
Lt. Matlick related his experiences test-driving a fire truck over the new speed humps on 
Randall and Leetonia Streets. He found it a very jarring experience, and the glove box 
door fell completely off when the truck bounced.  Even though the volunteer firemen are 
warned about the humps, in the excitement of a fire run they might be likely to forget.  He 
recommends that warning signs be installed. 
 
RESOLUTION #TC-2004-11-79 
Motion by Hubbell 
Seconded by Diefenbaker 
 
To cancel the December meeting.   
 
YEAS:  All-5 
 
NAYS:  None 
 
ABSENT: 2 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:08 p.m.  The next meeting is scheduled for January 19, 
2005. 
 
____________________________ 

Charles Solis 
 
 
 
 
 

Traffic Committee\2004 Minutes and Agendas\November 17\minutes draft.doc 



















bittnera
Text Box
F-06





 
 

December 8, 2004 
 
 
Ms. Jodie N. Taylor, Enforcement Specialist 
Field Operations Section, Water Division 
Department of Environmental Quality 
525 West Allegan Street 
PO Box 30273 
Lansing, MI 48909-7773 
 
Re: City of Troy 
 Administrative Consent Order 
 (ADC-SW05-009) 
 
Dear Ms. Taylor: 
 
Our review of the ACO has resulted in this request for two minor revisions to Section 
3.2 so as to be consistent with the ACO for Oakland County. 
 
On Page 5, Section 3.2, the due date for the modeling study to compare the 10-year, 
1-hour design standard should be December 1, 2006, not 2005 as shown in Troy’s 
ACO. 
 
The second revision is to add “to allow for its use during lesser events” to the last 
sentence of the first paragraph of Section 3.2, right after “…SSO requirements are 
changed.”  This revision is consistent with the county’s ACO. 
 
I trust there will be no problem with these revisions.  If you would call me and 
acknowledge this we can do these revisions ourselves, or you may send written 
confirmation with a revised ACO for our execution and return. 
 
Finally, we request that an extension of time to January 15, 2005 be granted for 
execution of the ACO and an extension of time for the submission of the short term 
corrective action plan be approved from January 1, 2005 to February 1, 2005.  We 
understand that these extensions, if approved, will not change any other dates in 
Troy’s ACO. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. Please call me at 248-524-3383 should you have 
any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Steven J. Vandette, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 
SJV/ln 
 
cc: Brian Murphy, Asst. City Engineer/Services 
 Tim Richnak, Public Works Director 
 Michael Karloff, Supt. of Water & Sewer 
 Dana Calhoun, Stormwater Engineer 
 
ENG\Environmental Issues\MDEQ\to MDEQ re ACO revisions.doc 

















































 1

December 13, 2004 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (JANUARY 10, 

2005) – REZONING APPLICATION – Northeast corner of Rochester Road and 
Charrington Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-B) 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan and compatible with the 
existing zoning districts and land uses. 
 
The site is 21,000 square feet in area and meets the minimum site area standard for 
service stations of 15,000 square feet.  The applicant is proposing to redevelop the 
existing service station and improve the site.  Considering the uses permitted in the H-S 
district, service stations are one of the least demanding in terms of land area.  Because 
of the small size of the subject property, the development potential is limited in terms of 
potential land uses.  
 
The site is an appropriate location for a service station given its location on a major 
thoroughfare, and further given its proximity to other service stations and other 
automobile-oriented uses.   
 
Prudent site planning suggests that consolidation of adjacent properties is desirable.  A 
larger site would allow for the development of a service station that can meet all of the 
Zoning Ordinance requirements.  However, the property to the east is a residential 
neighborhood and expansion of commercial zoning district into this neighborhood is 
undesirable and unlikely.   
 
It must be noted that the architectural site plan indicated that the proposed development 
requires a number of variances, including rear yard building setback and canopy 
setback.  All of the potential variances cannot be determined based on the submitted 
site plan.  These non-use variances will require action by the Board of Zoning Appeals 
prior to preliminary site plan approval. 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request at the 
November 9, 2004 Regular meeting.  City Management concurs with the Planning 
Commission recommendation.  
 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01a



 2

BACKGROUND 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this rezoning request following a 
Public Hearing at the August 10, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  A 
resident abutting the subject parcel submitted a protest petition and a resident petition 
to the Clerk’s office on August 5, 2004.  The resident intended that copies of the 
resident petition would be given to the Planning Commission for the August 10, 2004 
meeting.  Copies of the resident petition were inadvertently left out of the Planning 
Commission agenda packets.  Therefore, the Planning Commission did not consider the 
resident petition when formulating its recommendation to City Council.  
 
City Council considered this item on September 27, 2004 and referred the item back to 
the Planning Commission, giving the Planning Commission the opportunity to consider 
the resident petition prior to making a recommendation.   The Planning Commission 
considered the resident petition prior to recommending approval of the rezoning request 
at the November 9, 2004 Regular meeting. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The application lists the owner of the property as Anddraos Kattouah.  City records 
indicate that the owner of the property is Fast Track Acquisitions.  The applicant is 
Anddraos Kattouah. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington 
Road, in Section 23. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 21,000 square feet in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is currently used as a Clark gas station that received site plan approval 
and was constructed in 1966, and is a legal non-conforming use.  The abutting houses 
to the east were constructed in 1968. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
B-1 Local Business. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
H-S Highway Service. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to expand the convenience store.  The gasoline pump 
islands and overhead canopy are to remain as is. 



 3

Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Tax accountant and single-family residence. 
 
South: Restaurant. 
 
East: Single-family residence. 
 
West: Fast food restaurant and tire sales. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-1 Local Business and R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
South: B-2 General Business. 
  
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
West: B-3 General Business. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed H-S Highway Service Zoning District and 
Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 

 
Retail establishments to service the needs of the highway traveler including such 
facilities as:  drug stores, convenience food stores, gift shops, and restaurants other 
than those of the drive-in or open front store type. 

 
Bus or transit passenger stations, taxicab offices and dispatching centers, and 
emergency vehicle or ambulance facilities.  Sleeping accommodations may be 
provided in conjunction with ambulance facilities. 

 Parking garages and off-street parking areas. 
 
 New and used automobile salesroom, showroom or office. 
 
 Sales, showrooms, and incidental repairs of recreational vehicles. 
 

Banks, savings and loan associations, and credit unions which may consist solely of 
drive-up facilities. 

 
 Public utility buildings and sub-stations. 
 

Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 



 4

 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
  
Drive-up windows or service facilities, as an accessory to restaurants permitted 
within this district. 
Drive-up service facilities, as accessory to principal permitted uses within H-S 
districts, apart from restaurants. 

 
Outside seating of twenty (20) seats or less for restaurants, or other food service 
establishments. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 

Automobile service stations for the sale of engine fuels, oil, and minor accessories 
only, and where no repair work is done, other than incidental service, but not 
including, steam cleaning, undercoating, vehicle body repair, painting, tire 
recapping, engine rebuilding, auto dismantling, upholstering, auto glass work and 
other such activities whose external effects could adversely extend beyond the 
property lines.  

 
Auto washes where engine fuels are sold as a significant part of the operation.   

 
Auto washes, not including the sale of engine fuels, when the entire operation is 
completely enclosed within a building or structure. 

 
Uses, other than those specified in Section 23.20.06, wherein drive-up service 
facilities are the sole use of the property. 

 
 Business in the character of a drive-in restaurant. 
 
 Motel or hotel. 
 

Outdoor sales space for exclusive sale or lease of new or second hand 
automobiles, trucks, mobile homes, trailers, or recreational vehicles. 

 
Automobile repair garages, provided all activities are conducted within a completely 
enclosed building.   
 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other food 
service establishments. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts both Rochester Road and Charrington Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 



 5

Environmental and Brownfield Issues 
According to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality’s Leaking Underground 
Storage Tank Sites List, two gasoline storage tanks that were installed in 1966 were 
removed.  In 1992 two gasoline storage tanks were installed.  In 1992 there was a 
gasoline leak reported for the site.  The MDEQ file related to this leak remains open. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The 
Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 General 
Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S Highway Service 
Zoning District.  The rezoning application is therefore consistent with the City of Troy 
Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
The Location Standards for the H-S District in Article 23.40.01 of the Zoning Ordinance 
provides the following: 
 
 The H-S (Highway Service) District may be applied when the application of such a 

classification is consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use plan and policies 
related thereto, or with other land use policies of the City of Troy, and therefore, on 
a limited basis, may involve the following types of areas: 

 
 23.40.02 Areas indicated on the Master Land Use Plan for non-center 

commercial use. 
 

23.40.3 Areas within broader areas generally designated for Light Industrial 
use, where the City has established, through rezoning, areas to 
provide commercial and service uses for the surrounding Light 
Industrial area. 

 
The application is consistent with the Location Standards for the H-S District. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Petitioners letter dated June 19, 2004. 
3. Minutes from August 10, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
4. Minutes from September 27, 2004 City Council Meeting. 
5. Minutes from November 9, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
6. Valis Protest Petition and Resident Petition, submitted August 5, 2004. 
7. Letters opposed to rezoning. 
8. Leaking Underground Storage Tank Sites List, from Michigan Department of Environmental 

Quality web site. 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 479-B) 
 
 
 



 6

Prepared by RBS/MFM/PPB 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-479 B Charrington Clark Station Sec 23\CC Announcement of Public Hearing Charrington Clark 12 
20 04.doc 















PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 10, 2004 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 479-B) – Existing Clark Gas 

Station, Northeast corner of Rochester Road and Charrington Drive (3400 
Rochester Road), Section 23 – From B-1 to H-S 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed rezoning of the existing Clark Gas Station.  Mr. Savidant reported that 
it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to approve the rezoning 
application.  He noted the petitioner would be required to obtain a number of 
variances from the Board of Zoning Appeals prior to meeting zoning ordinance 
requirements for preliminary site plan approval.  Mr. Savidant also noted that the 
Planning Department has one written objection to the proposed rezoning on file.   
 
Mr. Savidant clarified that a site plan for the development has not been 
distributed to the Commission, and that the Commission’s consideration at 
tonight’s meeting is the proposed rezoning only.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked what the rear yard setback requirement would be for the 
development, in relation to the residential property to the east. 
 
Mr. Savidant replied the rear yard setback requirement in the H-S zoning district 
is 30 feet except when the development abuts a residential district, in which case 
the setback requirement is 75 feet.   
 
Mr. Miller stated that recently the Planning Department has received rezoning 
applications from a number of service stations.  The service stations are 
requesting the H-S zoning classification in order to eliminate their non-
conforming use status.  Mr. Miller said that many of the City’s service stations are 
old developments, and noted that the subject service station for rezoning 
consideration tonight has been in existence prior to the residential neighborhood 
to the east.  Mr. Miller related that in the early 1980’s, the intent of the City was to 
discourage the development of service stations.  Because the service stations 
are not going away and because they cannot redevelop as non-conforming uses, 
the current thinking of City Management is that it would be better to rezone the 
properties and work with the petitioners to create safe, efficient and modern 
facilities.   
 
John DeBruyne of SDA Architects, 2201 Twelve Mile Road, Warren, was 
present.  Mr. DeBruyne said the petitioner is going through the proper channels 
to eliminate the non-conforming use, and noted the ultimate goal is to expand the 
retail portion of the establishment.  Mr. DeBruyne confirmed that the service 
station would continue to service its customers with gasoline. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 10, 2004 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Nels Bejleri was present to speak on behalf of his father, Arben Bejleri of 1055 
Winthrop Drive, Troy.  Mr. Bejleri expressed objection to the proposed rezoning.  
He cited concerns with the proposed development should the proposed rezoning 
be approved.  The major concerns are the elevation of the development in 
relation to the residential homes to the east and the increase in parking and 
traffic with the expansion of the service station.   
 
Chair Waller stated that concerns related to elevation, water flow and traffic are 
very valid, and the Commission would take into consideration all those concerns 
at the time the preliminary site plan is before the Commission for review and 
approval.  He encouraged residents who are in opposition to the proposed 
rezoning and potential expansion of the service station to voice their concerns 
with the Planning Department, the Board of Zoning Appeals and the City Council.  
 
Don Mencke of 1151 Winthrop Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mencke said he 
and some neighbors are concerned about the potential increase in traffic, traffic 
safety when crossing Rochester Road, elevation, property devaluation and the 
facility operating 24 hours.  Mr. Mencke said the facility has not been taken care 
of by the owner until recently, and suggested that the rezoning be tabled for a 
couple of years to see how the owner takes care of the property.  Mr. Mencke 
asked why the property must be rezoned to the H-S district.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain briefly explained that the service station is required to be zoned 
in the H-S zoning district before any improvements can be made to the property.   
 
John Mulligan of 1087 Charrington, Troy, was present.  Mr. Mulligan said he and 
the neighbors are concerned that should the rezoning be approved, it leaves the 
property wide open for development.  He also expressed concerns with the larger 
building and the potential of increased traffic, especially for cross traffic at 
Rochester Road.   
 
The petitioner and property owner, Anddraos Kattouah of 3400 Rochester Road, 
Troy, was present.  Mr. Kattouah said he understands the concerns expressed 
by the residents.  He stated that it is not his desire to run a 24-hour operation, to 
sell alcohol, or to own a gas station.  Mr. Kattouah said he purchased the gas 
station for his wife because everybody in her family has a gas station, and the 
business is not his main source of income.  Mr. Kattouah said he has had the 
service station for the past nine months, and it has taken some time to become 
familiar with the property and business.  He said he is requesting to have the 
property rezoned to eliminate the non-conforming use and to improve on the only 
eyesore in the entire block.  He would like to add an additional 1,400 square feet 
to the facility and provide retail of essential items to the nearby residents.  Mr. 
Kattouah said the closest convenience store is over one mile from the service 
station.  Mr. Kattouah, a State-licensed residential appraiser, said the expansion 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL AUGUST 10, 2004 

of the service station would have no negative effect on the value of the nearby 
residential homes.   
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief explanation of the requirements placed on a non-
conforming use in relation to site improvements.  Mr. Miller noted that the subject 
parcel has a history of minor violations (i.e., litter, tall grass), which have all been 
resolved at this time.  Mr. Miller stated that the charge of the Commission tonight 
is to look at the appropriateness of the proposed rezoning district at this location.  
He explained the procedure of a Special Use Approval that would be required for 
improvements to the service station, and the Planning Commission’s 
discretionary control over the site as a Special Use.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-08-089 
 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Charrington Drive, within Section 23, being 21,000 square 
feet in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Littman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he agrees that the site needs to be redeveloped and understands 
it cannot make major improvements because of its non-conformity.  He said he 
wished there was a way to be more flexible with different options.   
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 24, 2004 
 

 

7. RECONSIDERATION OF REZONING REQUEST – Northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Charrington Road, Section 23 – B-1 to H-S (Z 479-B) 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the rezoning request that was considered and recommended 
for approval at the August 10, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting.  Mr. 
Miller reported that subsequent to the regular meeting, a resident brought to the 
City’s attention that he had submitted an official protest petition and a resident 
petition in opposition to the proposed rezoning to the City Clerk’s Office.  The 
resident said the resident petition of opposition was specifically addressed to 
both the Planning Commission and City Clerk.  Mr. Miller explained that the 
protest petition is a matter for City Council, but the intent of the resident was to 
get the resident petition of opposition in front of the Planning Commission at their 
August 10, 2004 meeting.  He asked that the Planning Commission consider the 
reconsideration of the rezoning request based upon the information that was not 
presented to the Commissioners at the August 10 Regular Meeting.   
 
Mr. Miller provided an explanation of the official protest petition.  Mr. Miller said 
the Planning Department’s recommendation for approval of the proposed 
rezoning as submitted would not change should there be a reconsideration of the 
matter.   
 
Mr. Motzny reported there is no provision for reconsideration of matters in the 
Planning Commission Bylaws or Zoning Ordinance.  Mr. Motzny said his 
previous opinion has not changed; that is that Robert’s Rules of Order for 
reconsideration would have to take place at the very same meeting in which the 
initial vote was taken.  Mr. Motzny does not believe a reconsideration of the 
matter is appropriate.  He noted that the only time it may be appropriate is if the 
Commission thought the initial Public Hearing or procedure was defective and 
not a valid Public Hearing.  Mr. Motzny said another way a matter could be 
reconsidered is that the Commission decides to suspend Robert’s Rules of 
Orders to allow the reconsideration.  Mr. Motzny said the residents who signed 
the petition have an opportunity to voice their objections to the City Council, and 
City Council has an option to remand the matter back to the Planning 
Commission.   
 
It was noted that the petitioner of the rezoning request was not present at 
tonight’s meeting.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the Commission could be opening up a can of worms and 
cautioned that careful consideration is given to the reconsideration of the matter.   
 
Mr. Khan believes the Commission should not reconsider the rezoning request.  
He said the residents had an opportunity to speak at the scheduled Public 
Hearing.   
 
Mr. Schultz said the rezoning request should not be reconsidered based on the 
advice given by legal counsel.  He said a precedent would be set. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 24, 2004 
 

 

John Dudek of 1071 Winthrop, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dudek’s property is 
adjacent to the service station.  Mr. Dudek stated the Planning Department was 
helpful in providing information on the rezoning request and the process to follow 
if residents are in opposition to a proposed rezoning.  Mr. Dudek created his own 
petition of opposition and collected 28 signatures from residents on August 4, 
2004.  On August 5, Mr. Dudek submitted to the City Clerk the official protest 
petition obtained from the City’s website and the petition of opposition he created 
signed by 28 residents.  He said the City Clerk’s office had no idea how to handle 
a protest petition, that it was the first time they had ever received one.  Mr. Dudek 
said he gave the Clerk’s Office both petitions, which were date stamped.  The 
Clerk’s Office inadvertently stapled his created resident petition under the official 
protest petition.  He said the Clerk’s Office informed him they would take care of 
it, but it was never presented to the Planning Commission at their August 10, 
2004 Regular Meeting.  Mr. Dudek said the 28 people who signed the petition 
would have been at the Public Hearing to voice their opposition, but they felt the 
signed petition was an adequate voice.  Mr. Dudek said he understood the 
Commission’s beliefs that a reconsideration of the rezoning would set a 
precedent and a can of worms might be opened, but he feels the circumstances 
in this matter are very unique.  He said the matter was not handled appropriately; 
nor maliciously – it was an accident.  Mr. Dudek said he believes that the 
rezoning should be reconsidered and he would like to voice his concerns relating 
to the rezoning.  He was unable to attend the Public Hearing because he was out 
of town.  Mr. Dudek said he did everything in his power to voice his concerns, 
and his voice was never heard because the Planning Commission never saw the 
petition he developed.  Mr. Dudek referenced the proposed PUD previously 
discussed at tonight’s meeting wherein it was stated that it is very important to 
get neighborhoods involved and voices heard on proposed developments.  He 
said this situation is a clear example that the voices of citizens and neighborhood 
residents have not been heard.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the proposed rezoning has not gone before the City 
Council yet, and that there will be a Public Hearing at the September 27, 2004 
City Council meeting.   
 
Chair Waller said mix-ups similar to what happened in the City Clerk’s office just 
happen.  He cited the three options of City Council:  approve the rezoning, deny 
the rezoning, or remand the matter back to the Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that the City Council would be provided a report similar to 
the one provided to the Planning Commission, along with the recommendation of 
the Planning Commission and City Management.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he would like to see a communication sent to the City Council 
advising them that the petitions were not a part of the Planning Commission 
package, so that City Council will give the matter more weight.  Mr. Schultz does 
not support reconsideration of the entire item at this point.  He thinks it would be 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 24, 2004 
 

 

fair to the residents who signed the petition that a complete disclosure be 
provided to the City Council why the Planning Commission did not see the 
petitions relating to the proposed rezoning prior to its review and 
recommendation.   
 
It was confirmed that notices would be sent to property owners adjacent to the 
proposed rezoning notifying them of the Public Hearing before the City Council.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the City Council should also be advised of its option to remand the 
matter back to the Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that the opinion of legal counsel should be incorporated in the 
City Council report and recommendation.   
 
Mr. Motzny suggested the appropriate motion might be to insure that the 
correspondence from citizens and the action taken at tonight’s meeting is 
delivered to the City Council.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-08-099 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council be informed that the petition originally sent to 
the Planning Commission was inadvertently misplaced and the Planning 
Commission never received it, and that information was not taken into 
consideration in the motion; and also that the City Council be informed that one 
of their options is to remand the item back to the Planning Commission.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Schultz requested that the motion be amended to include the 
recommendation of legal counsel and that the Planning Commission Bylaws do 
not afford the Commission the opportunity for a reconsideration other than on the 
exact night of the action, and based upon that, the Planning Commission asks 
that the City Council be thoroughly informed of the situation and the 
recommendation of legal counsel.   
 
All members were in favor. 
 
Vote on the motion as amended. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT AUGUST 24, 2004 
 

 

Mr. Dudek asked that the 28 citizens who signed the petition be informed as to 
why the petition was not presented at the August 10, 2004 Regular Planning 
Commission Meeting.  
 
Chair Waller replied to Mr. Dudek that he had no answer to his request tonight, 
but the request would be taken into consideration.   
 
Mr. Dudek said he would stay in contact with Mr. Miller.  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  September 27, 2004 
 

C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 479-B) Northeast Corner of 
Rochester Road and Charrington Road – Section 23 – B-1 to H-S  

 
Resolution #2004-09-504 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Charrington Road, Section 23, being 21,000 square feet in size, is 
hereby REFERRED BACK to the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Schilling   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
 

REZONING REQUESTS 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 479-B) – Existing Clark 
Station, Northeast Corner of Rochester Road and Charrington, Section 23 – 
From B-1 (Local Business) to H-S (Highway Service) 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief history of the rezoning request and reviewed the 
Planning Department’s recommendation to approve the rezoning application as 
submitted.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that one item of public input was distributed to the 
members prior to the meeting.   
 
The petitioner, John DeBruyne of SDA Architects, 2201 Twelve Mile Road, 
Warren, was present.   
 
The owner, Anddraos Kattouah of 3400 Rochester Road, Troy, was also present.  
Mr. Kattouah said he would like to expand the size of the retail space that is 
presently only 200 square feet.  Mr. Kattouah said the service station was built in 
1966 and is like a “hole in the wall” in comparison to the surrounding 
development.  He said the rezoning approval would allow him the opportunity to 
enhance the appearance and provide more services to the surrounding people.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked the owner if he is aware of the 75-foot setback requirement to 
the abutting residential property, should the rezoning request be approved.  
 
Mr. Kattouah said a variance must be granted to meet the 75-foot setback 
requirement.  He said the property is 140 feet x 150 feet.  Mr. Kattouah said the 
tanks and canopy would not be moved.  Mr. Kattouah said he is trying to find a 
solution not only for his benefit but also for the benefit of serving the community.  
He said there are no nearby convenience stores for residents to buy milk, bread, 
etc.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Dudek of 1071 Winthrop, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dudek is an adjacent 
property owner to the Clark service station.  He submitted the protest petition on 
August 10, 2004, and attended the September City Council meeting in which the 
matter was referred back to the Planning Commission.  Mr. Dudek asked the 
status of the request by City Council to look into the environmental concerns 
associated with the gas station.  He said there was a leak and contamination 
within the last year.  Mr. Dudek said there are several permanent monitoring 
wells throughout the property, and a receiving well that is located 5 to 10 feet 
from his property.  Mr. Dudek said the gas station has been going strong for 38 
years and it will be there for the next 38 years, contrary to the owner’s claim that 
the business will falter should there be no expansion.  Mr. Dudek cited several 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
 

places in the area to shop for everyday groceries.  Mr. Dudek said he has had 
numerous problems with the Clark gas station and believes the expansion would 
create more problems.  Mr. Dudek said there is only one direction that the owner 
can go with the expansion, and that is closer to his property and the other two 
residential properties. 
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain said the environmental concerns should be addressed 
with the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ).  Vice Chair 
Chamberlain explained the rezoning procedure that the service station must 
follow in order to make improvements on the property.  He further explained the 
Site Plan Approval process and the Board of Zoning Appeals process should 
variances be required.  Vice Chair Chamberlain cited the criteria that the 
Commission considers in its approval of rezoning requests.  He said the future 
improvement to the site could be a plus for the neighbors on the east side of 
Rochester Road.   
 
Mr. Dudek said he is the neighbor on the east side of Rochester Road and he 
does not believe the proposed expansion would benefit him or his neighbors.  Mr. 
Dudek further expressed concerns with potential cut-through traffic for drivers 
seeking to avoid the Big Beaver and Rochester Road intersection.  Mr. Dudek 
personally thanked Members Wright and Chamberlain for their attention during 
his presentation.   
 
Roy Gantt of Atlas Oil Company, 7731 Gary, Westland, was present.  Mr. Gantt 
addressed the environmental issues associated with the service station recently 
purchased from Atlas Oil Company.  Mr. Gantt reported that Phase 1 and Phase 
2 tests were performed on the site.  He said there is historical contamination but 
it has been remediated.  Mr. Gantt said monitoring wells are on-site and no 
contamination is migrating off-site.  Mr. Gantt said it is the owner’s responsibility 
to meet the MDEQ requirements and forward reports to Atlas Oil Company.  Mr. 
Gantt reported that the service station is in compliance and meets environmental 
objectives. 
 
Vice Chair Chamberlain asked if the tanks and lines on the subject property meet 
Federal guidelines.   
 
Mr. Gantt responded that the tanks and lines are not the latest, but they have 
been upgraded to the current State of Michigan standards.  He said they are 
inspected on a regular basis.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Miller said the City Manager committed to City Council that (1) research 
would be done on contamination at this site; (2) the resident petition would be 
provided to the Planning Commission; and (3) the notice of Public Hearing would 
be mailed to each resident who signed the petition.  Mr. Miller confirmed that the 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT NOVEMBER 9, 2004 
 

Planning Department has met all three commitments.  Mr. Miller reported the 
Planning Department’s resources on contamination is limited to the MDEQ’s 
website, and provided information obtained from the Leaking Underground 
Storage Tank (LUST) list.  
 
Mr. Khan explained that there is no site plan to review because the matter being 
considered tonight is only the proposed rezoning.  Mr. Khan further explained 
that the Commission has no authority on environmental contamination and it 
cannot regulate nor enforce any environmental issues.  
 
Resolution # PC-2004-11-129 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the B-1 to H-S rezoning request, located on the northeast corner of 
Rochester Road and Charrington Drive, within Section 23, being 21,000 square 
feet in size, be granted.   
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Waller 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

















Kathy Czarnecki 

From: Mark F Miller

Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2004 3:08 PM

To: Kathy Czarnecki; Brent Savidant

Subject: FW: 

Page 1 of 2Message

9/22/2004

        September 22, 2004                                 

  
Dear Mayor,  
  
We are writing this letter to voice our opposition with Mr. 
Andros G. Kattouah's  request, on behalf of Space Station of 
Troy, Inc, to rezone the property located at the northeast 
corner of Rochester Rd. and Charrington Dr. (3400 Rochester 
Rd.) from a B-1 (local business) to H-S (highway service).  This 
rezoning file/case number Z-479B.  We urge you not to grant 
this request. 
  
We are one of three home owners whose property is adjacent 
to the Clark Gas Station.  During the past twelve years we 
have experienced numerous problems with this Station.  We 
attempted to resolve the problems with the station and the 
management directly.  Unfortunately to get anything 
addressed we were often required to contact the city in-order 
to get a response.  These issues include, but are not limited 
to the maintenance of the grounds; garbage and debris from 
their dumpster spilling onto our property; fumes and other 
environmental concerns; a sewer drain that was covered with a 
least a decade of garbage and dirt causing our yard to flood 
during the winter thaw and rainy weather; and the replacement
of the four (4) foot chain link fence that currently separates our 
properties with a quality six (6) foot wooded fence.   
  
This pass year the station was robbed, and the thief(s) cut 
through our property on their way to their vehicle.  We have 



two young daughters, and since this event we have been 
concerned for their safety.  We feel the rezoning will only 
attract similar problems. Furthermore, we are concerned with 
the increased traffic which will be the likely result of this 
expansion. This traffic will cut through our subdivision to 
avoid Big Beaver and Rochester Rd. To those of us who live in 
Charrington Place this is already an on going problem. The 
rezoning will only make a bad situation worse. 
  
We respect Mr. Andros G. Kattouah's right to apply and 
request that his property be rezoned, so he can maximize his 
investment, however, we think that this residential corner can 
not accommodate this expansion.  We thank the city for 
this process which gives the citizens the opportunity to voice 
their concerns regarding these matters.   
  
You may be aware that a petition, signed by twenty-six citizens
opposing the rezoning, was submitted on Thursday, August 5th 
for the Planning Commission meeting that was held on August 
10th.  The commission never saw the petition at their August 
10th meeting.  We sincerely hope that you, the city council 
handle this matter with more consideration for the concerns of 
the community then the Planning Department, City Clerk's 
office, and the Planning Commission have thus far.  
  
  
Sincerely,  
  
Mr. & Mrs. John Dudek 

1071 Winthrop 

Troy, MI  48083 
  
  

Page 2 of 2Message

9/22/2004







1

Tonni L Bartholomew

From: John Szerlag
Sent: Friday, December 10, 2004 11:47 AM
To: 'Dave Lambert'
Cc: Lori G Bluhm; Douglas J Smith; Tonni L Bartholomew; Brian P Murphy; John M Lamerato; 

Mary F Redden; Cristina Broomfield (E-mail); Dave Lambert; David Eisenbacher (E-mail); 
Jeanne M. Stine; Louise Schilling; Martin Howrylak (E-mail); Robin Beltramini (E-mail)

Subject: RE: December 20 Council Comments

Dave:

It will be on the agenda.

John

-----Original Message-----
From: Dave Lambert [mailto:dave@lambert.net]
Sent: Friday, December 10, 2004 11:17 AM
To: John Szerlag
Cc: Lori G Bluhm
Subject: December 20 Council Comments

John and Lori:

At our December 20th Council meeting, I would like the following to be
on 
the agenda under Council Comments/Referrals:

"Resolved that the City of Troy will halt expenditures for the I-75/Long

Lake Road Exit project except for any work required by the 
Federally-mandated Environmental Assessment. This moratorium will
continue 
until the Environmental Assessment is completed."

If you would prefer, I would be willing to support a budget amendment
that 
would accomplish the same objective.

Dave Lambert
Web address: www.dave.lambert.net

bittnera
Text Box
H-01





Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                  October 21, 2004 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
October 21, 2004 at the Troy Community Center, staff conference room.  Chairwoman, Kathleen 
Fejes called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m. 
 
Present:  Stu Redpath, member  Jeff Stewart, member 
   Tom Krent, member   Tod Gazetti, member 
   Rusty Kaltsounis, member  Jan Zikakis, member 
   Kathleen Fejes, member  Brad Henson, student representative 
   Jeff Biegler, staff   Stuart Alderman, staff 
   Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Merrill Dixon, Ida Edmunds, Meaghan Kovacs 
 
Visitors:  Lauren Sharer, Bill Weisgerber 
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 10 - 019 
Moved by  Krent 
Seconded by  Redpath 
 
RESOLVED, that absent members be excused. 
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 10 - 020 
Moved by Zikakis 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from September 9, 2004 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Introduction of New Members: 
1) Brad Henson is the new student representative.  He is currently attending Troy High School 
and likes to snowboard.  He is applying for membership into the National Honor Society.   
 
2) Tod Gazetti is the newest member on the board.  He was just appointed by council on 
Monday evening.  He is the Superintendent of Recreation in Royal Oak. 
 
Visitor -  Lauren Sharer is the intern in the department.  She will graduate in December from 
Central Michigan University.  She has worked in Parks and Recreation since high school where 
she worked in Roseville.   
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01a



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                  October 21, 2004 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
A.  Organizational Positives - A list of accomplishments for 2003 was highlighted.  Troy was 
named #1 Sportstown in Michigan by Sports Illustrated, opened a new golf course, began online 
registration, added more programs and pursued additional money thru grants just to name a 
few.   
 
B.  Public Display Policy - City Council has approved two sites for public displays.  These sites 
are located behind the library.  This department will take the applications and have the lottery.  
Each approved application will get either 12 or 19 days, depending on the time of year, for their 
display.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Rotary Park - Negotiations continue with the Rotary Club for development of the remnant 
parcel on Long Lake.  The City Attorney’s office is reviewing terms of the agreement including 
park naming stipulation, financial contribution and length of the agreement.   
 
B.  Cricket - The practice pitch at Garry Street has been removed.  A new site has not been 
identified at this time.  Staff will continue evaluating different locations for Cricket.   
 
Member Comments: 
Tom Krent asked about the fence at Sylvan Glen Golf Course along Rochester Road.  Carol 
Anderson mentioned that we are looking at options including ornamental fencing.   
 
Jeff Stewart congratulated Stu Redpath on being named “Principal of the Year.” 
 
Staff Reports 
Directors Report - Carol Anderson thanked the Park Board for adjusting their schedules in order 
to make the meeting this week.   
 
Recreation Report - The winter brochure will be sent to the printer soon and then mailed to 
residents and businesses.   
 
A video telephone has been installed in the senior reading room of the Community Center.  This 
telephone is available to the deaf for free.   
 
The Senior Coordinator, Melissa Humbyrd, is leaving in two weeks as she has accepted a full 
time position with another agency.   
 
The fitness room is expanding and ten additional ellipticals will be purchased.  Bids will be taken 
soon for eight additional treadmills.   
 
Parks Report - It is the end of the season and the irrigation system is currently being winterized 
and the flowerbeds are being removed.   
 
J. H. Hart, the contractor working on Ash tree removal, is currently working in section 25 
removing Ash trees.  Approximately 1200 trees have been removed thus far.   
 
 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                  October 21, 2004 

 
The state of Michigan is proposing a program for private property owners to take advantage of 
standardized prices for tree removal.   
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kathleen Fejes, Chairwoman 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



holmesba
Pencil

holmesba
Text Box
J-01b





holmesba
Text Box
J-01c





ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Nov. 4, 2004 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A Regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, 
November 4 2004 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting 
to order at 10:01 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Bill Weisgerber, Vice-Chair  
 David Ogg, Member       Marie Hoag, Member 
 Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads – Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 Pauline Noce, Member 
    
Absent:   None  
   
Visitors:    Jo-Anne Stein 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2004-11-001 
Moved by Bud Black 
Seconded by Jo Rhoads 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of October 7, 2004 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  7      
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Jo-Anne Stein commented on the Senior Council name change – see below.  
 
Old Business 
 
Troy Senior Council Name Change:  JoAnn Thompson reported that she will meet with the 
City Attorney next week who said it would be a simple process to change the Senior Council’s 
name.  Jo-Anne Stein is agreeable to changing it to something that better reflects the social 
theme of the organization if they have help with the paperwork. 
 
New Member Information:  Bill Wiesgerber led a discussion on what should be included in a 
new advisory committee member packet.  Items will include 2000 census information, a list of 
members and when their terms expire, the senior program annual report, Advisory Committee 
minutes for the past six months, Committee bylaws, the council memo describing the 
Committee’s purpose, and a sheet of business cards.   

 
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities/Shuffleboard:   JoAnn Thompson reported that she 
has a list of cities that offer shuffleboard.  Carla will draft a form that committee members can 
use to gather information when they visit other senior centers to find out how they operate.   

holmesba
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Nov. 4, 2004 

2 

 
New Business 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  JoAnn Thompson lead a discussion about the 
dissatisfaction that many groups feel about having to use a caterer at the Community Center.  
Either they do not have a budget for this, or they would just prefer to bring special refreshments 
prepared at home.  The current policy does not serve the needs of the community.   Carla was 
asked to draft the memo for City Council based on today’s discussion suggesting that the policy 
be changed for review at the December meeting. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Bill Weisgerber reported that they discussed ash tree removal and replacement, 
the new video telephone at the Community Center and Melissa’s resignation. 
 
Medi-Go:   Jo Rhoads circulated a report showing ridership statistics and said that there are 
still a lot of people who don’t know about the service.  
 
Nutrition:  No report.  
    There were 1356 meals served on 22 days at the Community Center in September.   Senior 
Program:  Carla reported that the Parks and Recreation Department took a bus to the flu shot 
clinic at the health department in Pontiac on October 29.  18 people participated (we had only 
two days to advertise it).  Interviews are being held for Melissa’s position.  Troy is organizing a 
new women’s 50 Plus softball league, and nine other cities in Oakland County have agreed to 
sponsor a team.  JoAnn reported that the spelling duel is coming up and that people can 
participate in the practices even if they don’t go to the competition. 
    
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that they had a presentation by Blue Dolphin, an agency that 
offers water therapy for those with a doctor’s referral.  OLHSA offers energy conservation 
programs for low income seniors.  OLHSA is merging with Community Services of Oakland.    
 
Suggestion Box:  None. 
 
Comments 
 
JoAnn Thompson reported that she worked at the election and it is very well run in Troy.  She 
was home by 9 p.m. 
 
JoAnn Thompson led a discussion about the newspaper article that Bill Weisgerber distributed 
related to lunch program donations. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:30 a.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair     Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                November 8, 2004 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, November 8, 
2004 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Chairman Max 
K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Anita Elenbaum 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Elenbaum 
 
Resolution #LC2004-11-128 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Elenbaum at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of November 8, 2004 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of October 11, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2004-11-129 
Moved by Peard 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the October 11, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01e



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                November 8, 2004 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Absent: Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     TROY ROBIN, INC., requests a new full year (quota) Class C license with 

Official Permit (Food), Sunday Sales, Entertainment Permit, and new SDM, to be 
located at 5460 Corporate Dr., Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County.   Proposed Red 
Robin restaurant at old Cooker’s site. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were John Carlin and Lew Ansara. 
 
Red Robin is a full-service, family restaurant with approximate seating capacity of 230 
patrons.  The entertainment permit is required because of holiday events that will be 
geared to children.  This will be the 13th Red Robin restaurant in Michigan.  The 
management is planning a major renovation to the existing building that should begin in 
approximately one month.  They hope to open in March 2005.   
 
Resolution #LC2004-11-130 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that TROY ROBIN, INC., be granted a new full year (quota) Class C license 
with Official Permit (Food), Sunday Sales, Entertainment Permit, and new SDM, to be 
located at 5460 Corporate Dr., Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County.    
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2.   BRAVO DEVELOPMENT INC., d/b/a CUCINA DEVELOPMENT INC., requests 

a new full year (quota) Class C license with Official Permit (Food), Sunday Sales, 
and new SDM, to be located at 2800 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County.   Proposed new restaurant at Somerset South.    

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Carlin. 
 
After renovations to an existing 6,800 square foot retail store, Brio Tuscan Grille will open 
at Somerset Collection South.  An outside entrance will be added.  This is a high-end, 
upscale Italian restaurant with capacity for approximately 250 patrons.  The parent 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                November 8, 2004 
 

Page 3 of 3 

company currently has family-type restaurants located in Lansing, Rochester Hills, and 
Livonia, as well as nationwide.  They have never received a liquor violation.   
 
Resolution #LC2004-11-131 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Peard 
 
RESOLVED, that BRAVO DEVELOPMENT INC., d/b/a CUCINA DEVELOPMENT INC., 
be granted a new full year (quota) Class C license with Official Permit (Food), Sunday 
Sales, and new SDM, to be located at 2800 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48084, Oakland 
County. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Elenbaum 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Informational Items: 
 
4. Discussion of new Michigan subsidiary of Brinker Restaurant Corporation, 

specifically the MLCC requirement for a local government resolution approving 
“paper” transfers. 

 
There was a presentation by John Carlin followed by a brief discussion regarding this 
Informational Item.  There was no objection by the Committee, so the paperwork relating to 
this name change will proceed.   
  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      James R. Peard, Member 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 



bittnera
Text Box
J-01f





holmesba
Text Box
J-01g

























BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals meeting to order at 8:32 A.M., on Wednesday, December 1, 2004, in the Lower 
Level Conference Room of the City of Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Frank Zuazo (8:45 A.M.) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Ginny Norvell, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 3, 2004 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 3, 2004 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Dziurman, Kessler, Nelson, Richnak 
Absent: 1 – Zuazo 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SAFET STAFA, 3455 JOHN R., for relief of 
Chapter 83 to maintain a 6’ high privacy fence installed without first obtaining a Fence 
Permit, along the front property line of 3455 John R. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to maintain a 
6’ high privacy fence installed without first obtaining a Fence Permit along the front 
property line of his home.  The Fence Permit application submitted indicates 100 linear 
feet of fence, 6’ high, located in the front yard.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in 
front yards to not more than 30” in height. 
 
Mr. Stafa was present and stated that he did not realize a fence permit was required 
before the fence was installed.  Mr. Stafa indicated that his home was built in 
approximately 1908 and he has done a lot of improvements in order to make the home 
livable.  He had three (3) incidents of minor mischief done to his home and the reason 
he wanted this 6’ high privacy fence was to provide security for his three (3) children, 
and also to provide a buffer from the traffic along John R.  Mr. Stafa indicated that he 
would not be able to stay in this home if he was not allowed to keep the fence. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 

 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-01h



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Samel of 3405 John R. was present and stated that she approves of Mr. Stafa’s 
request.  Ms. Samel indicated that when this home was first built, John R. was a two-
lane road and now that it is five (5) lanes, she believes the fence will not only provide 
safety, but also act as a buffer to the traffic noise along John R.  Ms. Samel also said 
that there are a number of properties along John R. that have 6’ high privacy fences and 
does not think this fence would be an eyesore.  Ms. Samel did express concern that the 
fence comes very close to the driveway and thought that it could be sloped down to 
increase visibility. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that in order for this Board to grant a variance, the petitioner needs to 
demonstrate a hardship that runs with the land.  Mr. Kessler also said that this is a large 
piece of property and the petitioner could enclose the rear yard, which would provide 
safety for his children.  Mr. Kessler also said that the petitioner could plant shrubbery 
along John R. that would act as a buffer to the traffic.  Mr. Kessler stated that this is a 
self-imposed hardship as the fence was put up without obtaining the necessary permit. 
 
Mr. Stafa said that his house is closer to John R. than other houses in this area and the 
south side of his property would be completely open.  Mr. Stafa also said that this fence 
is not totally closed.  Mr. Kessler stated that the existing fence is a “shadow-box” style 
and is not a non-obscuring fence.  Mr. Stafa also said that he had cleaned up the area 
where he put the fence and had taken down an existing fence. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if a variance had been granted for the previous fence.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that Building Department records did not indicate that either a variance or a 
permit had been obtained for that fence.  Mr. Stimac also said that it was possible that 
the original fence proceeded the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Richnak indicated that he agreed with Mr. Kessler and felt this was a self-imposed 
hardship and was not in favor of granting this request. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Safet Stafa, 3455 John R., for relief of Chapter 83 to 
maintain a 6’ high privacy fence installed without first obtaining a Fence Permit along 
the front property line. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
• There are other options available to the petitioner. 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stafa once again asked the Board to reconsider this request.  Mr. Stimac indicated 
that the vote was unanimous and Mr. Stafa could work with the Building Permit to put up 
a fence that would comply with the Ordinance and provide Mr. Stafa the security he is 
seeking. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  CHARLES FOLKERT, 4290 WASHINGTON 
CRESCENT, for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence.  Based upon the configuration of this corner lot and that of the 
homes around it, any fencing behind the front line of the house, located in the yard 
adjacent to Forest Trail, is limited to a non-obscuring fence not more than 48” in height.  
This limitation is found in Section 2A of Chapter 83 of the Troy City Code.  The site plan 
submitted indicates a 6’ high privacy fence along the rear property line extending out to 
the property line along Forest Trail. 
 
Mr. Folkert and Ms. Browning were present.  Mr. Dziurman asked about the fence along 
Forest Trail.  Ms. Browning indicated that this is an existing split rail fence, which has to 
be replaced and this is where they would like to put the 6’ high fence.  Ms. Browning 
said that the neighbor adjacent to their property has three (3) dogs, one of which is a 
dachshund that barks at her whenever she is out in the yard.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked for clarification regarding the location of the fence and the shape of 
this property.  Mr. Stimac explained that it could not be any closer to the property line 
along Forest Trail than 26.6’ of the existing home and cannot be in the front yard along 
Forest Trail.   
 
Mr. Folkert said that the fence is 67’ from the neighbor’s driveway and 75’ from his 
driveway and does not feel that it would hinder visibility from either driveway.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked why a 6’ high fence was required instead of a 4’ high fence.  Ms. 
Browning stated that she wanted as much privacy as possible.  Ms. Browning went on 
to say that they have had problems with this neighbor in the past and feels the best 
solution is a 6’ high fence.  Mr. Folkert said that the neighbor is unapproachable when it  
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
comes to the dog barking issue. Mr. Kessler then asked which side of the fence would 
be facing the neighbor.  Mr. Folkert said that it did not matter to him which side of the  
fence was facing the neighbor and felt that a privacy fence would also be an advantage 
to this neighbor.  Mr. Kessler then asked what would happen to the existing fence.  Ms. 
Browning said that it would be taken down and replaced with this privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the deteriorating fence was on their property.  Ms. Browning said 
that she thought it was along the property line.  Mr. Folkert said that he would not want 
to replace the split rail fence with anything other than a privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the area they were talking about was a 15’ gap in the fence line.  Ms. 
Browning said that the dog can see her all along the existing fence.  Mr. Zuazo then 
asked if they had thought of putting in heavy shrubbery.  Ms. Browning said there is 
already existing shrubbery and the dog can see under the shrubs.  Ms. Browning also 
said that they don’t get along with the neighbor.  Mr. Zuazo then asked if they want the 
fence because of the dog or the neighbor and Ms. Browning said that the 6’ high fence 
would be for the neighbor. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that they could put up a 6’ fence 26.6’ from the point of the sidewalk 
to the north and they could up a 4’ high non-obscuring fence.  Ms. Browning said that 
there was no point in putting up a 4’ high non-obscuring fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak then said that they could put of a 6’ high privacy fence on part of the 
property and then drop it down to a 4’ high fence.  Mr. Stimac indicated that the 
Ordinance would allow a 4’ high fence but it would be required to be 50% open.  This 
Board would have to grant a variance that would allow a privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Folkert asked what the intent of the Ordinance was regarding this rule on the fence.  
Mr. Stimac stated that the basic intent of the Ordinance is to find equitable treatment of 
all neighbors in the area.  In general, the Ordinance does not allow anything more that a 
30” high fence in the front yard of the homes across the street on the north side of 
Forest Trail.  Ms. Browning said that she does not feel this fence is in the front yard but 
along the back of the property. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if they were planning to remove the shrubbery in this location.  Ms. 
Browning said that they have to take out one of the shrubs, but the other shrubs would 
be staying. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
 
 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Charles Folkert, 4290 Washington Crescent, relief of Chapter 83 to 
install a 48” high obscuring fence behind the front line of the house, located in the yard 
adjacent to Forest Trail where the Ordinance allows a non-obscuring fence not more 
than 48” in height. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH STIPULATION CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WILLIAM BETZ, OF WILD BILL & ASSOCIATES, 
REPRESENTING THE EAST LONG LAKE SUBDIVISION ASSOCIATION, for relief of 
Chapter 78 to maintain a subdivision identification sign in the median of Carnaby, 42” in 
height, located 19’ from the right of way line of Long Lake Road. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to maintain a 
subdivision identification sign in the median of Carnaby, 42” in height, located 19’ from 
the right of way line of Long Lake Road.  Paragraph C of Section 7.01.01 limits the 
height of signs in medians to not taller than 30” when located within 25’ of the right of 
way of the intersecting street.  The approved sign permit indicated that the sign would 
be 29’ from the city right of way.  The sign was incorrectly installed at the 19’ setback. 
 
Mr. John Ungvarsky, 5063 Abington and Mr. William Betz were present.  Mr. Betz 
indicated that Mr. Ungvarsky would be the spokesperson as he was part of the 
Homeowners Association and had dealt with the City in the past. 
 
Mr. Ungvarsky stated that they had received approval from City Council to put up this 
subdivision identification sign, located 29’ from the right of way line of Long Lake Road.  
When Mr. Betz came out to put up this sign and began digging they ran into a concrete 
pipe.  They attempted to move to two other locations, but again hit this piece of concrete 
pipe.  Mr. Ungvarsky contacted the City and drawings were not available which 
indicated that this was an active line.  The only determination made was that this was a 
line put in at a much earlier time and was no longer used.  Mr. Ungvarsky said that he 
contacted Mr. Betz who was willing to rent whatever machinery was required to go 
through this concrete pipe and set the sign up.  Mr. Ungvarsky went on vacation and 
when he came back the sign was installed.  Mr. Ungvarsky called for a final inspection, 
which was disapproved as it was installed in the wrong location. 
 
Mr. Betz indicated that at this time he had written a letter to the City requesting a 
variance.   
 
 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Ungvarsky said that a chain link fence around an existing detention pond and a very 
large pine tree located east of this sign create a greater hazard to traffic than this sign 
does.  Mr. Ungvarsky indicated that the fence is rusty, which makes visibility very 
difficult. 
 
Mr. Betz stated that he had spent approximately one-half of a day trying to put the sign 
in the proper location, but was unable to do so.    Mr. Betz also said that most 
subdivision signs are perpendicular to the main street and this sign runs parallel to the 
main street. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are sixteen (16) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that the petitioner had obtained a Sign Permit with an approved 
location, and ignored this site plan and placed the sign in the wrong location.  Mr. 
Kessler stated that he feels this is a self-imposed hardship and the petitioner cannot 
disregard policies and procedures.  Mr. Kessler also said that a hardship did exist and 
the petitioner had the opportunity to come to the City for a variance before the sign was 
installed.   
 
Mr. Betz said that he did not obtain the Sign Permit and was not aware of the 
stipulation.  Mr. Ungvarsky said that he did not inform Mr. Betz of the 25’ setback 
stipulation for this sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he felt the way the sign was installed is totally inappropriate and 
does not believe there was a rush to install the sign.  Mr. Richnak also said that they 
could have gone to the Building Department or the Public Works Department and 
informed them of the problem before installing the sign.  Mr. Richnak agreed with Mr. 
Kessler that this was a self-imposed hardship. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant William Betz, of Wild Bill & Associates, representing the East Long 
Lake Subdivision Association, relief of Chapter 78 to maintain a subdivision 
identification sign in the median of Carnaby, 42” in height, located 19’ from the right of 
way line of Long Lake Road. 
 

• Concrete pipe under ground creates a hardship. 
• Sign does not create a hazard for traffic leaving the subdivision. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 

 6



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  GREGORY AERTS, 366. W MAPLE, for relief of 
Chapter 78 to install wall signage at a new building, which is under construction. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 78 to install wall 
signage at the new building under construction at 366 W. Maple Road.  The Sign Permit 
application submitted indicates a proposal to install 22 automobile manufacturer’s logos, 
each no larger that 1.6 square feet, totaling 35 square feet and 12 graphics depicting 
vehicles, each one 37.33 square feet in size, totaling 444 square feet.  Although these 
graphics are designed to look like they are located inside windows, they are in fact 
located on the outside of the building wall and are subject to the area limitation of the 
Sign Ordinance.  These proposed wall signs will result in a total wall signage of 479 
square feet.  Paragraph B of Section 9.02.04 of the Troy Sign Ordinance limits the area 
of wall signs on a building of this size to 36 square feet. 
 
Mr. Gregory Aerts and Mr. Cordell Craig were present.  Mr. Aerts stated that they had 
brought in an approval letter from Thunderbird Lanes, which is right next door to this car 
wash.  Mr. Aerts explained that they wanted to do something different other than just 
depicting a car wash.  The proposed pictures are of classic cars and a number of these 
pictures were taken at the Woodward Dream Cruise.  Mr. Aerts further explained that 
the reason for this request is because of the maintenance involved if the signs were on 
the inside of the building.  This building is very long and narrow, and the chemicals, 
water and soil could damage the signs if the space is not sealed.  Mr. Aerts also said 
that Meteor Photo has a similar situation, although they do change their signage from 
the inside of the building.   
 
Mr. Aerts also said that the pictures would be illuminated from the back and they felt 
that this proposal offered the best solution for the maintenance and look of these signs.  
Mr. Aerts said that this is a self-imposed hardship because of the design of the building, 
but did not think there were other options available, unless they altered the building.   
 
Mr. Cordell Craig stated that this is the second business he owns in the City, that he has 
been a long time resident and is trying to create a very clean, high-end car wash.  The 
chemicals used on the cars could harm open sign panels, and also harm the electrical 
connections involved in illuminating these panels.  Mr. Craig also said that the proposed 
cement walls will help to provide additional security for the building. 
 
Mr. Aerts said that this property is only 60’ wide and most of these “windows” are on the 
east side of the building.  Mr. Aerts said that he believes only one or two of the panels 
would be visible to traffic along Maple. 
 
 
 

 7



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Craig indicated that Meteor Photo was not required to obtain permits and the car 
wash is not planning on changing the pictures, but will always keep them as classic 
cars. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he did not believe an interpretation was necessary, as these 
panels would not be considered windows.  Mr. Kessler said that he did not see a 
hardship that runs with this land and believes this request is excessive. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked Mr. Stimac about the interpretation of the Ordinance.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that under provisions of the Sign Ordinance, signs located in the interior of a 
building are not subject to the restrictions of the Sign Ordinance.  Meteor Photo 
appeared before this Board in 1979, and, in part, because the signs are accessed on 
the inside of the building, this Board determined that they were not subject to the 
requirements of the Sign Ordinance.  Mr. Stimac also said that in this case there is no 
way to change or access these signs from the inside of the building.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Susan Thompson, representing the owner of 264 W. Maple was present.  Ms. 
Thompson indicated that although they think the concept of these panels would look 
wonderful, she believes that they will create a safety hazard as traffic will be looking at 
these pictures and not paying attention to where they are going.  Ms. Thompson said 
that this is already a very congested area, and although she realizes that Thunderbird 
Lanes approves of this request, their building is the one that will be facing these panels.  
Ms. Thompson further stated that Mr. Craig indicated that these signs will go up whether 
this variance is granted or not. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Craig stated that he feels the hardship he has is the fact that because this building 
is so narrow and access would be next to impossible from the inside of the building.  He 
further stated that the water, chemicals and soil from the cars would also create a 
hardship.  Mr. Aerts indicated that they would not be in front of this Board if this were 
any other type of building. 
 
Mr. Zuazo said that he is having a hard time with this request and asked if this was 
considered to be art or signage.  Mr. Stimac explained that if this was a Bowling Alley, 
and a bowling pin and ball was painted on the outside of the building – it would be 
considered signage.  These panels are considered signage because they are on the 
outside of the building and depict messages related to the business.  Mr. Zuazo asked if 
these signs would comply if they were on windows.  Mr. Stimac explained that if the 
signs were on the interior of the building, they would not be subject to the limits of the  

 8



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Sign Ordinance.  Mr. Zuazo asked what it would take to carry this into a window and Mr. 
Stimac stated that they have to be accessed from the inside of the building. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if they could put in sliding doors on the inside and then put the pictures 
of the cars inside of that.  Mr. Stimac indicated that the Board determined that Meteor 
Photo’s signs were not subject to the limitations of the Sign Ordinance because they are 
accessible from the inside of the building. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if they had thought of putting in windows and Mr. Aerts stated that 
they had, but decided to put in concrete instead. 
 
Mr. Aerts explained that the images would always be of classic cars.  Their goal is to 
make it look like a real window with a car behind it.  Because they have a control room 
on the west side of the building, their only option was to put these panels on the east 
side of the building. 
 
Mr. Craig stated that the panels are on this side of the building because of the traffic 
flow of cars from Maple to the car wash.  Mr. Craig also said that even though these 
panels will be accessed from the outside of the building, he would still consider them 
windows.  Mr. Dziurman asked if the cars enter the car wash at the back of the building 
and Mr. Craig indicated that this was correct.  Mr. Craig said that he does not believe 
that more than two (2) windows would be visible to traffic. 
 
Ms. Thompson said that they can see the entire wall from their building, and thinks that 
cars going into this location will create a traffic hazard.  Ms. Thompson said that 
although she thinks it will look very nice, she is more concerned about the safety factor. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked why they did not put these panels inside the building.  Mr. Craig 
said that they are going to have fluorescent lighting and maintenance would be difficult 
from the inside. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if this building was considered a windowless story by the building 
code.  Mr. Stimac stated that as long as there were opening on each end of the building 
it did meet building code standards. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if this request was a question of aesthetics versus hardship.  Mr. 
Stimac said that he would have a deep concern if an interpretation was granted to say 
these signs were inside the building and felt that such a decision would set a precedent 
regarding other locations.   
 
Mr. Zuazo then asked if this request would impose a hardship to 264 W. Maple.  Ms. 
Thompson stated that this was not really a hardship, but there are concerns regarding 
egress and ingress because of the traffic congestion.  Ms. Thompson said that their 
business has always complied with the Ordinance and felt that this business could also. 

 9



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         DECEMBER 1, 2004 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he feels this request is very similar to a “sign box”.  Mr. Kessler 
also said that this site allows 36 square feet of signage and feels this request, which 
would bring the total to 479 square feet, is excessive.   
 
Mr. Craig then asked if signs are permitted that are not visible to traffic.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that the Ordinance allows signs that are not visible to traffic along the public road, 
up to 36 square feet in size. These types of signs are not subject to the limitations of the 
Sign Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Aerts stated that from the outside he thinks these panels will look like windows.  Mr. 
Kessler said that he did not agree as they were very similar to a sign box regarding the 
depth, lighting and framing.     
 
Mr. Nelson stated that in his opinion these panels would not be considered windows.  
From the Fire Department’s standpoint a window is something that they could break into 
in case of an emergency.  Because these panels have cement behind them access 
would be difficult for the Fire Department.  Mr. Nelson said that if the interpretation was 
made that these would be considered windows, they would need to operate as 
windows. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Gregory Aerts, 366 W. Maple, for relief of Chapter 78 to 
install wall signage at a new building, which is under construction. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
• Access to these panels is from the outside. 
• Variance would have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance request is excessive. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Nelson, Kessler, Richnak, Zuazo 
Nays:  1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:20 A.M. 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 10



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Dec. 2, 2004 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A Regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, 
December 2 2004 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting 
to order at 10:01 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Bill Weisgerber, Vice-Chair  
 David Ogg, Member       Pauline Noce, Member 
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent:   Marie Hoag, Jo Rhoades-excused  
   
Visitors:    David Keats, Stu Alderman, Kraig Schmottlach, Mary Beth Halushka 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2004-12-001 
Moved by Bud Black 
Seconded by Pauline Noce 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of November 4, 2004 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  7      
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Stu Alderman stated that he and Kraig were there to answer questions the Committee might 
have about the catering contract.  
 
Old Business 
 
Troy Senior Council Name Change:   JoAnn Thompson reported that she talked to the 
assistant City Attorney who is willing to help Jo-Anne Stein with the name change.  
 
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities/Shuffleboard:   JoAnn Thompson visited the 
shuffleboard and bocce courts in St. Clair Shores and talked to someone there about them.  
They are well used.  Warren has indoor and outdoor shuffleboard courts.  Carla drafted a form 
that committee members can use to gather information when visiting other senior centers.  
Committee members will review the form and revise it at the next meeting.     
 
 
 
 
 
 

holmesba
Text Box
J-01i



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Dec. 2, 2004 

2 

Catering Service at the Community Center:  Stu Alderman explained the catering contract 
and discussed concerns that the committee has about the cost of refreshments for non-profit 
groups.  JoAnn Thompson would like to know how much revenue the cater gets from non-profit 
groups, and what profit Parks and Recreation gets from this revenue.  Bud Black would like to 
see a copy of the catering contract.  JoAnn read a letter from the Troy American Association of 
University Women stating that they and other groups no longer meet at the Community Center 
due to the high cost of refreshments.  The committee reviewed and approved a memo for City 
Council recommending changes in the catering contract (copy attached). 
  
Resolution # SC-2004-12-002 
Moved by Pauline Noce 
Seconded by Bud Black 
 
RESOLVED, That the memo reviewed at today’s meeting be sent to City Council. 
 
Yes:  6      
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
New Business 
 
Minor League Baseball Stadium:  David Ogg led a discussion about the minor league 
baseball stadium and handed out information from Troy Citizens United. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board will attend a special meeting to discuss 
the baseball stadium.  
 
Medi-Go:   No report.  
 
Nutrition:  No report.  
    There were 1356 meals served on 22 days at the Community Center in September.   Senior 
Program:  No report 
    
OLHSA:  No report  
 
Suggestion Box:  There were two suggestions in favor of shuffleboard and bocce courts, one 
requesting that they be in the shade. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at noon.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair     Carla Vaughan, Secretary 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Dec. 2, 2004 

3 

 
 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 

3179 Livernois, Troy, MI 48083 
seniorac@ci.troy.mi.us 

 
 
 

December 2, 2004 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Troy Senior Citizen Advisory Committee 
 
Re: Community Center Catering Contract 

 
The catering contract at the Community Center is up for renewal soon, and we 
recommend a change that will allow non-profit groups to bring refreshments into 
any room at the Community Center.  Many groups that use the Community 
Center do not have a budget for catered food and would like to bring 
refreshments from home.  This is currently allowed in two meeting rooms and 
two conference rooms at the Community Center, but if these rooms are in use or 
if your group is too large for one of those rooms, you are out of luck.   
 
The cost of one dozen cookies from the Community Center caterer is $13.42 
($11 plus 22% tax and tip).  Many non-profit groups do not have the money for 
this PLUS the cost of the beverage, especially groups that meet every week.  In 
addition, for some food items there are minimum numbers and advanced 
reservations required, so groups end up paying even more because they order 
more food than needed. 
 
Also, with the senior programs, businesses often want to donate refreshments, 
and under the current contract, we are not allowed to accept these donations. 
 
We do not object to requiring the use of a caterer for banquet meals, but a caterer 
is cost prohibitive for many groups for weekly refreshments. 
 
Some groups have stopped meeting at the Community Center because of this 
policy, and other groups are going without refreshments at their meetings.  We 
do not think that the current policy serves the needs of the community.   
  
Sincerely, 
 
 
JoAnn  Thompson  
Chair 

JoAnn Thompson 
Chair 
248-879-2637 
 
Bill Weisgerber 
Vice Chair 
248-828-7072 
 
Bud Black 
248-641-7745 
 
James Berar 
248-689-3408 
 
Merrill Dixon 
248-879-2887 
 
Marie Hoag 
248-879-6433 
 
Pauline Noce 
248-540-1606 
 
David Ogg 
248-689-2210 
 
Jo Rhoads 
248-689-2741 
 

 
The Advisory Committee  
for Senior Citizens is  
appointed by City  
Council to study and  
consider the welfare  
and concerns of senior  
citizens in Troy.    
The Committee offers 
recommendations to  
City Council as to 
programs and services 
that would benefit  
senior citizens in our  
community. 



SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM PROPOSAL – CCPTF - MINUTES -   December 7, 2004 
 

 1

 
A special joint meeting of the CIVIC CENTER PRIORITY TASK FORCE (CCPTF), 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY 
BOARD AND THE PLANNING COMMISSION  was held on December 7, 2004 at 7:00 PM at 
the Community Center in Banquet Room 304-05, 3179 Livernois Road.  John Szerlag called the 
meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
 
Present: Quorums were present on all four boards.   (See board minutes for roll call results.  A 
copy of which shall be attached to the original version of these minutes.) 
 
CCPTF Members Present: 
 

 
Also present:   
John Szerlag, City Manager 
Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
Carol Anderson, Director of Parks & Recreation 
Stu Alderman, Superintendent of Recreation 
Doug Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 
Andy Appleby, President & CEO General Sports and Entertainment 
Dana Schmitt, Executive Vice President & General Counsel General Sports and Entertainment 
 
  
             
                            
1. Call to Order and Roll Calls: Each board recorded their attendance. 

2. Introduction by John Szerlag, City Manager 

3. Presentation by Andy Appleby, President & CEO; Dana Schmitt, Executive Vice President 

& General Counsel: General Sports & Entertainment 

4. Question and Answer Period for Board Members 

5. Break (sign-up sheet for public comment available)  

 

6. Public Comment: 11 members of the audience spoke 

  
Mary Ann Bernardi (Troy Citizens United) Tom Krent (Parks and Recreation Advisory Board) 
Leonard Bertin  (Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities) Mark Maxwell (Board of Zoning Appeals) 
Ann Partlan (Historic District Commission) David Ogg (Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens) 
Charles Solis (Traffic Committee) Carol Price (Downtown Development Authority) 
Catherine Herzog (Troy Youth Council) Robert Schulz (Planning Commission) 
Michele Hodges (Troy Shareholders) Brian Wattles (Historical Commission) 
Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks  

bittnera
Text Box
J-01j



SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM PROPOSAL – CCPTF - MINUTES -   December 7, 2004 
 

 2

7. Breakout sessions: each board discussed proposal amongst themselves and make 

recommendation (vote) 

All CCPTF members put forth their opinions, which led to some brief discussion before a 

resolution was offered.  (See page 2 for resolution.) 

8. Boards share recommendations with entire group 

 
 
 
Resolutions submitted from each board: 
 
 
CIVIC CENTER PRIORITY TASK FORCE 
 
Resolution #CCPTF-2004-12-009 
Moved by Maxwell 
Seconded by Bertin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civic Center Priority Task Force endorses going forward with the 
proposed minor league baseball stadium project. 
 
Yes: 8 – Bertin, Biegler, Herzog, Hodges, Maxwell, Price, Schulz, Solis 
No: 5 – Bernardi, Krent, Ogg, Partlan, Wattles 
Absent: None 
MOTON CARRIED 
 
 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
Resolution #DD-04-16 
Moved by:  Kiriluk 
Seconded by:  Kennis 
 
RESOLVED, that the DDA recommends to City Council that Council seek an agreement with 
General Sports to construct a multi-purpose stadium, but has serious reservations about DDA 
funding of infrastructure without demonstrated benefit to the business community and 
finalization of parking agreements with Liberty Property Trust. 
 
Yes:      Hodges, Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Price, Reschke, Schilling, Weiss,     
    York       
No:        Culpepper 
Absent:  Frankel, Hay, Schroeder 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM PROPOSAL – CCPTF - MINUTES -   December 7, 2004 
 

 3

 
 
 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
Resolution # PR- 2004 - 12 - 024 
Motion by Edmunds 
Seconded by Gazetti 
  
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board supports the concept of the 
proposed minor league baseball stadium and encourages City Council to pursue negotiation 
of a contract. 
  
Further, that in negotiation of the contract, consideration be made that in exchange for the use 
of the Civic Center land, the developer contribute towards development of one of the two largest 
undeveloped City park sites.   
  
And further, that negotiations include consideration that the operational costs be waived for uses 
by the Parks and Recreation department.   
  
Yeas:        7  (Dixon, Edmunds, Fejes, Gazetti, Kaltsounis, Kovacs, Redpath) 
Nays:        2  (Zikakis, Krent) 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
Note:  Student representative, Brad Henson, though not a voting member, opposed the 
resolution.   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-145 
Moved by:   Waller 
Seconded by:   Vleck 

 
WHEREAS, The proposed Minor League Ballpark will be an asset for the City of Troy. 

 
WHEREAS, It will serve as a catalyst to increase Troy’s non-residential tax base. 

 
WHEREAS, The Ballpark will be privately financed as a $15,000,000 gift to the City of Troy.  

 
WHEREAS, The facility will be available for use year-round by Troy citizens. 

 
WHEREAS, The facility will further the improvement of the Civic Center site and will serve as a 
catalyst for additional community activities throughout the entire property. 

 



SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM PROPOSAL – CCPTF - MINUTES -   December 7, 2004 
 

 4

WHEREAS, Alcohol will be managed in a similar manner as the two City of Troy golf courses 
and all City parks. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy Planning Commission recommends that City Council move 
forward to facilitate the construction of a Ballpark on the Civic Center site as proposed by 
General Sports. 
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
No:  None 
Absent:   Khan 

 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:15 P.M. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Wattles, Chair CCPTF 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 



SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM PROPOSAL - MINUTES  December 7, 2004 
 

 1

 
A special joint meeting of the CIVIC CENTER PRIORITY TASK FORCE, DOWNTOWN 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD AND THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION  was held on December 7, 2004 at 7:00 PM at the Community 
Center in Banquet Room 304-05, 3179 Livernois Road.  John Szerlag called the meeting to 
order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
 
Present: Quorums were present on all four boards.   (See board minutes for roll call results.  A 
copy of which shall be attached to the original version of these minutes.) 
 
Also present:   
John Szerlag, City Manager 
Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
Carol Anderson, Director of Parks & Recreation 
Stu Alderman, Superintendent of Recreation 
Doug Smith, Director of Real Estate and Development 
Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
 
Andy Appleby, President & CEO General Sports and Entertainment 
Dana Schmitt, Executive Vice President & General Counsel General Sports and Entertainment 
             
                            
1. Call to Order and Roll Calls: Each board recorded their attendance. 

2. Introduction by John Szerlag, City Manager 

3. Presentation by Andy Appleby, President & CEO; Dana Schmitt, Executive Vice President 

& General Counsel: General Sports & Entertainment 

4. Question and Answer Period for Board Members 

5. Break (sign-up sheet for public comment available)  

6. Public Comment: 11 members of the audience spoke 

7. Breakout sessions: each board discussed proposal amongst themselves and make 

recommendation (vote) 

8. Boards share recommendations with entire group 

 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01k



SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM PROPOSAL - MINUTES  December 7, 2004 
 

 2

 
Resolutions submitted from each board: 
 
 
CIVIC CENTER PRIORITY TASK FORCE 
 
Resolution #CCPTF-2004-12-009 
Moved by Maxwell 
Seconded by Bertin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civic Center Priority Task Force endorses going forward with the 
proposed minor league baseball stadium project. 
 
Yes: 8 – Bertin, Biegler, Herzog, Hodges, Maxwell, Price, Schultz, Solis 
No: 5 – Bernardi, Krent, Ogg, Partlan, Wattles 
Absent: None 
MOTON CARRIED 
 
 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
Resolution #DD-04-16 
Moved by:  Kiriluk 
Seconded by:  Kennis 
 
RESOLVED, that the DDA recommends to City Council that Council seek an agreement with 
General Sports to construct a multi-purpose stadium, but has serious reservations about DDA 
funding of infrastructure without demonstrated benefit to the business community and 
finalization of parking agreements with Liberty Property Trust. 
 
Yes:      Hodges, Kennis, Kiriluk, MacLeish, Price, Reschke, Schilling, Weiss,     
    York       
No:        Culpepper 
Absent:  Frankel, Hay, Schroeder 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM PROPOSAL - MINUTES  December 7, 2004 
 

 3

 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
Resolution # PR- 2004 - 12 - 024 
Motion by Edmunds 
Seconded by Gazetti 
  
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board supports the concept of the 
proposed minor league baseball stadium and encourages City Council to pursue negotiation 
of a contract. 
  
Further, that in negotiation of the contract, consideration be made that in exchange for the use 
of the Civic Center land, the developer contribute towards development of one of the two largest 
undeveloped City park sites.   
  
And further, that negotiations include consideration that the operational costs be waived for uses 
by the Parks and Recreation department.   
  
Yeas:        7  (Dixon, Edmunds, Fejes, Gazetti, Kaltsounis, Kovacs, Redpath) 
Nays:        2  (Zikakis, Krent) 
MOTION CARRIED 
  
Note:  Student representative, Brad Henson, though not a voting member, opposed the 
resolution.   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-145 
Moved by:   Waller 
Seconded by:   Vleck 

 
WHEREAS, The proposed Minor League Ballpark will be an asset for the City of Troy. 

 
WHEREAS, It will serve as a catalyst to increase Troy’s non-residential tax base. 

 
WHEREAS, The Ballpark will be privately financed as a $15,000,000 gift to the City of Troy.  

 
WHEREAS, The facility will be available for use year-round by Troy citizens. 

 
WHEREAS, The facility will further the improvement of the Civic Center site and will serve as a 
catalyst for additional community activities throughout the entire property. 

 
WHEREAS, Alcohol will be managed in a similar manner as the two City of Troy golf courses 
and all City parks. 

 



SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM PROPOSAL - MINUTES  December 7, 2004 
 

 4

BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy Planning Commission recommends that City Council move 
forward to facilitate the construction of a Ballpark on the Civic Center site as proposed by 
General Sports. 
 
Yes:  All present (8) 
No:  None 
Absent:   Khan 

 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:15 P.M. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
John Szerlag, City Manager (Moderator) 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



Joint Special meeting on Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium - DRAFT              December 7, 2004 

 
A joint special meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, Planning Commission, 
Civic Center Task Force and the Downtown Development Authority was held Tuesday, 
December 7, 2004 at the Troy Community Center, room 304.  The meeting was called to order 
at 7:05 p.m. by John Szerlag.   
 
The following minutes cover the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board breakout session.   
 
Present: Merrill Dixon, member   Ida Edmunds, member 
  Kathleen Fejes, member   Tod Gazetti, member 
  Orestes Kaltsounis, member  Brad Henson, student representative 
  Tom Krent, member    Meaghan Kovacs, member 
  Stuart Redpath, member   Jan Zikakis, member 
  Stuart Alderman, staff   Jeff Biegler, staff 
  Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Jeff Stewart (excused) 
 
Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium 
Board discussion of the proposed stadium included: 
 

 Traffic implications 
 That project would encourage community spirit. 
 Use restrictions - what will residency policy be? 
 If General Sports uses the facility more days than agreed upon, a lease payment 

should be paid to the City.   
 Amenities of the Civic Center Task Force will be enhanced by this development.   

 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 12 - 024 
Motion by Edmunds 
Seconded by Gazetti 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board supports the concept of the 
proposed minor league baseball stadium and encourages City Council to pursue negotiation of 
a contract.   
 
Further, that in negotiation of the contract, consideration be made that in exchange for use of 
the Civic Center land, the developer contribute towards development of one of the two largest 
undeveloped City park sites.   
 
And further, that negotiations include consideration that operational costs be waived for uses by 
the Parks and Recreation department. 
 
Yeas:  7  (Dixon, Edmunds, Fejes, Gazetti, Kaltsounis, Kovacs, Redpath) 
Nays:  2  (Zikakis, Krent)* 
Absent: Jeff Stewart 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
*Note:  Student representative, Brad Henson, though not a voting member, opposed the resolution.   
 
 
_________________________________  _______________________________ 
Kathleen Fejes, Chairwoman    Carol K. Anderson, Recording Secretary 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01l



JOINT SPECIAL MEETING ON PROPOSED MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM - DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Joint Special Meeting of the Downtown Development Authority, Civic Center Priority 
Task Force, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and Planning Commission was called to 
order by John Szerlag at 7:00 p.m. on December 7, 2004, in Room 304-305 of the Troy 
Community Center. 
 
The following minutes cover the Planning Commission breakout session.   
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Fazal Khan 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark. J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-144 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Khan is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PROPOSED MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-145 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Minor League Ballpark will be an asset for the City of 
Troy. 
 
WHEREAS, It will serve as a catalyst to increase Troy’s non-residential tax base. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01m



JOINT SPECIAL MEETING ON PROPOSED MINOR LEAGUE BASEBALL STADIUM - DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

WHEREAS, The Ballpark will be privately financed as a $15,000,000 gift to the City 
of Troy.  
 
WHEREAS, The facility will be available for use year-round by Troy citizens. 
 
WHEREAS, The facility will further the improvement of the Civic Center site and will 
serve as a catalyst for additional community activities throughout the entire 
property. 
 
WHEREAS, Alcohol will be managed in a similar manner as the two City of Troy 
golf courses and all City parks. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy Planning Commission recommends that City 
Council move forward to facilitate the construction of a Ballpark on the Civic Center 
site as proposed by General Sports. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Draft\12-07-04 Joint Special Meeting on Proposed Minor League Baseball 
Stadium_Draft.doc 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - DRAFT                                           December 7, 2004 

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
A special meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Tuesday, December 7, 
2004 at the Troy Community Center, staff conference room.  Chairwoman, Kathleen Fejes called the 
meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. 
 
Present: Merrill Dixon, member    Ida Edmunds, member 
  Kathleen Fejes, member   Tod Gazetti, member 
  Orestes Kaltsounis, member   Tom Krent, member 
  Meaghan Kovacs, member   Jan Zikakis, member 
  Stuart Alderman, staff    Jeff Biegler, staff 
  Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Stuart Redpath, Jeff Stewart, Brad Henson 
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 12 - 021 
Moved by Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes from October 21, 2004 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 12 - 022 
Moved by Zikakis 
Seconded by Krent 
 
RESOLVED, that absent member are excused.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Rotary Park - Staff presented a concept drawing of the park.  Discussion of the concept, draft 
agreement and terms, and park naming policy took place.   
 
Resolution # PR - 2004 - 12 - 022 
Moved by Krent 
Seconded by Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board recommends to City Council that the 
agreement for the Rotary Club of Troy for development and maintenance of the park on Long Lake 
Road at Somerton be pursued.   
 
Yeas:   All 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 
 
 
___________________________________      ___________________________________ 
Kathleen Fejes, Chairwoman        Carol K. Anderson, Recording Secretary 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01n



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Waller at 6:30 p.m. on December 7, 2004, in Room 304-305 of the Troy Community 
Center. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Gary Chamberlain Fazal Khan 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark. J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-140 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Khan is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

3. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 910-A) – Dr. Sklar Medical Office Building, North side of 
Maple, between Kirkton and Eastport, Section 27 – O-1 (Office Low Rise) District 
(tabled from November 9, 2004 Regular Planning Commission Meeting) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the 
proposed medical office building.  Mr. Savidant addressed the five concerns 
discussed at the November 9, 2004 Regular Meeting, at which time the Planning 
Commission tabled the matter.  Mr. Savidant reported that it is the recommendation 
of the Planning Department to approve the site plan as submitted. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01o



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Mr. Vleck questioned the residence to the west with respect to the requirement of 
additional screening.   
 
Mr. Miller confirmed that there would be no additional screening required because 
the residence is in the same zoning classification.   
 
The petitioner, Tom Moss of 1893 Birchwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Moss 
emphasized the importance of keeping all the parking spaces that are designated 
on the site plan because the majority of patients who would visit the medical 
building are elderly.  
 
Also present was John DeBruyne of SDA Architects, 2201 Twelve Mile Road, 
Warren.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain asked if the petitioner had any problem with the future cross 
access easement as noted on the site plan.   
 
Mr. Moss said no. 
 
Mr. Strat asked the petitioner to address the 4-foot high chain link fence to the north 
of the subject property in relation to the required 6-foot high screen wall.   
 
Mr. Moss said he would discuss the matter with the adjacent property owner to the 
north.   
 
Mr. Strat addressed the 1-inch to 3-inch PVC sleeve at the screen wall with respect 
to leaves clogging the pipe.  He also addressed the parking calculations as relates 
to the basement and the installation of an elevator.   
 
Mr. DeBruyne said further research would be necessary to determine if there is a 
requirement to install an elevator.  He confirmed that it is the petitioner’s intent to 
use the basement for storage.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified that parking is not required should a building owner dedicate the 
basement to storage only.  He noted that the Building Department would insure that 
the parking requirements would be met at that time, should the basement be used 
as usable space in the future. 
 
Mr. Schultz said it is his opinion that the 5-foot sidewalk on the west side of the 
property that runs adjacent to the 4-foot chain link fence on the existing home is an 
eyesore.  He said his first reaction upon reviewing the site plan was to request the 
petitioner to eliminate 3 parking spaces and put in a landscaped greenbelt behind 
the sidewalk.   
 
Mr. Schultz asked if a stipulation should be made in the resolution of the site plan 
approval that the surface detention would remain 100% underground, thus 
eliminating any possibility of it changing during final engineering.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Miller confirmed that the Engineering Department agrees the storm water can 
be underground.  He noted the Planning Commission could identify that as a 
condition in its site plan approval.   
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-141 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Dr. Sklar 
Medical Office Building, located on the north side of Maple Road, between Kirkton 
and Eastport, located in section 27, within the O-1 zoning district, is hereby granted 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That the cross access easement as noted on the drawing be filed with the 

County.   
2. That there be an island put in immediately south of the cross access 

easement. 
3. That the storm water detention is not allowed to be detained or retained on the 

surface of the parking lot.   
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Littman questioned the requirement of an island.   
 
Mr. Savidant cited the advantages of an island.  He explained the island would 
define the cross access drive and create a safer vehicular connection between the 
two sites.   
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

4. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00, 
Article 40.65.02 and Article 40.66.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Definitions 
(tabled from November 9, 2004 Regular Planning Commission Meeting) 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-142 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 

 
RESOLVED, That Article 04.20.00, Article 40.65.02 and Article 40.66.00, pertaining to 
Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions, be postponed to the January 25, 
2005 Special/Study Meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 7, 2004 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – Article 43.74.00, 
Article 40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking 
Appeals (tabled from November 9, 2004 Regular Planning Commission Meeting) 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-143 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Wright 

 
RESOLVED, That Article 43.74.00, Article 40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to 
Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals, be postponed to the January 25, 2005 
Special/Study Meeting.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
David T. Waller, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2004 PC Minutes\Draft\12-07-04 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



bittnera
Text Box
J-02a





























December 6, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Notification of LLEBG Change  
 
On February 23, 2004, City Council approved acceptance of an $18,984.00 Local 
Law Enforcement Block Grant for the purchase of Web-EOC. Acceptance of the 
grant required a City of Troy match of $2,109.00.  At that time, Oakland County 
Emergency Response and Preparedness (OC-ERP) planned on utilizing Web-
EOC (emergency mitigation software) in their Emergency Operation Center, and 
in the interest of establishing inter-operability recommended that we purchase 
identical software. 
 
During the purchase process, OC-ERP learned that the State of Michigan 
purchased and began utilizing E-Team, another comprehensive emergency 
mitigation software program.  OC-ERP determined that public safety would be 
enhanced if State, County, and local emergency operations programs all utilized 
the same software program.  Therefore, OC-ERP switched from Web-EOC to E-
Team.  Because the City of Troy’s emergency operations center was recently 
approved as an alternate Oakland County emergency operations center, OC-
ERP provided the E-Team software to us free of charge.  Our status as an 
alternate Oakland County emergency operations center allows us full access to 
the E-Team program. 
  
The funds provided by the LLEBG for the purchase of Web-EOC are being 
redirected to the purchase of a satellite communications system for emergency 
operations plan use.  The system will allow the City of Troy emergency 
operations center to communicate with the on-scene commanders, the OC-ERP, 
and the State of Michigan.  In the event of an emergency the system will provide 
for real-time updates from the field, and provide a communication link between 
the emergency operations center and field operations if radio or 
telecommunications are disrupted. 
  
The Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA), the agency that oversees LLEBG’s, has 
reviewed our request and approved the change.  Because we are still using the 
grant to improve the emergency capabilities of the EOC, they advise that neither 
the Advisory Committee nor City Council need to revise their initial grant 
acceptance approval. 
 
Unless otherwise directed, we will proceed with the purchase of the satellite 
communications system. 
 
 
Prepared by:  Sergeant Donald Ostrowski 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02b



  
 

December 1, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager \ Services 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:     Agenda Item – Report - Auction – Vehicle Sale  

On October 30, 2004 in Rochester Hills 
 
SUMMARY 
 
In compliance with Resolution #2002-12-644-E-9 which requires that final auction 
reporting be submitted to City Council, miscellaneous Motor Pool vehicles and 
equipment were taken by the awarded City auctioneer, Mid-Thumb Auctioneering 
Service, LLC, to an auction held in Rochester Hills, Michigan.  The auction was held 
on Saturday, October 30, 2004.  A list of the vehicles and equipment auctioned and 
the amount received is attached.  The contract contains a provision that the 
auctioneer produces final accounting and the funds settlement within 30 days after 
the auction takes place.  He has met the criteria.   
 
The income from the sale is as follows: 
 Motor Pool Vehicles (6% auction fee) $14,400.00 

Miscellaneous Equipment (15% auction fee) 254.00  
                      
 Total gross sales    $14,654.00 

 
Costs:   Auction Fee   

    (6% for cleaned Motor Pool vehicles;  (-) 864.00 
 15% for miscellaneous equipment taken to  (-) 38.10 
 auction site by the auctioneer) 
 
 Net Income                          $13,751.90 
  
BACKGROUND  
 
Included in the specifications for the auction contract is the ability of our auctioneer 
to take the City’s auction items to other auction locations.  Mid-Thumb 
Auctioneering, LLC suggested using the Rochester Hills site.  All transportation, 
reporting, and advertising is included in the auction fee.   
 
JB/jb 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02e















bittnera
Text Box
J-2f











































holmesba
Text Box
J-03a



bittnera
Text Box
J-03b



bittnera
Text Box
J-03c



bittnera
Text Box
J-04a













mccombca
Text Box

mccombca
Text Box

mccombca
Text Box

mccombca
Text Box

mccombca
Text Box

mccombca
Text Box

mccombca
Text Box

mccombca
Text Box
J-05







December 10, 2004 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Cat Leash Ordinance 
 
 
In response to your directive I have researched the request from a citizen asking 
that the City Council enact a cat leash ordinance.  Based on the following 
information, provided me by our Animal Control Officers, it is my 
recommendation that such an ordinance not be adopted. 
 
For a cat leash requirement to be effective, there must be an ordinance requiring 
cats be licensed.  Unlike dogs, cat owners typically do not walk cats.  Cats that 
run at large are either simply let outside by their owners, or are wild.  Without 
licensing, Animal Control Officers would be unable to locate the owners of cats 
that are running at large and then hold them responsible for not leashing the 
animal.  That’s assuming that cat owners comply with the licensing law.  Only two 
Oakland County communities have cat leash and/or license ordinances.  Those 
cities, Southfield and Clawson, report that enforcement of the ordinance only 
occurs in direct response to a complaint.   
 
The citizen expressed concern about the health problems associated with cat 
bites, scratches, and feces.  Animal control personnel report no such problems 
occurring in Troy and indicate that we receive very few calls for service involving 
problems with cats.  When complaints are received, the cats are trapped and 
turned over to the county animal control facilities.    
 
On December 3, 2004, Animal Control Officer Don Cochran contacted the citizen 
who requested consideration of a leashing ordinance and discussed the matter 
with her.  He advised her that he knows of no cases of cats transmitting diseases 
to humans.  A trap was placed at the citizen’s home to capture cats that are 
apparently utilizing her garden area as a litter box. 
 
 
 
 
CTC/cc 

bittnera
Text Box
J-06


	AGENDA: December 20, 2004
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  None Scheduled

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 6903 John R
	C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1263 Wrenwood
	C-3 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 2875 Bywater
	C-4 Rezoning Application – South Side of South Boulevard, We
	C-5 Street Vacation Application (SV 179) – A Portion of Alge

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1  Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 1855 Boulan

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	December 6, 2004
	December 10, 2004
	December 11, 2004

	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): No Proclamations 
	E-4  Troy Golf, LLC – Final Contract Reconciliation and Paym
	E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bi
	E-6  Application to Transfer Ownership of a Class C Liquor L
	E-7  Request for Approval for a Price Differential Payment a
	E-8  Request for Approval A Price Differential Payment and M
	E-9  Allocation of 2005 Tri-Party Program Funds, Big Beaver,
	E-10  Request for Acceptance of Covenant Deed with Attached 
	E-11  Resolution to Permit Use of Shell Crackers to Disperse
	E-12  RWT Building, LLC v. City of Troy – Partial Plat Vacat
	E-13  Change Order to Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Awar
	E-14  Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel, Sidwell # 20-22
	E-15  State of Michigan Election Equipment Grant Application

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority
	City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons wi

	F-2 Proposed Minor League Baseball Multi-Use Facility
	F-3 Application for New Class C (Quota) License for Red Robi
	F-4 Application for New Class C (Quota) License for Brio Tus
	F-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations – November 17, 2004
	F-6 Administrative Consent Order for Evergreen Farmington SD

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\)  Rezoning Application – Northeast Co�

	G-2 Green Memorandums: No Green Memorandums Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Moratorium on Expenditures for the I-75/Long Lake Road

	COUNCIL COMMENTS: No Council Comments Advanced
	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – October 21, 2004
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Nov
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Nov
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – November 4, 2
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – November 8, 2004
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – Novem
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – November 16, 2004
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 1, 2004
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – December 2, 2
	Special Meeting Minor League Baseball Stadium Proposal – Min
	Special Meeting on Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium/Dr
	Special Meeting Minor League Baseball Stadium Proposal – Min
	Special Meeting on Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium/Dr
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Draft – December 7, 2004
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 7, 2004

	J-2 Department Reports:
	SOCRRA Quarterly Report – October 2004
	Notification of Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Change
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Audited Financial Stateme
	Downtown Development Authority Audited Financial Statement f
	Report – Auction – Vehicle Sale on October 30, 2004 in Roche
	Monthly Financial Report – November 30, 2004

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Thank You Note from Ann and Gary Renard Thanking the Troy Po
	Thank You Note from Mrs. Angela Schroeder on Behalf of the T
	Thank You Note from Spalding DeDecker Associates, Inc. to Se

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	a\) Report from General Government Committee

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Cat Leash Ordinance

	STUDY ITEMS: No Study Items Submitted
	CLOSED SESSION: No Closed Session Requested
	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



